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(dollars in thousands, except per share amounts)

Net interest income
Investment securities gains
Other income

Non-interest expense
Income taxes

Net income

Net income per diluted share

Cash dividends per common share

Total assets

Loans, net
Investment securities
Goodwill

Deposits
Stockholders’ equity

Financial Ratios

Return on average assets
Return on average equity

Net interest margin

Average equity/average assets

BERKSHIRE BANCORP INC.

Financial Highlights

Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended
December 31, December 31, December 31,
2006 2005 2004
$ 19,035 $ 22,657 $ 24,092
2,336 4 793
1,357 1,202 1,026
13,582 13,139 12,095
3,856 5,003 6,134
4,880 3,541 7,502
70 .80 1.10
16 15 11
$ 948,656 $ 977,452 5 972,649
367,152 305,964 284,052
515,231 599,972 631,592
18,549 18,549 18,549
681,489 680,260 619,888
115,777 108,710 107,619
0.5% 0.6% 0.8%
4.3% 51% 1.2%
2.2% 2.4% 2.6%
12.1% 11.1% 11.0%




BERKSHIRE BANCORP INC.

Dear Shareholders:

On behalf of the directors, officers and employees of Berkshire Bancorp Inc., I am
pleased to present our eighth annual report as a bank holding company. We became a bank
holding company upon the acquisition of The Berkshire Bank in 1999. In 2001 we more than
doubled the size of our bank with the acquisition of GSB Financial Corporation, the parent
company of Goshen Savings Bank which has been serving their community for more than 125
years. The head office and main branch of The Berkshire Bank is located at East 39th Street
and Fifth Avenue in Manhattan. Ten other branches operating in Manhattan, Brooklyn, Goshen,
Harriman and Bloomingburg, New York and our newest branch in Ridgefield, New Jersey, have
enabled us to provide the convenience and service our customers deserve. Later this year we
expect to open a branch on Manhattan’s upper west side.

During 2006, our total assets declined by 3% to $948.6 million, net loans increased by
20% to $367.2 million, and we earned $4.9 million, a 4.5% return on 2005’s ending equity.
Earnings per diluted share amounted to $.70 and stockholders’ equity increased by $7.1 million
to $115.8 million, or $16.83 per share outstanding at December 31, 2006. The Company and
its subsidiary bank are considered "well capitalized" by the bank regulators.

Every year presents a new set of challenges and a new set of choices. Each year there
are new decisions to make about running our business efficiently and profitably in an ever
changing environment. Long-term and short-term business strategies are addressed by the board
of directors and management to insure the safety and soundness of the Bank which, I am pleased
to report, has never been stronger.

This past year we’ve seen short-term interest rates inch higher and long-term rates remain
low...a good thing for depositors and a challenge for bankers. At The Berkshire Bank, we have
a strong team of banking professionals, talented and hardworking people, who met the challenges
and made the decisions in 2006 which enabled us to achieve the financial goals and, equally
important for the growth of our business, the service goals we set for the Company.

The mission remains unchanged. "We will continue to focus on our long-term strategy
of building shareholder value. We are mindful of but not income statement driven and we do
not run your company with an undue emphasis on either quarterly or annual earnings."




The following chart chronicles the results since this management team began in 1990.
Some years are better than others, but we hope you are pleased with the overall results. We are.

(In thousands, except per share amounts)

Market
Book Value Price Net
Per Share Per Share Income
(a) (a) Equity (Loss)
October Year End
1990 $ 4.67 $1.75 $ 27,850 $ 5612
1991 4.54 2.25 29,869 2,938
1992 1.71 2.08 11,204 (20,170)
1993 0.93 2.67 5,579 (4,623)
1994 3.07 3.33 19,419 7,248
1995 2.56 2.83 16,290 1,173
1996 5.09 3.83 33,177 (2,249)
1997 9.68 8.33 61,729 16,710
1998 10.26 10.67 65,406 37,627
1999 11.49 11.33 73,306 6,540
December Year End
1999 12.23 11.67 78,070 2,282!
2000 13.48 9.75 79,107 12,066
2001 13.44 9.42 95,992 3,299
2002 14.67 11.44 98,525 5,597
2003 15.63 16.67 103,490 7,415
2004 15.95 20.50 107,619 7,502
2005 15.78 17.05 108,710 5,541
2006 16.83 16.54 115,777 4,880
! Two months

(a) The years 1990 through 2003 have been restated to reflect the one-for-ten reverse stock split
and thirty-for-one forward stock split which occurred on May 18, 2004.

Thanks to our shareholders and to our customers. We appreciate your continued support.
Sincerely,

Steven Rél‘l‘)::;/é-a—

President and Chief Executive Officer
April 10, 2007
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Forward-Looking Statements. Statements in this Annual Report on Form 10-K that
are not based on historical fact may be "forward-looking statements” within the
meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. Words such as
"pelieve®, "may", "will", "expect", "estimate"”, "anticipate®, "continue" or
similar terms identify forward-looking statements. A wide variety of factors
could cause the Company’'s actual results and experiences to differ materially
from the results expressed or implied by the Company’'s forward-looking
statements. Some of the risks and uncertainties that may affect operations,
performance, results of the Company’s business, the interest rate sensitivity of
its assets and liabilities, and the adequacy of its loan loss allowance, include,
but are not limited to: (i) deterioration in local, regional, national or global
economic conditions which could result, among other things, in an increase in
loan delinguencies, a decrease in property values, or a change in the housing
turnover rate; {(ii) changes in market interest rates or changes in the speed at
which market interest rates change; (iii) changes in laws and regulations
affecting the financial services industry; (iv) changes in competition; (v)
changes in consumer preferences,; (vi) changes in banking techneology; (vii)
ability to maintain key members of management,; {(viii) possible disruptions in the
Company’s operations at its banking facilities; (ix} cost of compliance with new
corporate governance requirements; and other factors referred to in the sections
of this Annual Report entitled "Business" and "Management's Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations."

Certain information customarily disclesed by financial institutions, such
as estimates of interest rate sensitivity and the adequacy of the lcan loss
allowance, are inherently forward-locking statements because, by their nature,
they represent attempts to estimate what will occur in the future.

The Company cautions readers not to place undue reliance upcon any forward-
looking statement contained in this Annual Report. Forward-looking statements
speak only as of the date they were made and the Company assumes no obligation
to update or revise any such statements upon any change in applicable
circumstances.

PART I
ITEM 1. Business

General. Berkshire Bancorp Inc., a Delaware corporation , is a bank holding
company registered under the Bank Holding Company Act of 1956. As used in this
Annual Report on Form 10-K, the term "Berkshire", the "Company" or "we" and
similar pronouns shall mean Berkshire Bancorp Inc. and its consolidated
subsidiaries unless the context otherwise requires. Berkshire’s principal
activity is the ownership and management of its wholly-owned banking subsidiary,
The Berkshire Bank (the "Bank"), a New York State chartered commercial bank.

We file annual, quarterly and current reports, proxy statements and other
information with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the "SEC"}. You may read
and copy our reports or other filings made with the SEC at the SEC’'s Public
Reference Room, located at 450 Fifth Street, N.W., Washington, DC 20549. You can
also access information that we file electronically on the SEC's website at
WWW.SEC.GOV.

We do not presently have a website. However, as soon as practicable after
filing with or furnishing to the SEC, we will provide at no cost, paper or
electronic copies of our Annual Reports on Form 10-K, Quarterly Reports on Form
10-Q, Current Reports on Form 8-K and amendments to those reports. Requests
should be directed to:

Berkshire Bancorp Inc.
Investor Relations
160 Broadway

New York, NY 10038




Stock Split and Stock Dividend. At the Annual Meeting of Stockholders held
on May 18, 2004, the Company’s stockholders approved an amendment to the
Company‘'s Certificate of Incorporation effecting a one-for-ten reverse stock
split of the Company’s issued and outstanding Common Stock (the "Reverse Split").
Following the effectiveness of the Reverse Split, the Company’s Board of
Directors declared a thirty-for-one forward stock split in the form of a stock
dividend in Common Stock which became effective immediately. The Company paid
approximately $463,000 to purchase fractional shares from stockholders as part
of the Reverse Split. The Company’s Common Stock began trading on May 19, 2004
giving effect to these transactions.

Trust Preferred Securities. BAs of May 18 2004, the Company established
Berkshire Capital Trust I, a Delaware statutory trust, ("BCTI"). The Company
owns all the common capital securities of BCTI. BCTI issued $15.0 million of
preferred capital securities to investors in a private transaction and invested
the proceeds, combined with the proceeds from the sale of BCTI's common capital
securities, in the Company through the purchase of $15.464 wmillion aggregate
principal amount of Floating Rate Junior Subordinated Debentures (the
"Debentures"} issued by the Company. The Debentures, the sole assets of BCTI,
mature on July 23, 2034 and bear interest at a floating rate, three month LIBOR
plus 2.70%.

On April 1, 2005, the Company established Berkshire Capital Trust II, a
Delaware statutory trust, ("BCTII"). The Company owne all the common capital
securities of BCTII. BCTII issued $7.0 million of preferred capital securities
to investors in a private transaction and invested the proceeds, combined with
the proceeds from the sale of BCTII's common capital securities, in the Company
through the purchase of $7.217 million aggregate principal amount of Fleoating
Rate Junior Subordinated Debentures (the "2005 Debentures") issued by the
Company. The 2005 Debentures, the socle assets of BCTII, mature on May 23, 2035
and bear interest at a floating rate, three month LIBOR plus 1.95%. See Note A
of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for further discussion of Trust
Preferred Securities.

Business of the Bank - Genmeral. The Bank'’s principal business consists of
gathering deposits from.the general public and investing those deposits primarily
in loans, debt obligations issued by the U.S. Government and its agencies, debt
obligaticns of business corporations, and mortgage-backed securities. The Bank
currently operates from six deposit-taking offices in New York City, four
deposit-taking offices in Orange and Sullivan Counties, New York and one deposit-
taking office in Ridgefield, NJ.

Branch Locations of The Berkshire Bank
December 31, 2006

4 East 39th Street 2 South Church Street
New York, NY Goshen, NY

5 Broadway 214 Harriman Drive
New York, NY Goshen, NY

5010 13th Avenue 80 Route 17M
Brooklyn, NY Harriman, NY

1421 Kings Highway 60 Main Street
Brooklyn, NY Bloomingburg, NY

4917 16th Avenue 1119 Avenue J
Brooklyn, NY Brooklyn, NY

600 Broad Avenue
Ridgefield, NJ




In September 2005, the Bank entered intc a Branch Purchase and Deposit
Assumption Agreement (the "Agreement") with the Oritani Savings Bank {"Oritani"),
a New Jersey Chartered Savings Bank. Pursuant to the Agreement which closed in
May 2006, the Bank (i) assumed certain commercial checking account deposit
liabilities, (ii) purchased certain fixed assets and the real property of this
Oritani bank branch located in Ridgefield, New Jersey for a cash purchase price
of $850,000 and (iii) opened a branch of The Berkshire Bank at the Ridgefield,
New Jersey location.

In August 2005, the Bank formed Berxrkshire 1031 Exchange, LLC {("Berkshire
1031"), a wholly owned limited liability company. Berkshire 1031 will act as a
qualified intermediary in connection with tax free exchanges under Section 1031
of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended. A qualified intermediary is
an individual or business entity that assists owners of property who wish to
exchange their property for property of a "like-kind" in a transaction that is
tax free in whole or part for federal (and in some cases state} income tax
purposes. In accordance with detailed procedures set forth in federal income tax
regulations, Berkshire 1031 will assist the owner in the sale of the owner’s
property and the purchase o¢f replacement property so that the transaction
qualifies as a non-taxable exchange of property.

Principal Loan Types. The Bank’s principal locan types are residential and
commercial mortgage loans and commercial non-mortgage loans, both unsecured and
secured by personal property. The Bank’'s revenues come principally from interest
on lecans and investment securities. The Bank’'s primary sources of funds are
deposits and proceeds from principal and interest payments on loans and
investment securities.

Operating Plan. The Bank’s operating plan concentrates on obtaining
deposits from a variety of businesses, professionals and retail customers and
investing those funds in conservatively underwritten loans. Due to the Bank’'s
underwriting criteria, its deposits have significantly exceeded the level of
satisfactory loans available for investment in recent years. Hence, the Bank
has, in recent years, invested a portion of its available funds in investment and
mortgage-backed securities.

Market Area. The Bank draws its customers principally from the New York
City metropolitan area and the Villages of Goshen and Harriman, New York and
their surrounding communities, representing most of Orange County, NY. The Bank
also has a branch in Bloomingburg, New York, just over the border between Orange
and Sullivan Counties. Predominantly rural with numerous small towns, many
residents of Orange and Sullivan Counties work in New York City. Consequently,
the health of the economy in the New York City metropolitan area has, and will
continue to have a direct effect on the economic well being of residents and
businesses in these counties. With the completion of the transaction with
Oritani in May 2006, the Bank’'s market area expanded into northern New Jersey.
From time to time, the Bank may make loans or accept deposits from outside these
areas, but such transactions generally represent outgrowths of existing local
customer relationships.

Competition. The Bank's principal competitors for deposits are other
commercial banks, savings banks, savings and loan associations and credit unions
in the Bank’s market areas, as well as money market mutual funds, insurance
companies, securities brokerage firms and other financial institutions, many of
which are substantially larger in size than the Company. The Bank’s competition
for lcocans comes principally from commercial banks, savings banks, savings and
loan associations, mortgage bankers, finance companies and other institutional
lenders. Many of the institutions which compete with the Bank have much greater
financial and marketing resources than the Bank. The Bank’'s principal methods
of competition include loan and deposit pricing, maintaining close ties with its
local communities, the quality of the personal service it provides, the types of
business services it provides, and other marketing programs.

Operations ¢f the Bank. Reference is made to the information set forth in
Item 7 herein ("Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations"} for information as to various aspects of the Bank’s
operations, activities and conditions.




Subsidiary Activities. The Bank is permitted under New York State law and
federal law to own subsidiaries for certain limited purposes, generally to engage
in activities which are permissible for a subsidiary of a national bank. The
Bank has two subsidiaries, Berkshire Agency, Inc., a company engaged in the title
insurance agency business, and Berkshire 1031, a company that acts as a qualified
intermediary in connection with tax free exchanges under Section 1031 of the
Internal Revenue Service Code.

Regulation. Berkshire is a bank holding company under federal law and
registered as such with the Federal Reserve. The Bank is a commercial bank
chartered under the laws of New York State. It is subject to regulation at the
state level by the New York Superintendent of Banks and the New York Banking
Board, while at the federal level its primary regulator is the Federal Deposit
Insurance Corporation (the "FDIC").

Both Berkshire and the Bank are subject to extensive state and federal
regulation of their activities. The following discussion summarizes certain
banking laws and regqulations that affect Berkshire and the Bank. Proposals to
change these laws and regulations are frequently proposed in Congress, in the New
York State legislature, and before state and federal bank regulatory agencies.
The likelihood and timing of any changes and the impact such changes might have
on the Company are impossible to determine with any certainty. A change in
applicable laws or regulations, or a change in the way such laws or regulations
are interpreted by regulatory agencies or courts, may have a material impact on
the business, operations and earnings of the Company, the nature and effect of
which cannot be predicted.

Bank Holding Company Regulation. The Federal Reserve is authorized to make
regular examinations of the Company and its nonbank subsidiaries. Under federal
law and Federal Reserve regulations, the activities in which the Company and its
nonbank subsidiaries may engage are limited. The Company may not acquire direct
or indirect ownership or control of more than 5% of the voting shares of any
company, including a bank, without the prior approval of the Federal Reserve,
except as specifically authorized under federal law and Federal Reserve
regulations. The Company, subject to the approval of the Federal Reserve, may
acquire more than 5% of the voting shares of non-banking corporations if those
corporations engage in activities which the Federal Reserve deems to be so
closely related to banking or managing or controlling banks as to be a proper
incident thereto. These limitations alsc apply to activities in which the
Company engages directly rather than through a subsidiary.

The Federal Reserve has enforcement powers over the Company and its non-
bank subsidiaries. This allows the Federal Reserve, among other things, to stop
activities that represent unsafe or unsound practices or constitute violations
of law, rules, regulations, administrative orders or written agreements with a
federal bank regulator. These powers may be exercised through the issuance of
cease-and-desist orders, the imposition of civil money penalties or other
actions.

Federal Regerve Capital Requirements. The Federal Reserve requires that
the Company, as a bank holding company, must maintain certain minimum ratios of
capital to assets. The Federal Reserve’s regulations divide capital into two
categories. Primary capital includes common equity, surplus, undivided profits,
perpetual preferred stock, mandatory convertible instruments, the allowance for
loan and lease losses, contingency and other capital reserves, and minority
interests in equity accounts of consolidated subsidiaries. Secondary capital
includes limited-life preferred stock, subordinated notes and debentures and
certain unsecured long term debt.

The Federal Reserve requires that bank helding companies maintain a minimum
ratio of primary capital to total assets of 5.5% and a minimum level of total
capital (primary plus secondary capital) equal to 6% of total assets. In
calculating capital ratios, the allowance for loan losses, which is a component
of primary capital, is added back in determining total assets. Certain capital
components, such as debt and perpetual preferred stock, are includable as capital
only if they satisfy certain definitional tests.




The Company must also meet a risk-based capital standard. Capital, for the
risk-based capital requirement, is divided into Tier I capital and Supplementary
capital, determined as discussed below in connection with the FDIC capital
requirements imposed on the Bank. The Federal Reserve requires that the Bank
. maintain a ratio of total capital (defined as Tier I plus Supplementary capital)
to risk-weighted assets of at least 8%, of which at least 4% must be Tier I
capital. Risk weighted assets are also determined in-a manner comparable to the
determination of risk-weighted assets under FDIC regulations as discussed below.

At December 31, 2006 and 2005, the Company met the definition of a "well
capitalized" bank holding company.

Inter-state Banking. Bank helding companies may generally acquire banks
in any state. Federal law also permits a bank to merge with an ocut-of-state bank
and convert any offices into branches of the resulting bank if both states have
not opted out of interstate branching; permits a bank to acquire branches from
an out-of-state bank if the law of the state where the branches are located
permits the interstate branch acquisition; and permits banks to establish and
operate new interstate branches whenever the host state opts-in to that
authority. Bank holding companies and banks that want to engage in such
activities must be adequately capitalized and managed.

The New York Banking Law generally authorizes interstate branching in New
York as a result of a merger, purchase of assets or similar transaction. An out
of state bank may not first enter New York by opening a new branch in New York,
but once a branch is acquired as described in the precedlng sentence, additional
new branches may be opened state wide.

Regulation of the Bank. In general, the powers of the Bank are limited to
the express powers described in the New York Banking Law and powers incidental
. to the exercise of those express powers. The Bank is generally authorized to
accept deposits and make loans on terms and conditions determined to be
acceptable to the Bank. Loans may be unsecured, secured by real estate, or
secured by personal property. The Bank may also invest assets in bonds, notes or
other debt securities which are not in default and certain limited classes of
equity securities including certain publicly traded equity securities in an
amount aggregating not more than 2% of assets or 20% of capital. The Bank may
alsc engage in a variety of other traditional activities for commercial banks,
such as the issuance of letters of credit.

The exercise of these state-authorized powers is limited by FDIC
requlations and other federal laws and requlations. In particular, FDIC
requlations limit the investment activities of state-chartered, FDIC-insured
banks such as the Bank.

Under FDIC regulations, the Bank generally may not directly or indirectly
acquire or retain any equity investment that is not permissible for a national
bank. In addition, the Bank may not directly or indirectly through a subsidiary,
engage as "principal" in any activity that is not permissible for a naticnal bank
unless the FDIC has determined that such activities would pose no risk to the
applicable FDIC insurance fund and the Bank is in compliance with applicable
requlatory capital requirements. FDIC regulations permit real estate investments
under certain circumstances. The Bank does not engage in real estate investing
activity.

Loans to One Borrower. With certain exceptions, the Bank may not make
loans or other extensions of credit to a single borrower, or certain related
groups of borrowers, in an aggregate amount in excess of 15% of the Bank’s net
worth, plus an additional 10% of the Bank’s net worth if such amount is secured
by certain types of readily marketable collateral. In addition, the Bank is not
permitted to make a mortgage loan in excess of 15% of capital stock, surplus fund
and undivided profits.

FDIC Capital Requirements. The FDIC requires that the Bank maintain
certain minimum ratics of capital to assets. The FDIC's regulations divide
capital into two tiers. The first tier ("Tier I") includes common equity,
retained earnings, certain non-cumulative perpetual preferred stock (excluding
auction rate issues) and minority interests in equity accounts of consclidated
subsidiaries, minus goodwill and other intangible assets {(except mortgage
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Bervicing rights and purchased credit card relationships subject to certain
limitations). Supplementary ("Tier II"} capital includes, among other items,
cumulative perpetual and long-term limited-life preferred stock, mandatory
convertible securities, certain hybrid capital instruments, term subordinated
debt and the allowance for loan, subject to certain limitations, less required
deductions.

The FDIC requires that the highest rated banks maintain a Tier I leverage
ratio (Tier I capital to adjusted total assets) of at least 3.0%. All other banks
subject to FDIC capital requirements must maintain a Tier I leverage ratio of
4.0% to 5.0% or more. As of December 31, 2006 and 2005, the Bank’'s Tier I
leverage capital ratio was 10.9% and 10.1%, respectively.

The Bank must also meet a risk-based capital standard. The risk-based
standard requires the Bank to maintain total capital (defined as Tier I and
Supplementary capital) to risk-weighted assets of at least 8%, of which at least
4% must be Tier I capital. In determining the amount of risk-weighted assets,
all assets, plus certain off-balance sheet assets, are multiplied by a risk-
weight of 0% to 100%, based on the risks the FDIC believes are inherent in the
type of asset. As of December 31, 2006 and 2005, the Bank maintained a 18.6% and
22.2% Tier I risk-based capital ratio and a 19%.3% and 23.0% total risk-based
capital ratio, respectively.

In addition to the foregoing regulatory capital reguirements, the FDIC
Improvements Act of 1991 created a "prompt corrective action" framework, under
which decreases in a depository institution's capital category trigger various
supervisory actions. Pursuant to implementing requlations adopted by the FDIC,
for purposes of the prompt corrective action provisions, a state-chartered,
nonmember bank, such as the Bank, is deemed to be well capitalized if it has:
a total risk-based capital ratio of 10% or greater; a Tier 1 risk-based capital
ratio of 6% or greater; and a leverage ratio of 5% or greater. As of December
31, 2006 and 2005, the Bank met the definition of a "well capitalized" financial
institution.

Community Reinvestment Act. The Bank must, under federal law, meet the
credit needs of its community, including low and moderate income segments of its
community. The FDIC is required, in connection with its examination of the Bank,
to assess whether the Bank has satisfied this requirement. Failure to satisfy
this requirement could adversely affect certain applications which the Bank may
make, such as branch applications, merger applications, and applications for
permission to purchase branches. In the case of Berkshire, the Federal Reserve
will assess the record of each subsidiary bank in considering certain
applications by Berkshire. The New York Banking Law contains similar provisions
applicable to the Bank. As of the most recent Community Reinvestment Act
examinations by the FDIC and the New York State Banking Department, the Bank
received "satisfactory" ratings.

Dividends From the Bank to the Company. One source of funds for Berkshire
to pay dividends to its stockholders is dividends from the Bank to Berkshire.
Under the New York Banking Law, the Bank may pay dividends to Berkshire, without
requlatory approval, equal to its net profits for the year in which the payment
is made, plus retained net profits for the two previous years, subject to certain
limits not generally relevant. The Bank’s retained net profits for the 2005 and
2006 calendar years totaled approximately $11.43 million.

Under federal law, the Bank may not make any capital distribution to
Berkshire, including any dividend or repurchase of the Bank’s stock, if, after
making such distribution, the Bank fails to meet the required minimum capital
ratio requirements discussed below. The FDIC may prohibit the Bank from paying
dividends if, in its opinion, the payment of dividends would constitute an unsafe
or unsound practice.

Transactions With Related Parties. The Company, its direct non-banking
subsidiaries and other companies controlled by stockholders who control the
Company are affiliates, within the meaning of the Federal Regerve Act, of the
Bank and its subsidiaries. The Bank’s authority to engadge in transactions with
its "affiliates" is limited by Sections 23A and 23B of the Federal Reserve Act.
Section 23A limits the aggregate amount of transactions with any individual
affiliate to 10% of the capital and surplus of the Bank and also limits the
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aggregate amount of transactions with all affiliates to 20% of the Bank's capital
and surplus. Extensions of credit to affiliates must be secured by certain
specified collateral, and the purchase of low quality assets from affiliates is
generally prohibited. Section 23B provides that certain transactions with
affiliates, including loans and asset purchases, must be on terms and under
circumstances, including credit standards, that are at least as favorable to the
Bank as those prevailing at the time for comparable transactions with non-
affiliated companies. In the absence of comparable transactions, such
transactions may only occur under terms and circumstances, including credit
standards, that in good faith would be offered to or would apply to non-
affiliated companies.

In accordance with banking regulations, the Bank may make loans to its and
the Company’s directors, executive officers, and 10% stockholders, as well as to
entities controlled by them, subject to specific federal and state limits. BAmong
other things, these loans must {a) be made on terms that are substantially the
same as, and follow credit underwriting procedures that are not less stringent
than, those prevailing for comparable transactions with unaffiliated persons and
that do not involve more than the normal risk of repayment or present other
unfavorable features and {b) not exceed certain limitations on the amount of
credit extended to such persons, individually and in the aggregate, which limits
are based, in part, on the amount of the Bank’s capital. In addition, extensions
of credit in excess of certain limits must be approved by the Bank’s Board of
Directors. However, the Bank may make loans to executive officers, directors and
principal stockholders on preferential terms, provided the extensicn of credit
is made pursuant to a benefit or compensation program of the Bank that is widely
available to employees of the Bank or its affiliates and does not give preference
to any insider over other employees of the Bank or affiliate. The Bank has no
such benefit or compensation programs.

Enforcement. The FDIC and the Banking Department have enforcement
authority over the Bank. The Superintendent may order the Bank to appear and
explain an apparent violation of law, to discontinue unauthorized or unsafe
practices and to keep prescribed books and accounts. If any director or officer
of the Bank has violated any law, or has continued unauthorized or unsafe
practices in conducting the business of the Bank after having been notified by
the Superintendent to discontinue such practices, the New York Banking Board may
remove the individual from office after notice and an cpportunity to be heard.
The Superintendent also may take over control of the Bank under specified
statutory criteria.

The FDIC's enforcement authority includes, among other things, the ability
to assess civil money penalties, to issue cease and desist orders and to remove
directors and officers. As indicated above, the FDIC is required to take prompt
action to correct deficiencies in banks which do not satisfy specified FDIC
capital ratio requirements. Dividends, other capital distributions or the
payment of management fees to any controlling person are prohibited if, following
such distribution or payment, a bank would be undercapitalized. An
undercapitalized bank must file a plan to restore its capital within 45 days
after being notified that it is wundercapitalized. Undercapitalized,
significantly undercapitalized and critically undercapitalized institutions are
subject to increasing prohibitions on permitted activities, and increasing levels
of regulatory supervision, based upon the severity of their capital problems. The
FDIC is required to monitor closely the condition of an undercapitalized bank.
Enforcement action taken by the FDIC can escalate to the appointment of a
conservator or receiver of a critically undercapitalized bank.

Insurance of Accounts. Deposit insurance premiums payable to the FDIC are
based upon the perceived risk of the institution to the FDIC insurance fund. The
FDIC assigns an institution to one of three capital categorieg: (a) well
capitalized, (b) adequately capitalized or (c) undercapitalized. The FDIC also
assigns an institution to one of three supervisory categories based on an
evaluation by the institution’s primary federal regulator and information that
the FDIC considers relevant to the institution’s financial condition and the risk
posed to the deposit insurance funds. Deposit insurance premiums depend on an
institution’s capital and supervisory categories. At present, the Bank pays no
deposit insurance premium based upon its risk-based categorization.
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However, the Bank must pay a share of the cost of the bonds issued in the
late 1980s to recapitalize the now defunct Federal Savings and Loan Insurance
Corporaticn. The Bank must pay an annual assessment for this purpose, which for
fiscal 2006 and 2005 was equal to 0.0127% and 0.0444%, respectively, of its
insured deposits and which is recorded as a deposit insurance premium expense for
financial statement purposes. Beginning in 2007, the assessment was revised to
0.0122% of the Bank'’s insured deposits.

Reserve Requirements. The Bank must maintain non-interest-earning reserves
against its transaction accounts (primarily NOW and regular checking accounts) .
The Bank is generally able to satisfy reserve requirements with cash on hand and
cther non-interest bearing deposits which it maintains for other purposes, so the
reserve requirements do not impose a material financial burden on the Bank.

Governmental Policies. Our earnings are significantly affected by the
monetary and fiscal policies of governmental authorities, including the Federal
Reserve. BAmong the instruments of monetary policy used by the Federal Reserve
to implement these objectives are open-market operations in U.S. Government
securities and Federal funds, changes in the discount rate on member bank
borrowings and changes in reserve requirements against member bank deposits.
These instruments of monetary policy are used in varying combinations to
influence the overall level of bank loans, investments and deposits, and the
interest rates charged on loans and paid for deposits. The Federal Reserve
frequently useg these instruments of monetary policy, especially its open-market
operations and the discount rate, to influence the level of interest rates and
to affect the strength of the economy, the level of inflation or the price of the
dollar in foreign exchange markets. The monetary policies of the Federal Reserve
have had a significant effect on the operating results of banking institutions
in the past and are expected to continue to do so in the future. It is not
poseible to predict the nature of future changes in monetary and fiscal policies,
or the effect which they may have on our business and earnings.

Personal Holding Company Status. For the fiscal years ended December 31,
2006, 2005 and 2004, the Company has been deemed to be a Perscnal Holding Company
{a "PHC"), as defined in the Internal Revenue Code. Ag a PHC, we may be regquired
to pay an additional income tax or issue a dividend to our shareholders in an
amount based upon the PHC Internal Revenue Code formulas, which is primarily
based upon net income. No such dividend was required to be paid in fiscal 2006,
2005 and 2004. (See Dividends in Item 5).

Employees. On March 23, 2007, Berkshire had one full time employee and the
Bank employed approximately 100 full time and 5 part time employees. The Bank’s
employees are not represented by a collective bargaining unit, and the Bank
considers its relationship with its employees to be good.
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ITEM 1A. Rigk Factors.

Qur business faces significant risks. These risks include those described
below and may include additional risks and uncertainties not presently known to
us or that we currently deem immaterial. OQur business, financial condition and
results of operations could be materially adversely affected by any of these
risks, and the trading price of our common stock could decline.

We operate in the highly competitive banking industry and there can be no
assurance that we will be able to compete guccessfully.

Our ability to maintain our history of strong financial performance and
return on investment to shareholders may depend in part on our ability to expand
our scope of available financial services as needed to meet the needs and demands
of our customers. Our business model focuses on using superior customer service
to provide traditional banking services to a growing customer base. However, we
operate in an increasingly competitive environment in which our competitors now
include securities dealers, brokers, mortgage bankers, investment advisors and
finance and insurance companies who seek to offer one-stop financial services to
their customers that may include services that we have not been able or allowed
to offer to our customers in the past. This increasingly competitive environment
is primarily a result of changes in regulaticn, changes in technolegy and product
delivery systems and the accelerating pace of consolidation among financial
services providers. We cannot assure you that we will be able to continue to
compete successfully in this environment without expanding the scope of financial
services we provide, or that if we need to expand the scope of services that we
provide, that we will be able to do so successfully.

Our future success depends on our ability to compete effectively in a highly
competitive market and geographic area.

We face substantial competition in all phases of our operations from a
variety of different competitors. We encounter competition from other commercial
banks, savings and loan associations, mutual savings banks, credit unions and
other financial institutions. Our competitors, including credit unions, consumer
finance companies, factors, insurance companies and money market mutual funds,
compete with lending and deposit-gathering gservices cffered by us. There is very
strong competition for financial services in the New York state areas in which
we currently conduct our business. This geographic area includes offices of many
of the largest financial institutions in the world. Many of those competing
institutions have much greater financial and marketing resources than we have.
Due to their size, many competitors can achieve larger economies of scale and as
a result may offer a broader range of products and services than we do. If we are
unable to offer competitive products and services, our earnings may be negatively
affected. Some of the financial services organizations with which we compete are
not subject to the same degree of regulation as is imposed on bank holding
companies like ourselves and on federally insureéd financial institutions like our
banking subsidiary, The Berkshire Bank. As a result, these nonbank competitors
have certain advantages over us in accessing funding and in providing various
services. The banking business in our current primary market area is very
competitive, and the level of competition we face may increase further, which may
limit our asset growth and profitability.

Economic conditions either nationally or locally in areas in which our operations
are concentrated may be less favorable than expected.

Deterioration in local, regional, national or global economic conditions
could result in, among other things, an increase in loan delinquencies, a
decrease in property values, a change in housing turnover rate or a reducticn in
the level of bank deposits. Particularly, a weakening of the real estate or
employment market in our primary market areas could result in an increase in the
number of borrowers who default on their loans and a reduction in the value of
the collateral securing their loans, which in turn could have an adverse effect
on our profitability. Substantially all of our real estate loans are
collateralized by properties located in these market areas, and substantially all
of our loans are made to borrowers who live in and conduct business in these
market areas. Any material economic deterioration in these market areas could
have an adverse impact on our profitability.
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Changes in interest rates could reduce our income and cash flows.

Our income and cash flow and the value of our assets and liabilities depend
to a great extent on the difference between the interest rates earned on
interest-earning assets such as loans and investment securities, and the interest
rates paid on interest-bearing liabilities such as deposits and borrowings. These
rates are highly sensitive to many factors which are beyond our control,
including general economic conditions and policies of various governmental and
regulatory agencies, in particular, the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve
System. Changes in monetary policy, including changes in interest rates, will
influence the origination of loans, the returns on our portfolio of investment
securities and the amounts paid on deposits. If the rate of interest we pay on
deposits and other borrowings increases more than the rate of interest we earn
on loans and other investments, our net interest income, and therefore our
earnings, could be adversely affected. Our earnings could also be adversely
affected if the rates on our loans and other investments fall more guickly than
those on our deposits and other borrowings.

We operate in a highly regulated environment; changes in laws and regulations and
accounting principles may adversely affect us.

We are subject to extensive state and federal regulation, supervision, and
legislation which govern almost all aspects of our operations. These laws may
change from time to time and are primarily intended for the protection of
customers, depositors, and the deposit insurance funds. The impact of any changes
to these laws may negatively impact our ability to expand our services and to
increase the value of our business. Regulatory authorities have extensive
discretion in the exercise of their supervisory and enforcement powers. They may,
among other things, impose restrictions on the operation of a banking
institution, the c¢lassification of assets by such institution and such
institution’s allowance for 1loan losses. Regulatory and law enforcement
authorities also have wide discretion and extensive enforcement powers under
various consumer protection, c¢ivil rights and other laws, including the
Gramm-Leach-Blilely Act, the Bank Secrecy Act, the Truth-in-Lending Act, the
Equal Credit Opportunity Act, the Fair Housing Act and the Real Estate Settlement
Procedures Act. These laws also permit private individual and class action
lawsuits and provide for the recovery of attorneys fees in certain instances. Any
changes to these laws or any applicable accounting principles may negatively
impact our results of operations and financial condition. While we cannot predict
what effect any presently contemplated or future changes in the laws or
regulations or their interpretations would have, these changes could be
materially adverse to our investors and stockholders.

We are required to maintain an allowance for loan leosses. These reserves are
based on management’s judgment and may have to be adjusted in the future. Any
adjustment to the allowance for loan losses, whether due to regulatory changes,
economic conditions or other factors, may affect our financial condition and
earnings.

We maintain an allowance for leoan logses at a level believed adequate by
management to absorb losses inherent in the loan portfolio. In conjunction with
an internal loan review function that operates independently of the lending
function, management monitors the loan portfolic to identify risks on a timely
basis soc that an appropriate allowance can be maintained. Based on an evaluation
of the loan portfolio, management presents a periodic review of the loan loss
reserve to the board of directors of the Bank, indicating any changes in the
reserve since the last review and any recommendations as to adjustments in the
reserve. In making its evaluation, in addition to the factors discussed below,
management considers the results of recent regulatory examinations, which
typically include a review of the allowance for loan losses as an integral part
of the examination process.

In establishing the allowance, management evaluates individual large
classified loans and nonaccrual loans, and determines an aggregate reserve for
those loans based on that review. An allowance for the remainder of the loan
portfolioc is also determined based on histerical loss experience within the
components of the portfolic. These allocations may be modified if current
conditions indicate that loan losses may differ from historical experience, based
on economic factors and changes in portfolio mix and volume.
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In addition, a portion of the allowance is established for losses inherent
in the loan portfolio which have not been identified by the more quantitative
processes described above. This determination inherently involves a higher degree
of subjectivity, and considers risk factors that may not have yet manifested
themselves in historical loss experience. Those factors include changes in levels
and trends of charge-offs, delinquencies, and nonaccrual loans, trends in volume
and terms of loans, changes in underwriting standards and practices, portfolio
mix, tenure of loan officers and management, entrance into new geographic
markets, changes in credit concentrations, and national and local economic trends
and conditions. While the allowance for loan losses is maintained at a level
believed to be adequate by management for estimated losses in the loan portfelio,
determination of the allowance is inherently subjective, as it requires
estimates, all of which may be susceptible to significant change. Changes in
these estimates may impact the provisions charged to expense in future periods.
Federal and state regulatory authorities, as an integral part of their
examination processg, review our lcans and allowance for loan losses. We cannot
assure you that we will not increase the allowance for lecan losses or the
regulators will not require us to increase this allowance. Either of these
occurrences could negatively impact Berkshire Bancorp’s results of operations.

It may be difficult for a third party to acgquire us and this c¢ould depress our
common stock price.

Under our amended and restated certificate of incorporation, we have
authorized 2,000,000 shares of preferred stock, which the board of directors may
issue with terms, rights, preferences and designations as the board of directors
may determine and without any vote of the shareholders, unless otherwise required
by law. Issuing the preferred stock, depending upon the rights, preferences and
designations set by the board of directors, may delay, deter, or prevent a change
in control of the Company.

In addition, we have authorized 10,000,000 shares of common stock of which
approximately 7,700,000 shares have been issued and approximately 6,500,000
shares are outstanding. The price of ocur common stock may be volatile at times
since our common stock is thinly traded and one individual owns or controls more
than 50% of our outstanding shares. It may be difficult for a stockholder to sell
a significant number of shares at a time and at a price of their choosing or for
a third party to purchase sufficient shares on the open market to cause a change
in control of the Company, all of which could depress the price of Berkshire
Bancorp's common stock. )

In addition, federal and state banking laws may restrict the ability of the
stockholders to approve a mexrger or business combination or obtain control of the
Company. This may tend to make it more difficult for shareholders to replace
existing management or may prevent shareholders from receiving a premium for
their shares of our common stock.

Our common stock is not insured by any governmental agency and, therefore,
investment in them involves risk.

Our securities are not deposit accounts or other obligation of any bank,
and are not insured by the FDIC, or any other governmental agency, and are
subject to investment risk, including the possible loss of principal.

ITEM 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments.

Not Applicable
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ITEM 2. Properties.

The following are Berkshire’s and the Bank's principal facilities as of
March 9, 2007:

Approximate Approximate

Floor Area Annual Lease
Location Operationsg (Sg. Ft.} Rent Expiration
New York, NY Executive Offices 1,500 $ 18,000 (1) (3)
New York, NY Main Bank Office

and Bank Branch 9,700 Owned Feb 2008
Brooklyn, NY Bank Branch 4,500 $ 200,418 March 2008
Brooklyn, NY Bank Branch 2,866 $ 59,130 March 2008
Brooklyn, NY Bank Branch 2,592 $ 108,212 December 2012
Brooklyn, NY Bank Branch 1,640 $ 72,000 June 2015
New York, NY Bank Branch 9,924 $ 353,315 June 2010 (2) (3}
Goshen, NY Bank Branch 10,680 Owned
Harriman, NY Bank Branch 1,623 Oowned
Bloomingburg, NY Bank Branch 1,530 $ 20,871 August 2010
Ridgefield, NJ Bank Branch Owned
(1) Rented on a month to month basis from a company affiliated with Mr. Moges Marx, a
director of the Company.

{2) Leased from a company affiliated with Mr. Marx, a director of the Company.
(3) Management believes the annual rent paid is comparable to the annual rent that

would be paid to non-affiliated parties in a similar commercial transaction for
similar commercial space.

ITEM 3. Legal Proceedings.

In the ordinary course of operations, the Bank is a party to routine
litigation involving claims incidental to its banking business. Management
believes that no current litigation, threatened or pending, to which we or our
assets are a party, poses a substantial likelihood of potential loss or exposure
which would have a material adverse effect on the financial condition or results
of our operations.

ITEM 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders.
Not Applicable.
PART II

ITEM 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and
Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities.

The Company’s Common Stock trades on the Nasdag Global Market under the
symbol BERK. The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, the high
and low sales prices for the Company’s Commen Stock as reported by NASDAQ.

Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2005 High _Low

January 1, 2005 to March 31, 2005 22.04 19.51
April 1, 2005 to June 30, 2005 20.98 17.50
July 1, 2005 to September 30, 2005 18.75 17.02
October 1, 2005 to December 31, 2005 18.30 15.83
Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2006 High _Low

January 1, 2006 to March 31, 2006 17.35 14.82
April 1, 2006 to June 30, 2006 17.23 15.18
July 1, 2006 to September 30, 2006 17.00 15.31
Cctober 1, 2006 to December 31, 2006 17.12 15.14

As of the c¢lose of business on March 23, 2007, there were approximately
1,300 holders of record of the Company’s Common Stock.
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Dividends

For the fiscal years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, the Company
has been deemed to be a PHC, as defined in the Internal Revenue Code. As a PHC, -
we may be required to pay an additional income tax or issue a dividend to our
shareholders in an amount based upon applicable Internal Revenue Code formulas,
which is primarily based upon net income. No such dividend was required to be
paid in fiscal 2006, 2005 and 2004.

On March 23, 1999, the Board of Directors adopted a policy of paying
regular cash dividends in respect of the Common Stock of the Company, payable in
equal semi-annual installments. Pursuant to said policy, the Board of Directors
declared and the Company paid cash dividends, restated to reflect the reverse
split and stock dividend which occurred on May 18, 2004, as follows:

Par Share

Declaration Date Record Date Payment Date Amount

April 1, 2004 April 19, 2004 April 28, 2004 $ .05
October 5, 2004 October 22, 2004 Octobher 2%, 2004 s .06
March 21, 2005 April 22, 2005 April 29, 2005 $ .07
October 7, 2005 Octobher 21, 2005 Qctober 28, 2005 $ .08
March 9, 2006 April 18, 2006 April 27, 2006 5 .08
October 10, 2006 October 20, 2006 October 27, 2006 5 .08

The declaration, payment and amount of such dividends in the future are
within the discretion of the Board of Directors and will depend upon our
earnings, capital requirements, financial condition and other relevant factors.

On May 15, 2003, The Company’s Board of Directors authorized the purchase
of up to an additional 450,000 shares of its Common Stock in the open market,
from time to time, depending upon prevailing market conditions, thereby
increasing the maximum number of shares which may be purchased by the Company
from 1,950,000 shares of Common Stock to 2,400,000 shares of Common Stock. Since
1990 through December 31, 2005, the Company has purchased a total of 1,848,909
shares of its Common Stock. During fiscal year 2006, we purchased a total of
50,000 shares and at December 31, 2006 there were 501,091 shares of Common Stock
which may yet be purchased under cur stock repurchase plan. Certain information
concerning the 50,000 shares purchased in 2006 is set forth below.

ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES
Maximum Number {or

Total Mumber of Approximate Dollar
Total Shares (or Units) Value) of Shares
Kurber of Average Purchased as Part {or Units} that May
Shares (or Price Paid of Publicly Yet Be Purchased
Units) Per Share Announced Plans Under the Plans or
Purchased (or Unit) or Programs Programs
November 2006 50!000 215.80 50!000 501!091

BEquity Compensation Plans

See Part III, Item 12 for information concerning the Company’s equity
compensation plans.

18




PERFORMANCE GRAPH

The following graph compares the cumulative total return on the Company's
Common Stock with the cumulative total return of The Nasdag Stock Market Bank
Stocks Index and the Nasdag Market Total Return Index for the five-year period
ended December 31, 2006. The graph assumes that the value of the investment in
the Company and the index was $100 on December 31, 2001 and assumes that all
dividends were reinvested.
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ITEM 6. Selected Financial Data.

BERKSHIRE BANCORP INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Five Year Financial Highlights (a) (b)

The following is a summary of certain financial information with respect
to the Company at and for the fiscal years ended December 31, 2006, 2005, 2004,
2003 and 2002. This infeormation is derived from and should be read in conjunction
with the Company’s financial statements and notes thereto included elsewhere in

this Form 10-K.

Balance Sheet Data:
Total Assets

Loans, net

Investment securities
Goodwill, net
Deposits

Borrowings
Subordinated debt
Stockholders’ equity

Statement of Operations Data:
Interest income
Interest expense

Net interest income before
provision for loan losses

Provision for loan losses
Net interest income
Investment securities gains
Other income

Other expenses

Income before income taxes
Provision for income taxes
Net income

Net income per share:
Bagic

Diluted

Cash dividends per
common share

Selected Operating Ratios
Return on average assets
Return on average equity

Net interest margin

Average egquity/average assets

Allowance for loan
losses/total loans

December 31,

2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
(Dollars in thousands,except per share data)
$948,656 $977,452 $972,649 $905,669 $68B3,738
367,152 305,964 284,052 292,163 273,182
515,231 599,972 631,592 569,848 371,458
18,5459 18,549 18,549 18,549 18,549
681,489 680,260 619,888 604,255 473,818
115,390 156,245 223,352 192,136 104,372
22,681 22,681 15,464 -- -~
115,777 108,710 107,619 103,480 98,525
48,221 45,056 40,008 34,426 32,242
29,186 22,399 15,916 13,647 13,416
19,035 22,657 24,092 20,779 18,826
410 180 180 240 387
18,625 22,477 23,912 20,539 18,439
2,336 4 793 2,746 1,539
1,357 1,202 1,026 1,237 748
13,582 13,139 12,095 11,463 10,780
8,736 10,544 13,638 13,059 9,946
3,856 5,003 6,134 5,644 4,345
S 4,880 § 5,541 § 7,502 $ 7,415 S 5,597
5 .71 5 .81 § 1.12 s 1.12 § .81
S .70 $ .80 $§ 1.10 s 1.10 $ -81
S .16 5 .15 § .11 3 .09 § .07
0.5% 0.6% 0.8% 0.9% 0.9%
4.3% 5.1% 7.2% 7.2% 5.9%
2.2% 2.4% 2.6% 2.7% 3.3%
12.1% 11.1% 11.0% 12.7% 15.6%
1.0% 1.1% 1.0% 0.9% 0.8%

(a) The prior years’ amounts have been reclassified to conform to the current years’
presentation.
(b) The prior years’ net income per share and cash dividends per common share amounts have

been retrecactively restated to reflect the one-for-ten reverse stock split and thirty-
for-one forward stock split which occurred on May 18, 2004.
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ITEM 7. Managements’ Discuasion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results
of Operations.

The following discussion and analysis is intended to provide a better
understanding of the consolidated financial condition and results of operations
of Berkshire Bancorp Inc. and subsidiaries for the fiscal years ended December
31, 2006, 2005 and 2004. All references to earnings per share, unless stated
otherwise, refer to earnings per diluted share. The discussion should be read
in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements and related notes
(Notes located in Item 8 herein). Reference is also made to Part I, Item 1
"Business" herein.

Segments

Management has determined that the Company through its wholly owned bank
subsidiary, the Bank, operates in one business segment, community banking. The
Bank’s principal business activity consists of gathering deposits from the
general public and investing those deposits in residential and commercial
mortgage loans and commercial non-mortgage loans, both unsecured and secured by
perscnal property. In addition, the Bank invests those deposits in debt
obligations issued by the U.S. Government, its agencies, business corporations
and mortgage-backed securities.

General

Stock Split and Stock Dividend. At the Annual Meeting of Stockholders held on
May 18, 2004, the Company’'s stockholders approved the Reverse Split. Following
the effectiveness of the Reverse Split, the Company’s Board of Directors declared
a stock dividend which became effective immediately. The Company paid
approximately $463,000 to purchase fractional shares from stockholders as part
of the Reverse Split. The Company‘’s Common Stock began trading on May 19, 2004
giving effect to these transactions.

Trust Preferred Securities. As of May 18 2004, the Company established BCTI. The
Company owns all the common capital securities of BCTI. BCTI issued $15.0 million
of preferred capital securities to investors in a private transaction and
invested the proceeds, combined with the proceeds from the sale of BCTI's common
capital securities, in the Company through the purchase of $15.464 million
aggregate principal amount of the Floating Rate Junior Subordinated Debentures
issued by the Company. The Debentures, the sole assets of BCTI, mature on July
23, 2034 and bear interest at a floating rate, three month LIBOR plus 2.70%.

On April 1, 2005, the Company established BCTII. The Company owns all the
common capital securities of BCTITI. BCTII issued $7.0 million of preferred
capital securities to investors in a private transacticn and invested the
proceeds, combined with the proceeds from the sale of BCTII's common capital
securities, in the Company through the purchase of $7.217 million aggregate
principal amocunt of the 2005 Debentures issued by the Company. The 2005
Debentures, the socle assets of BCTII, mature on May 23, 2035 and bear interest
at a floating rate, three month LIBOR plus 1.95%. See Note A of Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements for a further discussion of Trust Preferred
Securities.

Branch Purchase

In September 2005, the Bank entered into an Agreement with Oritani, a New
Jersey Chartered Savings Bank. Pursuant to the Agreement, which ¢losed on May 12,
2006, the Bank (i) assumed certain commercial checking account deposit
liabilities and (ii) purchased certain fixed assets and the real property of this
Oritani bank branch located in Ridgefield, New Jersey for a cash purchase price
of $850,000. Following the closing of the transaction, the Bank opened a branch
of The Berkshire Bank at the Ridgefield, New Jersey location.




New Subsidiary

In August 2005, the Bank formed Berkshire 1031, a wholly owned limited
liability company. Berkshire 1031 will act as a qualified intermediary in
connection with tax free exchanges under Section 1031 of the Internal Revenue
Code of 1986, as amended. A qualified intermediary is an individual or business
entity that assists owners of property who wish to exchange their property for
property of a "like-kind" in a transaction that is tax free in whole or part for
federal (and in some cases state) income tax purposes. In accordance with
detailed procedures set forth in federal income tax regulaticons, Berkshire 1031
will assist the owner in the sale of the owner’s property and the purchase of
replacement property so that the transaction qualifies as a non-taxable exchange
of property.

Critical Accounting Policles, Judgments and Estimates

The accounting and reporting policies o¢f the Company conform with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America and
general practices within the financial services industry. The preparation of
financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America requires management tc make estimates and the
assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and the
accompanying notes. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

The Company considers that the determination of the allowance for loan
losses involves a higher degree of judgment and complexity than any of its other
significant accounting policies. The allowance for loan losses is calculated
with the objective of maintaining a reserve level believed by management to be
sufficient to absorb estimated credit losses. Management’s determination of the
adequacy of the allowance is based on pericdic evaluations of the loan portfolio
and other relevant factors. However, this evaluation is inherently subjective
as it requires material estimates, including, among others, expected default
probabilities, loss given default, the amounts and timing of expected future cash
flows on impaired loansg, mortgages, and general amounts for historical loss
experience. The process also considers eccnomic conditions, uncertainties in
estimating losses and inherent risks in the loan portfolioc. 2all of these factors
may be susceptible to significant change. To the extent actual outcomes differ
from management estimates, additional provisions for loan losses may be required
that would adversely impact earnings in future periods.

With the adoption of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards ("SFAS")
No. 142 ("SFAS No. 142") on January 1, 2002, the Company discontinued the
amortization of goodwill resulting from acquisitions. Goodwill is now subject
to impairment testing at least annually to determine whether write-downs of the
recorded balances are necessary. The Company teste for impairment based on the
goodwill maintained at the Bank. A fair value is determined for each reporting
unit based on at least one of three various market valuation methodologies. If
the fair values of the reporting units exceed their book wvalues, no write-down
of recorded goodwill is necessary. If the fair value of the reporting unit is
less, an expense may be required on the Company'’s books to write down the related
goodwill to the proper carrying value. As of December 31, 2006, the Company
completed its annual testing, which determined that no impairment write-offs were
necessary.

The Company recognizes deferred tax assets and liabilities for the future
tax effects of temporary differences, net operating loss carryforwards and tax
credits. Deferred tax assets are subject to management’s judgment based upon
available evidence that future realization is more likely than not. If management
determines that the Company may be unable to realize all or part of net deferred
tax assets in the future, a direct charge to income tax expense may be required
to reduce the recorded value of the net deferred tax asset to the expected
realizable amount.
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Discussion of Pinancial Condition and Results of Operations
Overview

Fiscal Year Bnded December 31, 2006 Compared to Fiscal Year Ended December
31, 2005. Net income was $4.88 million, or $.70 per diluted share, for the
fiscal year ended December 31, 2006, compared to $5.54 million, or $.80 per
diluted share, for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2005. Net loans increased
by approximately 20%. Investment securities and total assets decreased by
approximately 14% and 3%, respectively.

Piscal Year Ended December 31,

2006 2005 %
Inc/ (Dec}

{(In millions, except per share data and percentages)

Total Assets $948.7 5977.7 (3)%
Loans, net 367.2 305.9 20%
Investment Securities 515.2 600.0 (14} %
Total Liabilities 832.8 868.7 (4)%
Deposits 681.5 680.3 0%
Borrowings 138.1 178.9 {23}%
Btockholders’ Equity 115.8 109.0 6%
Total Income 51.9 46.3 12%
Interest Income 48.2 45.1 7%
Total Expense 42.8 35.5 21%
Interest Expense 29.2 22.4 30%
Net Interest Income 19.0 22.7 {16)%
Net Income 4.9 5.5 (11) %
Diluted Income Per Share .70 .80 {13) %

Bank Branches 11 10 -




Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2005 Compared to Fiscal Year Ended December
31, 2004. Net income was $5.54 million, or $.80 per diluted share, for the
fiscal year ended December 31, 2005, compared to $7.50 million, or $1.10 per
diluted share, for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2004. Net loans and total
assets increased by approximately 8% and 1%, respectively, and investment
securities decreased by approximately 5%.

Fiscal Year Ended December 31,

2005 2004 %

Inc¢/ (Dec)

{In millions, except per share data and percentages)

Total Assets $977.7 $972.6 1%
Loans, net 305.9 284.1 8%
Investment Securities 600.0 631.6 {(5)%
Total Liabilities 868.7 865.0 0%
Deposits 680.3 619.9 10%
Borrowings 178.9 238.8 (25) %
Stockholders’ Equity 109.0 107.6 1%
Total Income 46.3 41.8 11%
Interest Income 45.1 40.0 13%
Total Expense 35.5 28.0 27%
Interest ExXpense 22.4 15.9 41%
Net Interest Income 22.7 24.1 (€)%
Net Income 5.5 7.5 (27) %
Diluted Income Per Share .80 1.10 (27) %
Bank Branches 10 9 -

Net Interest Income

Net interest income, represents the difference between total interest
income earned on earning assets and total interest expense paid on interest-
bearing liabilities. The amount of interest income is dependent upon many
factors including: (i) the amount of interest-earning assets that the Company can
maintain based upon ite funding sources; (ii) the relative amounts of interest-
earning assets versus interest-bearing liabilities; and (iii) the difference
between the yields earned on those assets and the rates paid on those
liabilities. Non-performing loans adversely affect net interest income because
they must still be funded by interest-bearing liabilities, but they do not
provide interest income. Furthermore, when we designate an asset as non-
performing, all interest which has been accrued but not actually received is
deducted from current period income, further reducing net interest income.
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Changes in net interest income may also be analyzed by segregating the
volume and rate components of interest income and interest expense. The
following tables set forth certain information regarding changes in interest
income and interest expense of the Company for the years indicated. For each
category of interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities, information
is provided on changes attributable to (1} changes in rate (change in rate
multiplied by prior volume), (2) changes in volume {(changes in volume multiplied
by prior rate) and (3) changes in rate-volume (change in rate multiplied by
change in volume) (in thousands) :

Twelve Months Bnded December 31, 2006
Versus
Twaelve Months Bnded December 31, 2005
Increase (Decrease) Due To

Rate Volume Total

Interest-earning assets:

Loans $ 1,522 $ 2,923 $ 4,445
Investment securities 2,985 (4,313) (1,328)
Other 140 (92) 48
Total 4,647 (1,482) 3,165
Interest-bearing

liabilities:
Deposit accounts:

Interest bearing deposits 2,113 (1,469) 644
Time deposits 4,710 3,014 7,724
Other borrowings 2,121 (3,702) {1.581)
Total 8,944 _(2,157) 6,787
Net interest income $(4,297) $ 675 $(3,622)

Twelve Months Ended December 31, 2005
Versus
Twelve Months Ended December 31, 2004
Increase (Decrease) Due To

Rate Volume Total

Interest-earning assets:

Loans $ 843 s (269) $ 574

Investment securities 3,165 1,070 4,235
Other 60 175 239
Total 4,068 980 5,048
Interest-bearing

liabilities:
Deposit accounts:

Interest bearing deposits 1,007 (177) 830
Time deposits 2,728 800 3,528
Other borrowings 2,031 94 2,125
Total 5,766 717 6,483
Net interest income $(1,698) $ 263 $(1,435)
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Interest Rate Risk

Fluctuations in market interest rates can have a material effect on the
Company'’'s net interest income because the yields earned on leans and investments
may not adjust to market rates of interest with the same frequency, or with the
same gspeed, as the rates paid by the Bank on its deposits.

Most of the Bank’'s deposits are either interest-bearing demand deposits or
short term certificates of deposit and other interest-bearing deposits with
interest rates that fluctuate as market rates change. Management of the Bank
seeks to reduce the risk of interest rate fluctuations by concentrating on loans
and securities investments with either short terms to maturity or with adjustable
rates or other features that cause yields to adjust based upon interest rate
fluctuations. In addition, to cushion itself against the potential adverse
effects of a substantial and sustained increase in market interest rates, the
Bank has purchased off balance sheet interest rate cap contracts which generally
provide that the Bank will be entitled to receive paymentg from the other party
to the contract if interest rates exceed specified levels. These contracts are
entered into with major financial institutions.

As additional interest rate management strategy, the Bank borrows funds
from the Federal Home Loan Bank, approximately $52.74 million at December 31,
2006, at fixed rates for a period of one to five years.

We seek to maximize our net interest margin within an acceptable level of

interest rate risk. Interest rate risk can be defined as the amount of the
forecasted net interest income that may be gained or lost due to favorable or
unfavorable movements in interest rates. Interest rate risk, or sensitivity,

arises when the maturity or repricing characteristics of assets differ
significantly from the maturity or repricing characteristics of liabilities.

Provision for Loan Losses.

The allowance for loan losses is the estimated amount considered necessary
to cover credit losses inherent in the loan portfolio at the balance sheet date.
The allowance is established through the provision for loan losses that is
charged against income. In determining the allowance for lcan losses, management
makes significant estimates and therefore has identified the allowance as a
critical accounting policy. The methodology for determining the allowance for
lean losses is considered a critical accounting policy by management due to the
high degree of judgment involved, the subjectivity of the assumptions utilized,
and the potential for changes in the economic environment that could result in
changes to the amount of the recorded allowance for lcan losses.

The allowance for loan losses has been determined in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, under
which we are required to maintain an allowance for probable losses at the balance
sheet date. We are responsible for the timely and periodic determination of the
amount of the allowance required. Management believes that the allowance for loan
losses 1s adequate to cover specifically identifiable losses, as well as
estimated losses inherent in our portfolio for which certain losses are probable
but not specifically identifiable.

Management performs a quarterly evaluation of the adequacy of the allowance
for loan 1leosses. The analysis of the allowance for loan logses has two
components: specific and general allocations. Specific allocations are made for
loans determined to be impaired. Impairment is measured by determining the
present value of expected future cash flows or, for collateral-dependent loans,
the fair wvalue of the collateral adjusted for market conditions and selling
expenses. The general allocation is determined by segregating the remaining loans
by type of loan, risk weighting (if applicable} and payment history. Management
also analyzes historical loss experience, delingquency trends, general economic
conditions, geographic concentrations, and industry and peer comparisons. This
analysis establishes factors that are applied to the loan groups to determine the
amount of the general allocations. This evaluation is inherently subjective as
it requires material estimates that may be susceptible to significant revisions
based upon changes in economic and real estate market conditicns. Actual loan
losses may be significantly more than the allowance for loan losses management
has established which could have a material negative effect on the Company’s
financial results.




On a quarterly basis, the Bank’s management committee reviews the current
status of various loan assets in order to evaluate the adequacy of the allowance
for loan losses. In this evaluation process, specific lecans are analyzed to
determine their potential risk of 1loss. This process includes all loans,
concentrating on non-accrual and classified loans. Each non-accrual or classified
loan is evaluated for potential loss exposure. Any shortfall results in a
recommendation of a specific allowance if the likelihood of loss is evaluated as
probable. To determine the adequacy of collateral on a particular loan, an
estimate of the fair market value of the collateral is based on the most current
appraised value available. This appraised value is then reduced to reflect
estimated liquidation expenses.

The Company’s primary lending emphasis has been the origination of
commercial and residential mortgages and commercial and consumer lcoans and lines
of credit. The bank also originates home equity loans and home equity lines of
credit. These activities resulted in a loan concentration in commercial and
residential mortgages. As a substantial amount of our loan portfolio is
collateralized by real estate, appraisals of the underlying value of property
securing loans are critical in determining the amount of the allowance required
for specific loans. Assumptions for appraisal valuations are instrumental in
determining the wvalue of properties. Overly optimistic assumptions or negative
changes to assumptions could significantly impact the valuation of a property
securing a loan and the related allowance determined. The assumptions supporting
such appraisals are carefully reviewed by management to determine that the
resulting values reasonably reflect amounts realizable on the related loans.
Based on the composition of our loan portfolio, management believes the primary
risks are increases in interest rates, a decline in the economy, generally, and
a decline in real estate market values in the New York metropolitan area. Any one
or combination of these events may adversely affect our loan portfelio resulting
in increased delinquencies, loan losses and future levels of loan loss
provisions. Management congiders it important to maintain the ratio of our
allowance for lcocan losses to total loans at an adequate level given current
economic conditions, interest rates, and the composition of the portfolio.
Management believes the allowance for loan losses reflects the inherent credit
risk in our portfolio, the level of cur non-performing loans and our charge-off
experience.

Although management believes that we have established and maintained the
allowance for loan losses at adequate levels, additions may be necessary if
future economic and other conditions differ substantially from the current
operating environment. Although management uses the best information available,
the level of the allowance for loan losses remains an estimate that is subject
to significant judgment and short-term change. In addition, the Federal Deposit
Insurance Corporation, New York State Banking Department, and other regulatory
bodies, as an integral part of their examination process, will periodically
review our allowance for lecan losses. Such agencies may require us to recognize
adjustments to the allowance based on its judgments about information available
to them at the time of their examination.

For the fiscal years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005, we charged-off loans
of $42,000 and §$26,000, respectively, and recovered loans of $137,000 and
$185,000, respectively. All amounts recovered in fiscal 2006 and 2005 were
returned to the allowance for loan losses.

Results of Operations Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2006 Compared to Fiscal Year
Ended December 31, 2005.

General. References to per share amounts below, unless stated otherwise, refer
to diluted shares.

Net Income. Net income for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2006 was $4.88
million, or .70 per share, as compared to $5.54 millicn, or $.80 per share, for
the fiscal year ended December 31, 2005.

The Company’s net income is largely dependent on interest rate levels, the
demand for the Company’s loan and deposit products and the strategies employed
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to manage the interest rate and other risks inherent in the banking business.
The difference between the yield on short-term, 3 month U.S. Treasury Notes, and
long-term, 10 year U.S. Treasury Bonds, referred to as the yield curve is at
historic lows. 1Inflation fighting actions taken by the Federal Reserve Board
have moved short-term rates up while long-term rates have remained relatively
flat. The Company’'s rising cost of funds in 2006 on deposits and borrowings has
not been matched by the ability to increase the yields on assets.

Net Interest Income. The Company’s primary source of revenue isg net interest
income, or the difference between interest income on earning assets, such as
loans and investment securities, and interest expense on interest-bearing
liabilities such as deposits and borrowings.

For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2006, net interest income decreased
by $3.62 million to $19.04 million from $22.66 million for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2005. The year over year decrease in net interest income was the
result of the 113 basis point increase in the average rate paid on the average
amount of interest-bearing liabilities to 3.83% in 2006 from 2.70% in 2005 and
the smaller, 6B basis point increase in the average yield earned on the average
amount of interest-earning assets to 5.44% in 2006 from 4.76% in 2005. Also
contributing to the decrease in net interest income was the $60.61 million
decrease in the average amount of interest-earning assets to $886.16 million in
2006 from $946.77 million in 2005. Partially offsetting these factors was the
$66.43 million decrease in the average amount of interest-bearing liabilities to
$762.20 million in 2006 from $828.62 million in 2005.

The Company’s interest-rate spread, the difference between the average
yield on interest-earning assets and the average cost of interest-bearing
liabilities, narrowed by 45 basis points to 1.61% in 2006 from 2.06% in 2005.
This decline is primarily due to the change in deposit mix, the $71.90 million
increase in higher cost CD's and the $57.39 million decrease in lower cost, non-
maturity deposit accounts in 2006 compared to 2005. If the current rate
environment continues, we expect to see continued pressure on the Company's
interest-rate gpread and net interest income,

Net Interest Margin. Net interest margin, or annualized net interest income as
a percentage of average interest-earning assets, declined by 24 basis points to
2.15% in fiscal 2006 from 2.39% in fiscal 2005. We seek to secure and retain
customer deposits with competitive products and rates, while making strategic use
of the prevailing interest rate environment to borrow funds at what we believe
to be attractive rates. We invest such deposits and borrowed funds in a prudent
mix of fixed rate and adjustable rate loans, investment securities and short-term
interest-earning assets which provided an aggregate average yield of 5.44% and
4.76% in fiscal 2006 and 2005, respectively. The decrease in net interest margin
is primarily due to the decrease in net interest income, partially offset by the
decrease in average interest-earning assets.

The average amount of loans increased by $40.03 million to $327.21 million
in 2006 from $287.18 million in 2005, and the average yield on such loans
increased by 53 basis points to 7.29% in fiscal 2006 from 6.76% in fiscal 2005.
The average amount of investment securities decreased by $98.39 million to
$550.44 million in fiscal 2006 from $648.83 million in fiscal 2005. The average
vield on investment securities improved by 46 basis points, to 4.37% in 2006 from
3.91% in 2005. The average amount of other interest-earning assets, primarily
cash and short-term investments, decreased by $2.26 million to §8.51 million in
2006 from $10.77 million in 2005 and returned an average yield of 4.11% and 2.81%
in fiscal 2006 and 2005, respectively.

Interest Income. Total interest income for the fiscal year ended December 31,
2006 increased by $3.17 million, or 7.02%, to $48.22 million from $45.06 million
for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2005. The increase in interest income was
primarily due to the increase in the yields on interest-earning assets, partially
offset by the decrease in the average amount of total interest-earning assets.
Loans contributed $23.84 million of interest income in fiscal 2006, an increase
of 54.44 million from the $19.40 million of interest income contributed in fiscal
2005. Investment securities contributed $24.03 million of interest income in
fiscal 2006, a decrease of $1.33 million from the $25.36 million of interest
income earned on securities in fiscal 2005.




Fiscal 2006 Fiscal 2005

Interest % of Interest % of
Income Total Income Total
{(In thousands, except percentages)
Loans $23,844 49.45% $19,395 43.06%
Investment Securities 24,027 49.82 25,355 56.27
Other 350 6.73 302 0.67
Total Interest Income 548,221 100.00% $45, 0586 100.00%

Loans, which are inherently risky and therefore command a higher return
than our conservative portfolio of investment securities, grew to 36.92% of our
total average interest-earning assets in fiscal 2006 from 30.33% in fiscal 2005,
While we actively seek to originate new loans with qualified borrowers who meet
the Bank’s underwriting standards, our strategy has been to maintain those
standards, sacrificing some current income to avoid possible large future losses
in the loan portfolio.

Fiscal 2006 Flacal 2005
Average % of Average % of
Amount Total Amount Total
{(In thousands, except percentages)
Loans $327,210 36.92% $287,178 30.33%
Investment Securities 550,443 62.12 648,829 68.53
Other 8,509 0.96 10,765 1.14
Total Interest-Earning ARssets  $886,162 100.00% $946,772 100.00%

Interest Expense. Total interest expense for the fiscal year ended December 31,
2006 increased by $6.79 million, or 30.30%, to $29.19 million from $22.40 million
for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2005. The increase in interest expense was
due to the increase in the average rate paid on such liabilities, 3.83% and 2.70%
in fiscal years 2006 and 2005, respectively, partially offset by the decrease in
the average amount of interest-bearing liabilities. As short-term rates moved
higher during 2006, interest expense increased as we priced our deposit products
to meet the competition and the adjustable rates paid on other borrowings
increased as well. In April 2005 and May 2004, we sold $7.22 million and $15.46
million, respectively, of floating rate junior subordinated debentures which
mature in 2035 and 2034, respectively. The net proceeds of said sales were used
to augment the Bank’'s capital. The interest expense on these debentures, which
are included in other borrowings, was $1.77 million and $1.27 million during
fiscal 2006 and 2005, respectively.

Fiscal 2006 Fiscal 2005
Interest % of Interest % of
Expense Total Expense Total
(In thousands, except percentages)
Interest-Bearing Deposits § 5,283 18.10% $ 4,639 20.71%
Time Deposits 17,276 59.19 9,552 42.64
Other Borrowings 6,627 22.71 8,208 36.65
Total Interest Expense 5 29,186 100.00% $22,399 100.00%
Fiscal 2006 Fiscal 2005
Average % of Average % of
Amount Total Amount Total
(In thousands, except percentages)
Interest-Bearing Deposits $206,745 27.12% $264,130 31.88%
Time Deposits 410,729 53.89 338,834 40.89
Other Borrowings 144,722 18.99 225,657 27.23
Total Interest-Bearing Liabilities §762,196 100.00% $828,621 100.00%
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Non-Interest Income. Non-interest income consists primarily of realized gains
on gsales of marketable securities and service fee income. For the fiscal year
ended December 31, 2006, total non-interest income increased by $2.48 million to
$3.69 million from $1.21 million for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2005. In
2006, we recorded gains of $2.34 million on the sales and issuer redemptions of
investment securities. In 2005, such gains amounted to $4,000. Service charges
on deposit accounts were flat and other income increased by $156,000.

Fiscal 2006 Fiscal 2005
Non-Interest % of Non-Interest % of
Income Total Income Total
(In thousands, except percentages)
Service Charges on Deposits $ 588 15.92% $ 589 48.84%
Investment Securities gains 2,336 63.26 4 0.33
Other 769 20.82 613 50.83
Total Non-Interest Income $3,693 100.00% $1,206 100.00%
Non-Interest Expense. Non-interest expense includes salaries and employee

benefits, occupancy and equipment expenses, legal and professional fees and other
operating expenses associated with the day-to-day operations of the Company.
Total non-interest expense for the year ended December 31, 2006 increased by
$443,000, or 3.37%, to $13.58 million from $13.14 million for the year ended
December 31, 2005. The largest component of non-interest expense are salaries
and employee benefits which increased by $479,000 to $8.48 million in fiscal 2006
from $8.00 million in fiscal 2005. The increase is due to the addition of
personnel in our internal control and compliance departments.

Fiscal 2006 Fiscal 2005
Non-Interest % of Non-Interest % of
Expense Total Expense Total
(In thousands, except percentages)

Salaries and Employee Benefits $ 8,481 62.44% ¢ 8,002 60.90%
Net Occupancy Expense 1,961 14.44 1,728 13.15
Equipment Expense 108 0.80 397 3.02
FDIC Assessment 85 0.63 272 2.07
Data Processing Expense 366 2.69 198 1.51
Cther 2,581 19.00 2,542 19.35
Total Non-Interest Expense $13,582 100.00% $13,139 100.00%

Provision for Income Tax. During the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005, we
recorded income tax expense of $3.86 million and $5.00 million, respectively. The
tax provisions for federal, state and local taxes recorded for 2006 and 2005
represent effective tax rates of 44.14% and 47.45%, respectively.




Results of Operations Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2005 Compared to Fiscal Year
Ended December 31, 2004.

General. References to per share amounts below, unless stated otherwise, refer
to diluted shares.

Net Income. Net income for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2005 was $5.54
million, or $.80 per share, as compared to $7.50 million, or $1.10 per share, for
the fiscal year ended December 31, 2004.

The Company's net income is largely dependent on interest rate levels, the
demand for the Company’s loan and deposit products and the strategies employed
to manage the interest rate and other risks inherent in the banking business.
From June 2003 through June 30, 2004, interest rates, as measured by the prime
rate, remained constant at 4.00%. On July 1, 2004, inflation fighting actions
taken by the Federal Reserve Board with respect to short-term interest rates (the
only rates it can control) resulted in a 25 basis point increase in the prime
rate to 4.25%, the first such increase in short-term rates in more than four
years. Similar 25 basis point moves in the federal funds rate taken by the
Federal Reserve Board during 2004 and 2005, the most recent occurring on January
31, 2006, have moved the prime rate to its present level of 7.50%, the longest
sustained period of monetary policy tightening in more than a decade.

While short-term market rates have followed the upticks of federal funds,
long-term interest rates have declined during this period, a conditicon referred
to as a flattening yield curve. A flat or narrowing yield curve places a squeeze
on interest margins for financial institutions, like the Company, who depend upon
a spread between long- and short-term rates for interest margin profits and the
largest percentage of income.

Net Interest Income. The Company'’s primary source of revenue is net interest
income, or the difference between interest income on earning assets, such as
loans and investment securities, and interest expense on interest-bearing
liabilities such as deposits and borrowings.

For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2005, net interest income decreased
by $1.44 million, or 5.96%, to $22.66 million from $24.09 million for the fiscal
year ended December 31, 2004. The decrease in net interest income was the result
of the 28.84% growth in the average amount of interest-bearing liabilities to
$828.62 million during fiscal 2005 from $805.40 million in fiscal 2004 and the
72 basis point increase in the average rates paid on such liabilities to 2.70%
in 2005 from 1.98% in 2004. The decrease in net interest income was partially
offset by the 3.40% increase in the average amount of interest-earning assets to
$946.77 million during 2005 from $915.66 million in 2004 and the 39 basis point
increase in the average yields earned on such earning assets to 4.76% in 2005
from 4.37% in 2004.

Also contributing to the change in net interest income was the interest-
rate spread or the difference between the average yield on interest-earning
assets and the average cost of interest-bearing liabilities. During fiscal 2005,
the Company’s interest-rate spread decreased by 33 basis points to 2.06% from
2.39% during fiscal 2004. If interest rates remain at current levels or increase
glowly over time, we expect to see only moderate pressure on the Company’s
interest-rate spread and net interest income. Investment securities in our
portfolio that have been s0ld, matured or called by the issuer during fiscal 2004
and 2005 have been replaced with securities carrying somewhat higher yields and,
by design, shorter maturities to provide a hedge against a rising interest rate
environment. Rates paid on deposit accounts are likely to increase in a rising
rate environment due to competition for deposits in the market place. The cost
of borrowed funds with floating rather than fixed interest rates will increase
as well.

Net Interest Margin. Net interest margin, or annualized net interest income as
a percentage of average interest-earning assets, declined to 2.39% in fiscal 2005
from 2.63% in fiscal 2004. We seek to secure and retain customer deposits with
competitive products and rates, while making strategic use of the prevailing
interest rate environment to borrow funds at what we believe to be attractive
rateg. We invest such deposits and borrowed funds in a prudent mix of fixed rate
and adjustable rate loans, investment securities and short-term interest-earning
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assets which provided an aggregate average yield of 4.76% and 4.37% in fiscal
2005 and 2004, respectively.

The average amount of loans decreased slightly to $287.18 million in fiscal
2005 from $290.77 million in fiscal 2004, however, the average yield on the loan
portfolio increased by 29 basis points to 6.76% in fiscal 2005 from 6.47% in
fiscal 2004. During periods of low and stable interest rates borrowers gravitate
towards fixed-rate loans to lock in a low interest rate. Adjustable rate loans
are generally preferred when interest rates are trending higher as they did in
2004 and 2005. One-to-four family mortgage loans, approximately 45% and 54% of
our loan portfolio at December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively, are particularly
sensitive to changes in interest rates.

The average amount of investment securities increased by $28.32 million to
5648.83 million in fiscal 2005 from $620.51 million in fiscal 2004. The average
yield on investment securities improved by 51 basis points, to 3.91% in 2005 from
3.40% in 2004 and are likely to continue to increase in a rising interest rate
environment. The average amount of other interest-earning assets, primarily
short-term investments, increased by $6.39 million to $10.77 million in 2005 from
$4.38 million in 2004 and returned an average yield of 2.81% and 1.44% in fiscal
2005 and 2004, respectively.

Interest Income. Total interest income for the fiscal year ended December 31,
2005 increased by $5.05 million, or 12.62%, to $45.06 million from $40.01 million
for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2004. The increase in interest income was
primarily due to the growth in the average amount of total interest-earning
assets. Loans contributed $19.40 million of interest income in fiscal 2005, an
increase of $574,000 from the $18.83 million of interest income contributed in
fiscal 2004. Investment securities contributed $25.36 millicon of interest income
in fiscal 2005, an increase of $4.24 million over the $21.12 million of interest
income earned on lcoans in fiscal 2004.

Fiscal 2005 Figcal 2004
Interest % of Interest % of
Income Total Income Total
{In thousands, except percentages)
Loans 519,399 43.06% 518,825 47.05%
Investment Securities 25,355 56.27 21,120 52.79
Other 302 0.67 63 0.16
Total Interest Income $45, 056 100.00% $40, 008 100.00%

Loans, which are inherently risky and therefore command a higher return
than our conservative portfolic of investment securities, declined to 30.33% of
our total average interest-earning assets in fiscal 2005 from 31.76% in fiscal
2004. While we actively seek to originate new loans with qualified borrowers who
meet the Bank’s underwriting standards, our strategy has been to maintain those
standards, sacrificing some current income to avoid possible large future losses
in the loan portfolio.

Figcal 2005 Fiscal 2004
Average % of Average % of
Amount Total Amount Total
(In thousands, except percentages)
Loans $287,178 30.33% $290,774 31.76%
Investment Securities 648,829 68.53 620,511 67.77
Other 10,765 1.14 4,376 0.47

Total Interest-Earning Assets $946,772 100.00% $915,661 100.00%




Interest Expense. Total interest expense for the fiscal year ended December 31,
2005 increased by $6.48 million, or 40.73%, to $22.40 million from $15.92 million
for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2004. The increase in interest expense was
due to the growth in the average amount of interest-bearing liabilities and the
increase in the average rate paid on such liabilities, 2.70% and 1.98% in fiscal
years 2005 and 2004, respectively. As short-term rates moved higher during 2005,
interest expense increased as we priced our deposit products to meet the
competition and the adjustable rates paid on other borrowings increased as well.
In April 2005 and May 2004, we sold $7.22 million and $15.46 million,
respectively, of floating rate junior subordinated debentures which mature in
2035 and 2034, respectively. The net proceeds of said sales were used to augment
the Bank's capital. The additional interest expense on these debentures, which
is included in other borrowings, was $1.27 million and $463,000 during fiscal
2005 and 2004.

Fiscal 2005 Fiscal 2004
Interest % of Interest % of
Expense Total Expense Total
{In thousands, except percentages)
Interest-Bearing Deposits $ 4,639 20.71% $ 3,809 23.93%
Time Deposits 5,552 42.64 6,024 37.85
Other Borrowings 8,208 36.65 6,083 38.22
Total Interest Expense $ 22,3599 100.00% $15,916 100.00%
Fiscal 2005 Fiscal 2004
Average % of Average % of
Amount Total Amount Total
{(In thousands, except percentages)
Interest-Bearing Deposits $264,130 31.88% $272,219 33.80%
Time Deposits 338,834 40.89 309,968 38.49
Other Borrowings 225,657 27.23 223,208 27.71
Total Interest-Bearing Liabilities §828,621 100.,00% $805, 395 100.00%

Non-Interest Income. Non-interest income consists primarily of realized gains
on sales of marketable securities and service fee income. For the fiscal year
ended December 31, 2005, total non-interest income decreased by $613,000 to $1.21
million from $1.82 million for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2004. In 2004,
we recorded gains of $793,000 on the sales and issuer redemptions of investment
securities. In 2005, such gains amounted to $4,000. Service charges on deposit
accounts increased by $69,000 to $589,000 in fiscal 2005 from $520,000 in fiscal
2004.

Fiscal 2005 Fiscal 2004
Non-Interest % of Non-Interest % of
Income Total Income Total
{(In thousands, except percentages)
Service Charges on Deposits 5 589 48.84% 5 520 28.59%
Investment Securities gains 4 0.33 793 43.60
Other 613 50.83 506 27.81
Total Non-Interest Income $1, 206 100.00% $1,819 100.00%
Non-Interest Expense. Non-interest expense includes salaries and employee

benefits, occupancy and equipment expenses, legal and professional fees and other
operating expenses associated with the day-to-day operations of the Company.
Total non-interest expense for the year ended December 31, 2005 increased by
$1.04 million, or 8.63%, to $13.14 million from $512.10 million for the year ended
December 31, 2004. The largest component of non-interest expense are salaries
and employee benefits which increased by $1.12 million, or 16.21%, to $8.00
million in fiscal 2005 from $6.89 million in fiscal 2004. The increase is due
to the addition of personnel in our internal control and compliance departments.
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Fiscal 2005 Fiacal 2004

Non-Interest % of Non-Interest % of
Expense Total Expense Total
(In thousands, except percentages)
Salaries and Employee Benefits $ 8,002 60.90% S 6,886 56.93%
Net Occupancy Expense 1,728 13.15 1,538 12.72
Equipment Expense 397 3.02 357 2.95
FDIC Assessment 272 2.07 115 0.95
Data Processing Expense 158 1.51 157 1.30
Other 2,542 15.35 3,042 25.15
Total Non-Interest Expense 513,139 100.00% $12,095 100.00%

Provision for Income Tax. During the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004, we
recorded income tax expense of $5.00 million and $6.13 million, respectively. The
tax provisions for federal, state and local taxes recorded for 2005 and 2004
represent effective tax rates of 47.45% and 44.98%, respectively.

Investment Activities

General. The investment policy of the Bank is designed primarily to
provide satisfactory yields while maintaining adequate liquidity, a balance of
high quality, diversified investments, and minimal risk. The Bank does not as
a rule invest in equity securities. The largest component of the Bank's
gsecurities investments, representing more than 50% of total investment
gecurities, are debt securities issued by U.S. Government agencies including the
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation (Freddie Mac), the Federal National
Mortgage Association (Fannie Mae) or the Government National Mortgage Association
(Ginnie Mae) . The remainder of the Bank’s debt securities investments are
primarily short term debt securities issued by the United States or its agencies.
The Bank maintains a small portfolio of lesg than 34 million of high-yield
corporate debt securities. Recognizing the higher credit risks of these
securities, the Bank underwrites these securities in a manner similar to its leoan
underwriting procedures.

As required by the Statement of Financial Accounting Standard No. 115
("SFAS No. 115"}, securities are classified into three categories: trading,
held-to-maturity and available-for-sale. Securities that are bought and held
principally for the purpose of selling them in the near term are classified as
trading securities and are reported at fair value with unrealized gains and
losses included in trading account activities in the statement of income.
Securities that the Bank has the positive intent and ability to hold to maturity
are classified as held-to-maturity and reported at amortized cost. All other
securities are classified as available-for-sale. Available-for-sale securities
are reported at fair value with unrealized gains and losses included, on an
after-tax basis, as a separate component of net worth. The Bank does not have
a trading securities portfolio and has no current plans to maintain such a
portfolio in the future. The Bank generally classifies all newly purchased debt
securities as available for sale in order to maintain the flexibility to sell
those securities if the need arises. The Bank has a limited portfolio of
securities classified as held to maturity, represented principally by securities
purchased a number of years ago.
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Federal Home Loan Bank Stock.

The Bank owns stock of the Federal Home Loan

Bank of New York {(the "FHLBNY")} which is necessary for it to be a membexr of the
FHLBNY. Membership requires the purchase of stock equal to 1% of the Bank’'s

residential mortgage loans.

own stock at least equal to 5% of its borrowings.

If the Bank borrows from the FHLENY, the Bank must

The following table sets forth the cost and fair value of available-for-

sale and held-to-maturity securities as of the dates indicated:

Available-For-Sale
U.5. Treasury Notes
U.S. Government Agencies
Mortgage-backed securities
Corporate notes
Municipal securities

Marketable equity
gecurities and other

Total

Held-To-Maturity
U.S. Government Agencies

Total

Dacember 31,
2006 2005 2004 .
Cost Fair Cost Fair Cosat Falr
Value Value Valuea
{In thousands)
$ 5,002 $ 4,990 § 14,985 $ 14,899 $ 24,896 $ 24,722
322,986 317,164 448,196 439,645 471,018 467,271
67,472 65,853 81,681 79,686 149,822 109,330
44,366 44,038 54,590 52,304 21,089 21,627
5,698 7,187 1,972 2,306 1,307 1,441
75,419 75,566 _ 10,351 10,570 6,363 6,577
§520!943 §514E798 2611!775 2599!410 §G34!495 2630!968
$ 433 $ 436 $ 562 $ 573 $ 624 5 633
$ 433 $ 436 S 562 S S73 $ 624 5 633
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The following tables summarize the Company's available-for-sale and held-
to-maturity securities:

December 31, 2006

Weighted
Average
Yield Cost Fair Value

{(Dollars in thousands)

Available-For-Sale
U.5. Treasury Notes

Due after one year through five years 4.62% $§ 5,002 $ 4,990
5,002 4,990
U.S. Government Agencies Obligations
Due within one year 4.19 31,051 30,921
Due after one year through five years 4.14 200,964 197,212
Due after five years through ten years 4.61 76,931 75,325
Due after ten years 4.06 14,040 13,706
322,986 317,164
Municipal Obligations
Due after ten years 9.84 5,698 7,187
5,698 7,187
Mortgage-backed securities
Due after one year through five years 4.44 5,101 4,900
Due after five years through ten years 4.07 10,224 9,746
Due after ten years 5.00 £2,147 51,207
67,472 65,853
Corporate Notes
Due within one year .30 15,439 15,438
bue after one year through five years 5.80 7,036 7,027
Due after five years through ten years 4.00 5,000 4,483
Due after ten years 6.79 16,891 17,090
44,366 44,038
Common Stocks 0.46 329 420
Preferred Stocks 4.44 71,741 71,797
Money market funds 4.37 305 305
Federal Home Loan Bank Stock 6.25 3,044 3,044
75,419 75,566

§520,943  $s1s,708

Held-To-Maturity

U.S. Government Agencies Obligations
Due after five years through ten years 6.25 29 29
Due after ten years 6.58 404 407




Loan Portfeolio

Loan Portfolio Composition. The Company's loans consist primarily of
mortgage loans secured by residential and non-residential properties as well as
commercial loans which are either unsecured cor secured by personal property
collateral. Most of the Company’'s lcans are either made to individuals or
personally guaranteed by the principals of the business to which the loan is
made. At December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, the Company had total loans, net of
unearned income of $370.92 million, $309.23 wmillion and $286.98 million,
respectively, and an allowance for loan losses of $3.77 million, $3.27 million
and $2.93 million, respectively. From time to time, the Bank may originate
residential mortgage loans, sell them on the secondaxry market, normally
recognizing fee income in connection with the sale.

Interest rates on loans are affected by the demand for loans, the supply
of money available for lending, credit risks, the rates offered by competitors
and other conditions. These factors are in turn affected by, among other things,
economic conditions, monetary policies of the federal government, and legislative
tax policies.

In order to manage interest rate risk, the Bank focuses its efforts on
loans with interest rates that adjust based upon changes in the prime rate or
changes in United States Treasury or similar indices. Generally, credit risks
on adjustable-rate loans are somewhat greater than on fixed-rate loans primarily
because, as interest rates rise, so do borrowers’ payments, increasing the
potential for default. The Bank seeks to impose appropriate loan underwriting
standards in order to protect against these and other credit related risks
associated with its lending operations.

In addition to analyzing the income and assets of its borrowers when
underwriting a loan, the Bank cbtains independent appraisals on all material real
estate in which the Bank takes a mortgage. The Bank generally obtains title
insurance in order to protect against title defects on mortgaged property.

Commercial and Mortgage Loans. The Bank originates commercial mortgage
loans secured by office buildings, retail establishments, multi-family
residential real estate and other types of commercial property. Substantially
all of the properties are located in the New York City metropolitan area.

The Bank generally makes commercial mortgage leoans with leoan to value
ratios not to exceed 75% and with terms to maturity that do not exceed 15 years.
Loans secured by commercial properties generally involve a greater degree of risk
than one- to four-family residential mortgage loans. Because payments on such
loans are often dependent on successful operation or management of the
properties, repayment may be subject, to a greater extent, to adverse conditions
in the real estate market or the economy. The Bank seeks to minimize these risks
through its underwriting policies. The Bank evaluates the qualifications and
financial condition of the borrower, including credit history, profitability and
expertise, as well as the value and condition of the underlying property. The
factors considered by the Bank include net operating income; the debt coverage
ratio (the ratio of cash net income to debt service); and the loan to value
ratio. When evaluating the borrower, the Bank considers the financial resources
and income level of the borrower, the borrower’s experience in owning or managing
similar property and the Bank’s lending experience with the borrower. The Bank’'s
policy requires borrowers to present evidence of the ability to repay the loan
without having to resort to the sale of the mortgaged property. The Bank also
seeks to focus its commercial mortgage loans on loans to companies with operating
businesses, rather than passive real estate investors.

Commercial Loans. The Bank makes commercial lcans to businesses for
inventory financing, working capital, machinery and equipment purchases,
expansion, and other business purposes. These loans generally have higher yields
than mortgages loans, with maturities of one year, after which the borrower’s
financial condition and the terms of the loan are re-evaluated.

Commercial loans tend to present greater risks than mortgage loans because
the collateral, if any, tends to be rapidly depreciable, difficult to sell at
full value and is often easier to conceal. In order to limit these risks, the
Bank evaluates these loans based upon the borrower’s ability to repay the loan
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from ongoing operations. The Bank considers the business history of the borrower
and perceived stability of the business as important factors when considering
applications for such loans. Occasionally, the borrower provides commercial or
residential real estate collateral for such loans, in which case the value of the
collateral may be a significant factor in the loan approval process.

Residential Mortgage Loans (1 to 4 family leans). The Bank makes
residential mortgage loans secured by first liens on one-to-four family owner-
occupied or rental residential real estate. At December 31, 2006 and 2005,
approximately $143.62 million and $142.81 million, respectively, or 39% and 46%,
respectively, of the Company’s total loan portfolioc consisted of such locans. The
Company offers both adjustable rate mortgages ("ARMS") and fixed-rate mortgage
loans. The relative proportion of fixed-rate loans versus ARMs originated by the
Bank depends principally upon current customer preference, which is generally
driven by econcmic and interest rate conditions and the pricing offered by the
Bank’s competitors. At December 31, 2006 and 2005, approximately 14% and 4%,
respectively, of the Bank’s residential one-to-four family owner-occupied first
mortgage portfolio were ARMs and approximately 86% and 96%, respectively, were
fixed-rate loans. The percentage represented by fixed-rate loans tends to
increase during periods of low interest rates. The ARMs generally carry annual
caps and life-of-loan ceilings, which limit interest rate adjustments.

The Bank’s residential loan underwriting criteria are generally comparable
to those required by the Federal National Mortgage Association ("FNMA") and other
major secondary market loan purchasers. Generally, ARM credit risks are somewhat
greater than fixed-rate loans primarily because, as interest rates rise, the
borrowers’ payments rise, increasing the potential for default. The Bank's teaser
rate ARMs {ARMs with low initial interest rates that are not based upon the index
plus the margin for determining future rate adjustments) were underwritten based
on the payment due at the fully-indexed rate.

In addition to verifying income and assets of borrowers, the Bank obtains
independent appraisals on all residential first mortgage loans and title
insurance is required at closing. Private mortgage insurance is required on all
loans with a loan-to-value ratio in excess of 80% and the Bank requires real
estate tax escrows on such loans. Real estate tax escrows are voluntary on
residential mortgage loans with loan-to-value ratios of B0% or less.

Fixed-rate residential mortgage loans are generally originated by the Bank
for terms of 15 to 30 years. Although 30 year fixed-rate mortgage loans may
adversely affect our net interest income in periods of rising interest rates, the
Bank originates such loans to satisfy customer demand. Such loans are generally
originated at initial interest rates which exceed the fully indexed rate on ARMs
offered at the same time. Fixed-rate residential mortgage loans originated by
the Bank generally include due-on-sale clauses, which permit the Bank to demand
payment in full if the borrower sells the property without the Bank’'s consent.
Due-on-sale clauses are an important means of adjusting the rates on the Bank’s
fixed-rate mortgage loan portfolio, and the Bank will generally exercise its
rights under these clauses if necessary to maintain market yields.

ARMs originated in recent years have interest rates that adjust annually
based upon the movement of the one year treasury bill constant maturity index,
plus a margin of 2.00% to 2.75%. These loans generally have a maximum interest
rate adjustment of 2% per year, with a lifetime maximum interest rate adjustment,
measured from the initial interest rate, of 5.5% or 6.0%.

The Bank offers a variety of other leoan products including residential
single family construction loans to persons who intend to occupy the property
upon completion of construction, home equity loans secured by junior mortgages
on one-to-four family owner-occupied residences, and short-term fixed-rate
congumer loans either unsecured or secured by monetary assets such as bank
deposits and marketable securities or personal property.

Origination of Loans. Loan originations can be attributed to depositors,
retail customers, phone inquiries, advertising, the efforts of the Bank‘s loan
officers, and referrals from other borrowers, real estate brokers and builders.
The Bank originates loans primarily through its own efforts, occasionally
obtaining leoan opportunities as a result of referrals from loan brckers.




At December 31, 2006, the Bank'’s total capital, net of goodwill and loan
loss reserves, was approximately $99.17 million and thus it was generally not
permitted to make loans to one borrower in excess of approximately $14.89
million, with an additional amount of approximately $9.93 million being permitted
if secured by readily marketable collateral. The Bank was also not permitted to
make any single mortgage loan in an amount in excess of approximately $14.89
million. At December 31, 2006, the Bank was in compliance with these standards.

Delinquency Procedures. When a borrower fails to make a required payment
on a lecan, the Bank attempts to cause the deficiency to be cured by contacting
the borrower. The Bank reviews past due lcans on a case by case basis, taking
the action it deems appropriate in order to collect the amount owed. Litigation
may be necessary if other procedures are not successful. Judicial resolution of
a past due loan can be delayed if the borrower files a bankruptcy petition
because collection action cannot be continued unless the Bank first obtains
relief from the automatic stay provided by the Bankruptcy Code.

If a non-mortgage loan becomes delinquent and satisfactory arrangements for
payment cannot be made, the Bank seeks to realize upon any personal property
collateral to the extent feasible and collect any remaining amount owed from the
borrower through legal proceedings, if necessary.

It is the Bank’s policy to discontinue accruing interest on a loan when it
is 90 days past due or if management believes that continued interest accruals
are unjustified. The Bank may continue interest accruals if a loan is more than
90 days past due if the Bank determines that the nature of the delinguency and
the collateral are such that collection of the principal and interest on the loan
in full is reasonably assured. When the accrual of interest is discontinued, all
accrued but unpaid interest is charged against current period income. Once the
accrual of interest is discontinued, the Bank records interest as and when
received until the loan is restoréd to accruing status. If the Bank determines
that collection of the lcan in full is in reasonable doubt, then amounts received
are recorded as a reduction of principal until the loan is returned to accruing
status.
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Impaired loan balance, nonaccrual loans and loans greater than 90 days
still aceruing

The following table sets forth certain information regarding nonaccrual
loans, including the ratio of such loans to total assets as of the dates
indicated, and certain other related information. The Bank had no foreclosed
real estate during these periods and loans past due more than 90 days still
accruing were $0 and $74,000 at December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

December 31,

20086 2005 2004 2003 2002
(Dollars in Thousands)

Nonaccrual loans:

Commercial and $ - 5 -- § -- ] -- s --
professional loans
Consumer -- 3 1 -- --
Secured by real estate 201 253 342 109 59
Total nonaccrual loans 201 256 343 109 59
Accruing loans delingquent
90 days or more ) -- 74 50 -- --
Total nonperforming loans § 201 § 330 $ 393 §_109 ) 59
Total nonperforming loans
to total assets .02% .03% .04% .01% --
i—————— B L ——

The following tables present information regarding the Company‘s total
allowance for lcan losses as well as the allocation of such amounts to the
various categories of loans at the dates indicated ({(dollars in thousands):

December 31, 2006

Allowance
for Locan Percent of Percent of
Loases Allowance Total Loans
Commercial and
professiconal loans S 852 22.6% 0.23%
Secured by real estate
1 - 4 family 634 16.8 0.17
Multi family 54 1.4 0.01
Non-residential 2,166 57.5 0.58
Consumer and other 64 1.7 0.02
General allowance (1) -- == --
Total allowance
for loan losses § 3,771 100.0% 1.01%
(1) The allowance for loan losses is allocated to specific loans as necessary.

December 31, 2005

Allowance
for Loan Parcent of Percent of
Losses Allowance Total Loans
Commercial and
professional loans s 450 13.8% 0.15%
Secured by real estate
1 - 4 family 937 28.7 0.30
Multi family 38 1.2 0.01
Non-residential 1,784 54.6 0.57
Consumer and other 27 0.8 0.01
General allowance (1) 29 0.9 0.01
Total allowance
for loan losses g 3!266 100.0% 1.05%
(1) The allowance for loan losses is allocated to specific loans as necessary.
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December 31, 2004

Allowance
for Loan Percent of Percent of
Logses Allowance Total Loans
Commercial and
professional loans s 223 7.6% 0.08%
Secured by real estate
1 - 4 family 775 26.5 0.27
Multi family 62 2.1 0.02
Non-residential 1,398 47.8 0.49
Consumey and other 27 0.9 0.01
General allowance (1) 442 15.1 0.15
Total allowance
for loan losses $ 2,927 100.0% 1.02%
(1) The allowance for loan losses is allocated to specific loans as necessary.
December 31, 2003
Allowance
for Loan Percent of Percent of
Loases Allowance Total Loans
Commercial and
professional locans S 300 11.6% 0.10%
Secured by real estate
1 - 4 family 424 16.3 0.14
Multi family 89 3.4 0.03
Non-residential 1,198 46.2 0.41
Consumer and other 30 1.2 0.01
General allowance (1) 552 21.3 0.19
Total allowance
for loan losses $ 2,593 100.0% 0.88%

(1) The allowance for loan losses is allocated to specific loans as necessary.

December 31, 2002

Allowance
for Loan Percent of Percent of
Losses Allowance Total Loans
Commexcial and
professional loans 5 225 9.7% 0.08%
Secured by real estate
1 - 4 family 452 19.5 0.16
Multi family 121 5.2 0.04
Non-residential 888 38.4 0.32
Congsumer and other 55 2.4 0.02
General allowance (1) 574 24.8 0.21
Total allowance
for loan losses $ 2,315 100.0% 0.83%
(1) The allowance for lecan losses is allocated to specific loans as necessary.
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The following tables set forth information regarding the aggregate
maturities of the Company’s loans in the specified categories and the amount of
such loans which have fixed and variable rates.

December 31, 2006
Within 1l to After
1 Year 5 Years 5 Years Total
(In thousands)

Fixed Rate
Commercial and professional § B28 $ 32,036 $ 228 $ 33,092
Non-residential 32,325 30,405 17,482 80,212
Total fixed rate $ 33,153 $ 62,441 $§ 17,710 $ 113,304
Adjustable Rate
Commercial and profesgsional 12,957 13,827 3,45% 30,239
Non-regidential 20,816 11,818 52,334 84,968
Total adjustable rate $ 33,773 $§ 25,645 $ 55,789 $§ 115,207
Total S 66,926 S 88,086 § 73,499 § 228!511

The following table sets forth information with respect to activity in the
Company’s allowance for loan losses during the periods indicated (in thousands,

except percentages):

Years Ended December 31,

2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
Average loans ocutstanding §327,210 $287,178 $250,774 $291,586 $265,961
Rllowance at beginning
of periocd 3,266 2,927 2,593 2,318 2,030
Charge-offs:
Commercial and other
loans 42 26 24 4 199
Real estate loans -- -= .- 13 --
Total loans charged-off a2 26 24 17 199
Recoveries:
Commercial and other
loans 137 185 178 S5 97
Real estate loans - - - - - - - - - -
Total loans recovered 137 185 178 55 57
Net recoveries
{charge-offs} 95 159 154 38 {102}
Provision for loan losses
charged to operating
expenses 410 180 180 240 387
Allowance at end of period § 3,771 $ 3,266 § 2,927 § 2,593 $ 2,315
Ratio of net recoveries
{charge-offs} to average
loans outstanding .03% .06% .05% -01% (.03}%
Allowance as a percent
of total loans 1.01% 1.05% 1.02% 0.88% 0.83%
Total loans at end
of period $372,135 §310!335 22875763 2295!620 §276!252
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Deposits

The Bank concentrates on obtaining deposits from a variety of businesses,
professionals and retail customers. The Bank offers a number of different
deposit programs, including statement savings accounts, NOW accounts, money
market deposits accounts, checking accounts and certificates of deposits with
terms from seven days to five years. Deposit account terms vary according to the
minimum balance required, the time period the funds must remain on deposit and
the interest rate, among other factors. The Bank prices its deposit offerings
competitively within the market it serves. These products are designed to
attract new customers, retain existing customers and create opportunities to
offer other bank products or services. While the market and pricing for deposit
funds are very competitive, the Bank believes that personalized, quality service
is also an important element in retaining core deposit customers.

The following table summarizes the composition of the average balances of
major deposit categories:

December 31,
2006 2005 2004
Average Average Average Average Average Average
Amount  Yield Amount  Yield Amount  Yield
{Deollars in thousands)

Demand deposits $ 47,890 -- $ 44,739 -- $ 38,896 -
NOW and money market 35,141 0.61% 42,756 0.56% 47,677 0.65%
Savings deposits 171,604 2.95 221,374 1.99 224,542 1.55
Time deposits 410,729 4.21 338,834 2.82 309,968 1.94
Total deposits §6655364 3.39% 5647 ,703 2.19% §6215083 éégg%

The aggregate amount of jumbo certificates of deposit, each with a minimum
denomination of $100,000, was approximately $203.59 millicn, $203.72 millicon and
$109.74 million at December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

The following table summarizes the maturity distribution of time deposits
of $100,000 or more as of December 31, 2006:

{In thousands)

3 months or less $103,269
Over 3 months but within 6 months B4,426
Over 6 months but within 12 months 12,714
Cver 12 months 3,181

Total - $203,5390




Short-Term Borrowings

Securities sold under agreements to repurchase generally mature within 30
days from the date of the transactions. Short-term borrowings consist of
Treasury Tax and Loan Note Options and various other borrowings which generally
have maturities of less than one year. The details of these categories are
presented below:

Years Ended December 31,
2006 2005 2004
{Dollars in thousands)

Securities sold under repurchase
agreements and federal funds purchased

Balance at year-end $ 62,652 $ 73,044 $127,747
Average during the year $ 56,236 $108,785 $129,794
Maximum month-end balance $ 79,154 $145,489 §148,753
Weighted average rate during the year 3.75% 3.47% 1.87%
Rate at December 31 4.94% 3.59% 2.27%

Capital Resources and Liquidity
Licquidity

The management of the Company’s liquidity £focuses on ensuring that
sufficient funds are available to meet loan funding commitments, withdrawals from
deposit accounts, the repayment of borrowed funds, and ensuring that the Bank and
the Company comply with regulatory liquidity requirements. Liquidity needs of
the Bank have historically been met by deposits, investments in federal funds
sold, principal and interest payments on loans, and maturities of investment
securities.

For the parent company, Berkshire Bancorp Inc., liquidity means having cash
available to fund operating expenses and to pay stockhclder dividends, when and
if declared by the Company’s Board of Directors. The Company paid cash dividends
per share of $5.16, $.15 and $.11 in fiscal 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. The
ability to fund the Company'’s operations and to pay dividends is not dependent
upon the receipt of dividends from the Bank. At December 31, 2006, the Company
had cash of approximately $11.5 million and investment securities with a fair
market value of $15.9 million.

Contingent Liabilities and Commitments

The Bank maintains financial instruments with off-balance gheet risk in
the normal course of business to meet the financing needs of its customers. These
financial instruments include commitments to extend credit and stand-by letters
of credit. The following table presents the Company's commitments at December
31, 2006,

Expiration By Period

Less More
Than 1-3 3-5 Than
Total 1l Year Years Years 5 Years

{In thousands)

Lines of Credit $ 38,288 $ 11,148 $ 21,866 $ -- $ 5,274
Standby Letters
of Credit 3,423 3,423 -- -- --

Loan Commitments -- -- - - -

Total $ 41,711 § 14,571 5 21, 866 ) -- § 5,274
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Contractual Obligations

The following table presents the Company’'s contractual obligations at
December 31, 2006.

Payments Due By Periods

Less More
Than 1-3 3-5 Than
Total 1l Year Yoars Years 5 Years

{(In thousands)

Long-Term Debt $ 75,419 $ 9,302 $ 29,4386 $ 14,000 § 22,681
Qperating Leases 3,551 867 1,234 976 474
Time Deposits 423,712 418,413 5,297 2 --

Total Contractual

Obligations $502,682 $428,582 $§ 35,967 § 14,578 § 23,155

The Company currently has two unconsolidated subsidiaries and no special
purpose entities.

Capital

The capital ratios of the Bank and the Company are presently in excess of
the requirements necessary to meet the "well capitalized" capital category
established by bank regulators. See Note P to the Conseclidated Financial
Statements.

Interest Rate Risk

Fluctuations in market interest rates can have a material effect on the
Bank'’s net interest income because the yields earned on loans and investments may
not adjust to market rates of interest with the same frequency, or with the same
speed, as the rates paid by the Bank on its deposits.

Most of the Bank’'s deposits are either interest-bearing demand deposits or
short term certificates of deposit and other interest-bearing deposits with
interest rates that fluctuate as market rates change. Management of the Bank
seeks to reduce the risk of interest rate fluctuations by concentrating on loans
and securities investments with either short terms to maturity or with adjustable
rates or other features that cause yields to adjust based upon interest rate
fluctuations. In addition, to cushion itself against the potential adverse
effects of a substantial and sustained increase in market interest rates, the
Bank has purchased off balance sheet interest rate cap contracts which generally
provide that the Bank will be entitled to receive payments from the other party
to the contract if interest rates exceed specified levels. These contracts are
entered into with major financial institutions. .

The Company seeks to maximize its net interest margin within an acceptable
level of interest rate risk. Interest rate risk can be defined as the amount of
the forecasted net interest income that may be gained or lost due to favorable
or unfavorable movements in interest rates. Interest rate risk, or sensitivity,
arises when the maturity or repricing characteristics of assets differ
significantly from the maturity or repricing characteristics of liabilities.
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Impact of Inflation and Changing Prices

The Company’s financial statements measure financial position and operating
results in terms of historical dollars without considering the changes in the
relative purchasing power of money over time due to inflation. The impact of
inflation is reflected in the increasing cost of the Company’s operations. The
assets and liabilities of the Company are largely monetary. As a result,
interest rates have a greater impact on the Company’s performance than do the
effects of general levels of inflation. In addition, interest rates do not
necessarily move in the direction, or to the same extent as the price of goods
and services. However, in general, high inflation rates are accompanied by
higher interest rates, and vice versa.

New Accounting Pronocuncements
Accounting For Fair Value Measurement

In September 2006 the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, "Fair Value Measurements."
The Statement is effective for all financial statements issued for fiscal years
beginning after November 15, 2007. The Statement defines fair value as the price
that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date,
establishes a framework for measuring fair value, and expands disclosures about
fair value measurements. Adoption of SFAS No. 157 is not expected to have a
material impact on the Company’s results of operations or financial condition.

Accounting For Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement Plans

In September 2006, the FASE issued SFAS No. 158, "Employers’ Accounting for
Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement Plans." The Statement requires
an employer that is a business entity and sponsors one or more single-employer
defined benefit plans to: (1) recognize the funded status of a benefit plan -
measured as the difference between plan assets at fair value and the benefit
cbligation - in its statement of financial position, with the corresponding
credit or charge, net of taxes, upon initial adoption to Other Comprehensive
Income; (2} recognize as a component of other comprehensive income, net of tax,
the gains or losses and prior service costs or credits that arise during the
pericd but are not recognized as components of net periodic benefit cost pursuant
to SFAS No. 87, '"Employers' Accounting for Pensions", or SFAS No. 106,
"Employers’ Accounting for Postretirement Benefits Other Than Pensions"; (3)
measure defined benefit plan assets and obligations as of the date of the
employer’s fiscal year end; and (4) expand disclosures in the notes to the
financial statements about certain effects on net periodic benefit cost. The
Statement also amends SFAS No. 132 (revised 2003), "Employers’ Disclosures about
Pensions and Other Postretirement Benefits", and SFAS No. 88, "Employers'’
Accounting for Settlements and Curtailments of Defined Benefit Pension Plans for
Termination Benefits". An employer who has publicly traded equity securities,
such as the Company, is required to initially recognize the funded status of a
defined benefit postretirement plan and to provide the required disclosures as
of the end of its first fiscal year ending after December 15, 2006. For the
Company, this is for the year ended December 31, 2006. The requirement to measure
plan assets and benefit obligations as of the date of the employer’s fiscal year
end is effective for fiscal years ending after December 15, 2008. Based upon the
advice of our consultants, management believes that the adoption of this
statement for the year ended December 31, 2006 will have no significant effect
on Other Comprehensive Income and stockholders’' equity.

Accounting For Uncertainty in Income Taxes

On July 13, 2006, the FASB issued FASBE Interpretation No. 48, "Accounting
for Uncertainty in Income Taxes" ("FIN 48"): an interpretation of FASB No. 109.
FIN 48 clarifies the accounting for uncertainty involved in the recognition and
measurement of a tax position taken or expected to be taken in a tax return. FIN
48 also provides guidance on derecognition, measurement, classification, interest
and penalties, accounting in interim periods, disclosure, and transition. FIN 48
is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2006.
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We are currently assessing the impact of FIN 48 on our consolidated
financial statements and expect that the adoption of FIN 48 by the Company will
result in a decrease in our tax reserves of approximately $950,000 and a
corresponding increase to stockholders’ equity as of January 1, 2007.

Accounting For Financial Assets

In March 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 156, "Accounting for Servicing of
Financial Assets-an amendment of FASB Statement No. 140." This statement requires
an entity to recognize a servicing asset or servicing liability each time it
undertakes an obligation to service a financial asset, and that the servicing
assets and servicing liabilities be initially measured at fair wvalue. The
statement also permits an entity to choose a subsequent measurement method for
each class of separately recognized servicing assets and servicing liabilities.
SFAS No. 156 is effective as of the beginning of the fiscal year that begins
after September 15, 2006. The application of SFAS No. 156 is not expected to have
a material impact on the Company’s financial condition or results of operations.

In February 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 155, "Accounting for Certain
Hybrid Financial Instruments.” The Statement amends SFAS No. 133, "Accounting for
Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities" and SFAS No.140, "Accounting for
Transfers and Servicing of Financial Assets and Extinguishments of Liabilities."
The Statement also resolves issues addressed in SFAS No. 133 Implementation Issue
No. D1, "Application of Statement 133 to Beneficial Interest in Securitized
Financial Assets." SFAS No. 155 permits fair value remeasurement for any hybrid
financial instrument that contains an embedded derivative that otherwise would
require bifurcation, clarifies which interest-only strips and principal-only
strips are not subject to the recuirements of SFAS No. 133, establishes a
requirement to evaluate interests in securitized financial assets to identify
interests that are freestanding derivatives or that are hybrid financial
instruments that contain as embedded derivative requiring bifurcation, and
clarifies that concentrations of credit risk in the form of subordination are not
embedded derivatives. The Statement eliminates the interim guidance in SFAS No.
133 Implementation Issue No. D1, which provided that beneficial interests in
securitized financial assets are not subject to the provisions of SFAS No. 133.

In October 2006, the FASB recommended a narrow scope exception for asset
backed securities, including mortgage-backed securities, created from pools of
loans containing embedded call features, that (a) only contain an embedded
derivative that is tied to the prepayment risk of the underlying prepayable
financial assets, and (b) the investor does not control the right to accelerate
the settlement. The Statement is effective for all financial instruments
acquired or issued after the beginning of an entity’'s first fiscal year that
begins after September 15, 2006. Since the Statement is effective for purchases
made by the Company after December 31, 2006, management is unable, at this time,
to determine the impact of this statement.

Accounting For Prior Year Miasstatements

In September 2006, the SEC staff issued Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 108,
"Considering the Effects of Prior Year Misstatements when Quantifying
Misstatements in Current Year Financial Statements." SAB 108 was issued to
provide consistency between how registrants quantify financial statement
misstatements. Historically, there have been two widely-used methods for
quantifying the effects of financial statement misstatements. These methods are
referred to as the "roll-over" and "iron curtain" method. The roll-over method
quantifies the amount by which the current year income statement is misstated.
Exclusive reliance on an income statement approach can result in the accumulation
of errors on the balance sheet that may not have been material to any individual
income statement, but which may misstate one or more balance sheet accounts. The
iron curtain method quantifies the error as the cumulative amount by which the
current year balance sheet is misstated. Exclusive reliance on a balance sheet
approach can result in disregarding the effects of errors in the current year
income statement that results from the correction of an error existing in
previously issued financial statements. We currently use the roll-over method
for quantifying identified financial statement misstatements.
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SAB 108 established an approach that requires quantification of financial
statement misstatements based on the effects of the migstatement on each of the
Company’s financial statements and the related financial statement disclosures.
This approach is commonly referred to as the "dual approach" because it requixes
quantification of errors under both the roll-over and iron curtain methods. SAB
108 allows registrants to initially apply the dual apprcach either by (1)
retroactively adjusting prior financial statements as if the dual approach had
always been used or by (2) recording the cumulative effect cf initially applying
the dual approach as adjustments to the carrying values of assets and liabilities
as of January 1, 2006 with an offsetting adjustment recorded to the opening
balance of retained earnings. Use of this "cumulative effect" transition method
requires detailed disclosure of the nature and amount of each individual error
being corrected through the cumulative adjustment and how and when it arose. SAB
108 is effective for fiscal years ending after November 15, 2006. The Company
does not expect the adoption of SAB 108 will have a material effect on the
Company's results of operations or financial condition as management is not aware
of any prior year misstatements in the Company’s financial statements.

Accounting FPor Stock Based Compensation

In December 2004, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (the "FASB")
issued Statement No. 123 (revised 2004), "Share-Based Payment" ("SFAS 123(R)")
which requires the measurement and recognition of compensation expense for all
stock-based compensation payments and supersedes the Company’'s previous
accounting under Accounting Principals Board Opinion No. 25, "Accounting fer
Stock Issued to Employees" (APB 25). SFAS 123(R) is effective for all annual
periods beginning after June 15, 2005 or our fiscal year 2006. In March 2005,
the Securities and Exchange Commission (the "SEC") issued Staff Accounting
Bulletin No. 107 ("SAB 107"} relating to the adoption of SFAS 123(R).

The Company adopted SFAS 123 (R) in the first quarter of fiscal year 2006.
The adoption of SFAS 123 (R) did not have an impact on its operating results and
financial condition because the Company made no stock-based compensation payments
in fiscal 2006. The pro forma information presented in Note B9, Stock Based
Compensation, presents the estimated compensation charges under Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards No. 123, "Accounting for Stock-Based
Compensation.”

At December 31, 2006, the Company has one stock-based employee compensation
plan. The Company accounted for that plan under the recognition and measurement
principles of APB 25 and related interpretations. Stock-based employee
compensation costs were not reflected in net income, as all options granted under
the plan had an exercise price equal toc the market value of the underlying common
stock on the date of the grant. The Company did not grant stock options during
2006, 2005 and 2004, and we have no plans to grant significant stock options, if
any, in 2007. Therefore, we do not expect the implementation of FAS 123(R) to
affect our financial position or results of operations in the near future.

The Meaning of Other-Than-Temporary Impairment and Its Application to Certain
Investments

In November 2003, the Emerging Issues Task Force (the "EITF") of the FASB
issued EITF Abstract 03-1, "The Meaning of Other-Than-Temporary Impairment and
its Application to Certain Invegtmentg" (EITF Issue No. 03-1). In March 2004, the
EITF reached a consensus on EITF Issue No. 03-1 and in September 2004, the FASB
issued a proposed Board-directed FASB Staff Position (an "FSE"), FSP EITF 03-1l-a,
"Implementation Guidance for the Application of Paragraph 16 of EITF Issue No.
03-1" (FSP EITF 03-1-a). The guidance in FSP EITF 03-1-a is applicable for
investments in (a} debt and equity securities that are within the scope of SFAS
Nos. 115 and 124, and (b) equity securities that are not subject to the scope of
FAS 115 and 124 and not accounted for under the equity method of accounting,
"cost-method investments."

The final FSP, retitled FSP FAS 115-1 and FAS 124-1 "The Meaning of
Other-Than-Temporary Impairment and Its Application to Certain Investments,"
nullifies certain requirements of EITF No. 03-1 and supersedes EITF Topic No.
D-44, "Recognition of Other-Than-Temporary Impairment upon the Planned Sale of
a Security Whose Cost Exceeds Fair Value." FSP FAS 115-1 and FAS 124-1
specifically (a) nullifies the requirements of paragraphs 10-18 of EITF No. 03-1,
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(b} carries forward the requirements of paragraphs 8 and $ with respect to cost-
method-investments and the disclosure requirements included in paragraphs 21 and
22 of EITF No. 03-1 and related examples, and {(c) references existing other-than-
temporary impairment guidance. FSP FAS 115-1 and FAS 124-1 establishes a
three-step approach for determining when an investment is considered impaired,
whether that impairment is other than temporary, and the measurement of an
impairment loss.

Application of the guidance in FSP FAS 115-1 and FAS 124-1, applicable to
reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2005, did not have a material
adverse effect on our consolidated financial statements.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

The current objective of the Company’'s Internal Control Program is to allow
the Bank and management to comply with Part 363 of the FDIC’'s regulations
("FDICIA") and to allow the Company to comply with Section 302 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (the "Act"). In November 2005, the FDIC amended Part
363 of its regulations by raising the asset-size thresheold from $500 million to
$1 billion for internal control assegssments by management and external auditors.
The final rule was effective December 28, 2005.

Section 302 of the Act requires the CEOs and CFOs of the Company to (i)
certify that the annual and gquarterly reports filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission are accurate and (ii) acknowledge that they are responsible
for establishing, maintaining and periodically evaluating the effectiveness of
the disclosure controls and procedures. Section 404 of the Act requires
management to (i} report on internal control over financial reporting, (ii)
agsess the effectiveness of such internal contreols, and (iii) obtain an external
auditor’s report on management’s assessment of its internal control. The Company
is not an accelerated filer as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934. Therefore, the Company is not required to comply with Section 404
until the year ending December 31, 2007.

The Committee of Sponsoring Organizations (CO50} methodology may be used
to document and test the internal controls pertaining to the accuracy of Company
issued financial statements and related disclosures. COS0 requires a review of
the control environment (including anti-fraud and audit committee effectiveness),
risk assessment, control activities, information and communication, and ongoing
monitoring.

ITEM 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosure About Market Risk.

See Item 7. Managements’ Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations - Interest Rate Risk

ITEM 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data.

52




Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Board of Directors and Shareholders
of Berkshire Bancorp Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Berkshire Bancorp
Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2006 and 2005, and the related
consolidated statements of income, stockholders’' equity and cash flows for each
of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2006. These financial
statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility
is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company
Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement. The Company is not required to
have, nor were we engaged to perform an audit of its internal control over
financial reporting. Our audit included consideration of internal control over
financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal contreol over financial
reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all
material respects, the consolidated financial position of Berkshire Bancorp Inc.
and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2006 and 2005, and the consclidated results
of their operations and their consolidated cash flows for each of the three years
in the period ended December 31, 2006, in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

/&/ GRANT THORNTON LLP

New York, New York
March 28, 2007
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"BERKSHIRE BANCORP INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(Dollars in Thousands)

December 31, December 31,

2008 2005
ASSETS
Cash and due from banks S 8,061 3 9,825
Interest bearing deposits 4,950 4,457
Federal funds scld 11,300 13,600
Total cash and cash equivalents 24,311 27,882
Investment Securities:
Available-for-sale 514,798 599,410
Held-to-maturity, fair wvalue of $436
in 2006 and $573 in 2005 433 562
Total investment securities 515,231 599,972
Loans, net of unearned income 370,923 309,230
Legs: allowance for loan losses (3,771) (3,266)
Net loans 367,152 305,964
Accrued interest receivable 6,397 6,784
Premises and equipment, net 9,338 8,602
Goodwill, net 18,549 18,549
Other assets 7,678 9,699
Total assets $ 948,656 $ 977,452
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Deposits:
Non-interest bearing $ 49,418 $ 50,269
Interest bearing 632,071 629,891
Total deposits 681,489 680,260
Securities sold under agreements to repurchase 62,652 73,044
Long term borrowings 52,738 83,201
Subordinated debt 22,681 22,681
Accrued interest payable 8,110 5,731
Other liabilities 5,209 3,825
Total liabilities 832,879 868,742
Stockholders’ equity
Preferred stock - $.10 Par value: -- --
2,000,000 shares authorized - none issued
Common stock - $.10 par value
Authorized -- 10,000,000 shares
Issued -- 7,698,285 shares
Cutstanding --
December 31, 2006, 6,877,881 shares
December 31, 2005, 6,890,556 shares 770 770
Additional paid-in capital 90,659 90,594
Retained earnings 37,285 33,504
Accumulated other comprehensive loss, net (4,772) (8,415)
Treasury Stock
December 31, 2006, 820,404 shares
December 31, 2005, 807,729 shares (8,165) (7,743}
Total stockholders’ equity 115,777 108,710
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $ 948,656 $ 977,452

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements
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BERKSHIRE BANCORP INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
{(In Thousands, Except Per Share Data)

For The Years Ended

Daecember 31,

2006
INTEREST INCOME
Federal funds sold and interest bearing deposits $ 350
Investment securities 24,027

Loans, including related fees 23,844

Total interest income

INTEREST EXPENSE

48,221

Deposits 22,559
Short-term borrowings 2,110

Long-term borrowings 4,517

Total interest expense 25,186
Net interest income 19,035
PROVISION FOR LOAN LOSSES 410

Net interest income after

provision for loan losses 18,625

NON-INTEREST INCOME

Service charges on deposit accounts 588
Investment securities gains 2,336
Other income 769
Total non-interest income 3,693

NON-INTEREST EXPENSE

Salaries and employee benefits 8,481
Net occupancy expense 1,861
Equipment expense 108
FDIC assessment 85
Data processing expense 366
Other 2,581

Total non-interest expense 13,582

Income before provision for income taxes 8,736

Provision for income taxes 3,856

Net income $ 4,880
Net income per share:

Basic 5 .71
Diluted $ .70

Number of shares used to compute
net income per share:

Bagic 6,891

$
Diluted 6,876
Dividends per share 8 .16

2005

$ 302
25,355
19,389

45,056

14,191
3,167
5,061

22,399
22,657
180

22,477

— i

SE9

613

1,206

8,002
1,728
357
272
isg
3,542

——a 22
13,139

10,544

5,003

§ 5,541

6,805

6,938

$ .15

2004

$ 63
21,120

18,825

40,008

9,833
2,422

3,661

15,516
24,092

180

23,5812

520
793
506

1,815

6,886
1,538
357
115
157

1,042

12,095
13,636

6,134

g 7,502

§ 1.12
$ 1.10

6,672

6,848

$ .11

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements

55




LLL SIS
(660 T}

£E¥9 't

¥8
6VE

{o6L)
088'%
0TIL'BOTS

{ozo't)

(€18°5)

L69

9891

I%S'S

619°L0T
(s€Ly

(LLE'E)

(E9%)

(69)
TLZ'T
TO0S L
06%"€0TS

X3Tube
,B19pTOYYDI0E

Te30L

95

giuewe3e3s esegy yo 3aed reabequi uw eaw gejou Burfuwdwooow eyl

(S91'8) § Sez'Lt § (ZLL'®)3 659063 0LLS
(660 1) -
£25'8 3
tv9°¢ £E¥9'E
¥8
89€E {61)
(06L)
088'% 08B'¥
(E¥L°'L) & ¥0S'€c & (S1P’'8)S ¥65°068% oLLs
(020°1) - -
(ZLe) &
{€18°5) (£18°'S)
LE9
ZEE'T ¥se
18 23] %SG
(6L0'6) £86'82Z {zos'z) £EYS 68 0LL
{(SeL) -
Se1'v 5
(et eyl {Lee’e)
(voL) vhL
(g€2) {oge)
(69)
T9€°1 {06}
700G 'L Z0S 'L
(L9E'OT)S o096°CT $ SLL $ 998°'68% 95Z3%
“ewoourtr ~XD03F sbuiuaee Jeu (8BOT) “Ie3jdEeD  ouyrea
oatsuayszdae)y Lansevoxy poureley earsuegeadnod at-pred aed
aeqlo TPUOTITPPY HDO3S
PoOIRTIUMDOY

{spuesnoyl ul)

969 L

900 ‘T Ioqueseq 3® ooueTed
SPUSPTATP Yged
swodut aatsusysaduwo)

soxe3 pue
Juawisnlpe UOTILDTITISERIISI JO
Jau swodul aarlsuayaadwos 19430

suoTido ¥ooi1s 3o
95TDIIXD WOIJ JTIOUIQ Xe] paIIajad

suotido }ools JO BSIDIASXY
saxeys Aanseaxl Jo uorjirsinbovw
|BwWOoDUT 18N

869 'L S00Z ‘TE I9quedeqg 3e eouwyed
SpuspTATDp Ysed
sso1 aartsuayazduo)

59XEB] pUR

juawlsnlpe uorlenIJISSEIDST JO
18U (SSCI) =2aTsuayaidwos I3YW

suotido qo038 JO
B5TDA9XD WOIJ JTFouUaq Xel paiisiad
suoT1do D018 JO ISSTHIIXY
JWODUT ION
B69°L ¥00Z ‘Tt Iequedeqg 3 someTed
SPUapPTIATP Yse)

swoout sarsusyaxdwon

SaXe] pue

Juswisni{pe uorienIyISSRIOIS8T 3JO
I/u (gso1) sarsusyszdwos aoYI0

Tev 'L pUSpIAIP D038
suo-103-A3ITY3y Jo 30a33F

(60€£°2) 311ds yooas
u93-I103J-2UC 95I9A8I JO 230833F
saxeys Axnsearl Jo uorjrsinboy

suotido D038 JO ITFIDIIXY
WODUT I8N

995°2 ¥00Z ‘T Aienuep 3 souwIvd

FEF T
TOUWLOD

¥00Z PU®R S00Z ‘9007 ‘Tf IoqWedeQ POPUd SAESXL OUL Iod
ALINDE .BUSATOHIOOLE 40 INAWALVLE (HIVAITOSNOD

SATYVYIAISENS ANV "ONI JdY0ONVE FYIHSHMHIL




BERKSHIRE BANCORFP INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(in thousands)

For The Years Ended December 31,

2006 2005 2004
| CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
‘ Net income $ 4,880 $ 5,541 $ 7,502
‘ Adjustments to reconcile net income
to net cash provided by operating
| activities:
| Realized gains on investment securities (2,336) (4) {793)
‘ Net ({accretion) amortization of premiums
' of investment securities {595} (3) 2,282
Depreciation and amortization 727 650 590
Provision for loan losses 410 180 180
CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES:
Decrease (increase) in accrued interest 387 (770) {716)
receivable
Decrease {increase) in other assets 2,021 (3,030} (3,873)
Increase in accrued interest payable and
other liabilities 31,763 3,640 538
Net cash provided by operating activities 9,257 5,204 5,710
CASH FLOWS FRCOM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Investment securities available for sale
Purchases (489,737 (378, 781) {(1,740,889)
Sales, maturities and calls 580,923 404,533 1,674,188
Investment securities held to maturity
Purchases -- -- 21
Maturities 129 62 --
Net {increase) decrease in loans (61,598) {(22,092) 7,931
Acquisition of premises and equipment {1,463} (575} (602)
Net cash provided by (used in)
investing activities 28,254 3,147 {59,281}
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BERKSHIRE BANCORP INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(in thousands)

.

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Net (decrease) increase in non interest
bearing deposits

Net increase in interest bearing deposits

(Decrease) increase in securities sold
under agreements to repurchase

Proceeds from long term debt
Repayment of long term debt

Proceeds from isguance of
subordinated debentures, net

Acquisition of treasury stock

Proceeds from exercise of common
stock options

Cash paid for fractional shares
Dividends paid

Net cash (used in) provided by financing
activities

Net (decrease) increase in cash and
cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at
beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at
.end of year

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF CASH
FLOW INFORMATION:

Cash used to pay interest

Cash used to pay income taxes,
net of refunds

The acceompanying notes are an
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For The Years Ended December 31,

2006 2005 2004
(851) 8,078 3,769
2,080 52,2594 11,864
{(10,392) (54,703) 13,356
2,000 20,000 37,164
(32,463) (32,404) (19,304}
- 7,217 14,791
{750) -~ (69}
433 1,686 1,271
-- -- (463)
{(1,099) {1,020) (735)
{41,082) 1,148 61,644
(3,571) 10,499 8,073
] 27,882 17,383 9,310
$ 24,311 27,882 17,383
] 26,807 19,184 15,608
§ 4,163 6,716 5,960

integral part of these stataments




BERKSHIRE BANCORP INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2006 and 2005

Note A - ORGANIZATION AND CAPITALIZATION

Organization

Berkshire Bancorp Inc. ("Berkshire" or the "Company" or "we" and similar
pronouns}, a Delaware corporation, is a bank holding company registered under the
Bank Holding Company Act of 19556, Berkshire’s principal activity is the
ownership and management of its wholly owned subsidiary, The Berkshire Bank (the
"Bank"), a New York State chartered commercial bank.

The Bank was established in 1989 to provide highly personalized services
to high net worth individuals and to small and mid-sized commercial businesses
primarily from the New York City metropolitan area. In March 2001, the Company
expanded its customer base and market area with the acquisition of GSB Financial
Corporation. The Bank’s main office and branch is in mid-town Manhattan. The
Bank has one other branch in lower Manhattan, four branches in Brooklyn, New
York, four branches in Orange and Sullivan Counties in New York State, and one
branch in Ridgefield, New Jersey.

The Bank competes with other banking and financial institutions in its
markets. Commercial banks, savings banks, savings and loan associations,
mortgage bankers and brokers, and credit unions actively compete for deposits and
locans. Such institutions, as well as consumer finance, mutual funds, insurance
companies, and brokerage and investment banking firms may be considered to be
competitors of the Bank with respect to one or more of the gservices provided by
the Bank.

The Company and the Bank are subject to the regulaticns of certain state
and federal agencies and, accordingly, are periodically examined by those
regulatory authorities. As a consequence of such regulation of banking
activities, the Bank's business may be affected by state and federal legislation.

Stock Split and Stock Dividend

At the Annual Meeting of Stockholders held on May 18, 2004, the Company’s
stockholders approved an amendment to the Company’'s Certificate of Incorporation
effecting a one-for-ten reverse stock split of the Company’'s issued and
outstanding Common Stock (the "Reverse Split"). Following the effectiveness of
the Reverse Split, the Company’'s Board of Directors declared a thirty-for-one
forward stock split in the form of a stock dividend in Common Stock which became
effective immediately. The Company paid approximately $463,000 to purchase
fractional shares from stockholders as part of the Reverse Split. The Company’s
Common Stock began trading on May 19, 2004 giving effect to these transactions.

Trust Preferred Securities

As of May 18 2004, the Company established Berkshire Capital Trust I,
a Delaware statutory trust, ("BCTI"). The Company owns all the common capital
securities of BCTI. BCTI issued $15.0 million of preferred capital securities
to investors in a private transaction and invested the proceeds, combined with
the proceeds from the sale of BCTI's common capital securities, in the Company
through the purchase of $15.464 million aggregate principal amount of Floating
Rate Junior Subordinated Debentures (the "Debentures") issued by the Company. The
Debentures, the sole assets of BCTI, mature on July 23, 2034 and bear interest
at a floating rate, three month LIBCR plus 2.70%.

On April 1, 2005, the Company established Berkshire Capital Trust II, a
Delaware statutory trust, ("BCTII"). The Company owns all the common capital
securities of BCTII. BCTII issued $7.0 million of preferred capital securities
te investors in a private transaction and invested the proceeds, combined with
the proceeds from the sale of BCTII's common capital securities, in the Company
through the purchase of $7.217 million aggregate principal amount of Fleoating
Rate Junior Subordinated Debentures (the "2005 Debentures") issued by the
Company. The 2005 Debentures, the sole agsets of BCTII, mature on May 23, 2035
and bear interest at a floating rate, three month LIBOR plus 1.95%,
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BERKSHIRE BANCORP INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Note A - (continued)

Based on current interpretations of the banking regulators, the 2004
Debentures and 2005 Debentures (collectively, the "Debentures”) qualify under the
risk-based capital guidelines of the Federal Reserve as Tier 1 capital, subject
to certain limitations. The Debentures are callable by the Company, subject to
any required regulatory approvals, at par, in whole or in part, at any time after
five years from the date of issuance. The Company’s obligations under the
Debentures and related documents, taken together, constitute a full, irrevocable
and unconditicnal guarantee on a subordinated basis by the Company of the
obligations of BCTI and BCTII under the preferred capital securities sold by BCTI
and BCTII to investors. FIN46(R) precludes consideration of the call option
embedded in the preferred capital securities when determining if the Company has
the right to a majority of BCTI and BCTII expected residual returns. Accordingly,
BCTI and BCTII are not included in the consolidated balance sheet of the Company.

The Federal Reserve has issued guidance on the regulatory capital treatment
for the trust-preferred securities issued by BCTI and BCTII. This rule would
retain the current maximum percentage of total capital permitted for Trust
Preferred Securities at 25%, but would enact other changes to the rules governing
Trust Preferred Securities that affect their use as part of the collection of
entities known as "restricted core capital elements." The rule would take effect
March 31, 2009; however, a five year transition period starting March 31, 2004
and leading up to that date would allow bank holding companies to continue to
count Trust Preferred Securities as Tier 1 Capital after applying FIN-46(R)}.
Management has evaluated the effects of this rule and does not anticipate a
material impact on its capital ratios when the proposed rule is finalized.

Note B - SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES
1. Basis of Financial Statement Presentation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America and

predominant practice within the banking industry, and include the accounts of
Berkshire Bancorp Inc. and its wholly owned subsidiaries, Greater American

Finance Group, Inc. ("GAFG"), East 39, LLC and the Bank, (collectively, the
"Company"). All significant intercompany accounts and transactions have been
eliminated.

In preparing the financial statements in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America, management is
required to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at
the date of the balance sheets, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses
during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

The principal estimates that are susceptible to significant change in the
near term relates to the allowance for loan losses, goodwill, and deferred tax
assets and liabilities. The evaluation of the adequacy of the allowance for leoan
losses includes an analysis of the individual loans and overall risk
characteristics and size of the different loan portfeclios, and takes into
consideration current eccnemic and market conditions, the capability of specific
borrowers to pay specific loan obligations, as well as current loan collateral
values. However, actual losses on specific loans, which alsc are encompassed in
the analysis, may vary from estimated losses.

Substantially all outstanding goodwill resulted from the acquisition of The
Berkshire Bank and Goshen Savings Bank, depository institutions concentrating in
the New York City and Orange and Sullivan County communities, respectively. As
the result of the market penetraticn in these New York areas, the Company had
formulated its own strategy to create such a market role. Accordingly, implicit
in the purchase of these franchises was the acquisition of that role. However,
if such benefits, including new business, are not derived or the Company changes
its business plan, an impairment may be recognized.
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BERKSHIRE BANCORP INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Congolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Note B - (continued)

The Company recognizes deferred tax assets and liabilities for the future
tax effects of temporary differences, net operating loss carryforwards and tax
credits. Deferred tax assets are subject to management’s judgment based upon
available evidence that future realization is more likely than not. If management
determines that the Company may be unable to realize all or part of net deferred
tax assets in the future, a direct charge to income tax expense may be required
to reduce the recorded wvalue of the net deferred tax asset to the expected
realizable amount.

The Company is required to provide disclosures under Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards ("SFAS"} 131, "Disclosures About Segments of an Enterprise
and Related Information." Operating segments are components of an enterprise
about which separate financial information is available that is evaluated
regularly by the chief operating decision maker in deciding how to allocate
resources and assess performance. The Company has one operating segment and,
accordingly, one reportable segment, "Community Banking." All of the Company’'s
activities are interrelated, and each activity is dependent and assesgsed based
on how each of the activities of the Company supports the others. For example,
commercial lending is dependent upon the ability of the Bank to fund itself with
retail deposits and other borrowings and to manage interest rate and credit risk.
This situation is also similar for consumer and residential mortgage lending.
Accordingly, all significant operating decisions are based upon analysis of the
Company as one operating segment or unit.

2. Investment Securities

The Company accounts for its investment securities in accordance with SFAS
No. 115, "Accounting feor Certain Investments in Debt and Equity Securities”.
Investments in securities are classified in one of three categories: held to
maturity, trading or available for sale. Investments for which management has
both the ability and intent to hold to maturity, are carried at cost, adjusted
for the amortization of premiums and accretion of discounts computed by the
interest method. Investments which management believes may be sold prior to
maturity due to changes in interest rates, prepayment risk and equity, liquidity
requirements or other factors, are classified as available for sale. Available-
for-sale securities are carried at fair wvalue, with the unrealized gains and
losses, net of tax, reported as a separate component of stockholders’ equity and
excluded from the determination of net income. Gains or losses on disposition
are based on the net proceeds and cost of the securities sold, adjusted for
amortization of premiums and accretion of discounts, using the specific
identification method.

The Meaning cof Other-Than-Temporary Impairment and Ita Application to
Certain Investments

In November 2003, the Emerging Issues Task Force (the "EITF") of the FASB
issued EITF Abstract 03-1, "The Meaning of Other-Than-Temporary Impairment and
its Application to Certain Investments" (EITF Issue No. 03-1)}. In March 2004, the
EITF reached a consensus on EITF Issue No. 03-1 and in September 2004, the FASB
issued a proposed Board-directed FASB Staff Position (an "FSP"), FSP EITF 03-1-a,
"Implementation Guidance for the Application of Paragraph 16 of EITF Issue No.
03-1" (FSP EITF 03-1-a). The guidance in FSP EITF 03-1-a is applicable for
investments in (a) debt and equity securities that are within the scope of SFAS
Nos. 115 and 124, and (b) equity securities that are not subject to the scope of
FAS 115 and 124 and not accounted for under the equity method of accounting,
"cost-method investments."

The final FSP, retitled FSP FAS 115-1 and FAS 124-1 "The Meaning of
Other-Than-Temporary Impairment and Its Application to Certain Investments,®
nullifies certain requirements of EITF No. 03-1 and supersedes EITF Topic No.
D-44, "Recognition of Other-Than-Temporary Impairment upon the Planned Sale of
a Security Whose Cost Exceeds Fair Value." FSP FAS 115-1 and FAS 124-1
specifically {(a) nullifies the requirements of paragraphs 10-18 of EITF No. 03-1,




BERKSHIRE BANCORP INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Note B - (continued)

(b) carries forward the requirements of paragraphs 8 and 9 with respect to cost-
method-investments and the disclosure requirements included in paragraphs 21 and
22 of EITF No. 03-1 and related examples, and (c) references existing other-than-
temporary impairment guidance. FSP FAS 115-1 and FAS 124-1 establishes a
three-step approach for determining when an investment is considered impaired,
whether that impairment is other than temporary, and the measurement of an
impairment loss.

Application of the guidance in FSP FAS 115-1 and FAS 124-1, applicable to
reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2005, did not have a material
adverse effect on our consoclidated financial statements.

3. Loang and Allowance for Loan Losses

Loans that management has the intent and ability to held for the
foreseeable future or until maturity or payoff are stated at the amount of unpaid
principal and are net of unearned discount, unearned loan fees and an allowance
for credit losses. The allowance for loan losses is established through a
provision for loan losses charged to expense. Loan principal considered to be
uncollectible by management is charged against the allowance for credit losses.
The allowance is an amount that management believes will be adeqguate to absorb
losses on existing loans that may become uncollectible based upon an evaluation
of known and inherent risks in the loan portfolioc. The evaluation takes into
consideration such factors as changes in the nature and size of the lecan
portfolio, overall portfolic quality, specific problem or impaired loans, and
current economic conditions which may affect the borrowers’ ability to pay. The
evaluation details historical losses by loan category, the resulting loss rates
for which are projected at current loan total amounts.

The Company accounts for its impaired loans in accordance with SFAS No.
114, "Accounting by Creditors for Impairment of a Loan," as amended by SFAS No.
118, "Accounting by Creditors for Impairment of a Loan - Income Recognition and
Disclosures." This standard requires that a creditor measure impairment based
on the present value of expected future cash flows discounted at the loan’'s
effective interest rate, except that as a practical expedient, a creditor may
measure impairment based on a loan’s cobservable market price, or the fair value
of the collateral if the loan is collateral-dependent. Regardless of the
measurement method, a creditor must measure impairment based on the fair value
of the collateral when the creditor determines that foreclosure is probable.

Interest income is accrued as earned on a simple interest basis. Accrual
of interest is discontinued on a loan when management believes, after considering
econcomic and business conditions and ceollection efforts, that the borrower's
financial condition is such that collection of interest is doubtful. When a loan
is placed on such non-accrual status, all accumulated accrued interest receivable
applicable to periods prior to the current year is charged off to the allowance
for loan losses. Interest which had accrued in the current year is reversed out
of current period income. Loans 90 days or more past due and still accruing
interest must have both principal and accruing interest adequately secured and
muet be in the process of collection.

The Company follows the provisions of SFAS No. 140 "Accounting for
Transfers and Servicing of Financial Assets and Extinguishments of Liabilities, "
SFAS No. 140 is based on consistent application of a financial-components
approach that recognizes the financial and servicing assets it controls and the
liabilities it has incurred, derecognizes financial assets when control has been
surrendered and derecognizes liabilities when extinguished. SFAS No. 140 provides
consistent guidelines for distinguishing transfers of financial assets from
transfers that are secured borrowings. The Company adopted SFAS 140 on April 1,
2001 and the adoption did not have a material impact upon the Company’s
consolidated financial statements.
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BERKSHIRE BANCORP INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Note B - (continued)

In October 2003, the AICPA issued SOP 03-3 Accounting for Loans or Certain
Debt Securities Acquired in a Transfer. SOP 03-3 applies to a locan with the
evidence of deteriocration of credit gquality since origination acquired by
completion of a transfer for which it is probable at acgquisition, that the
Company will be unable to collect all contractually required payments receivable.
S0P 03-3 requires that the Company recognize the excess of all cash flows
expected at acquisition over the investor’s initial investment in the loan as
interest income on a level-yield basis over the life of the loan az the
accretable yield. The loan’s contractual required payments receivable in excess
of the amount of its cash flows excepted at acquisition {nonaccretable
difference) should not be recognized as an adjustment to yield, a loss accrual
or a valuation allowance for credit risk. SOP 03-3 is effective for loans
acquired in fiscal years beginning after December 31, 2004. Early adoption is
permitted. The adoption of SOP 03-3 did not have a significant impact on the
financial condition or results of operations of the Company.

Loan. Commitments Accounted for as Derivative Instruments

The SEC staff recently released Staff Accounting Bulletin (SAB} 105, "Loan
Commitments Accounted for as Derivative Instruments." SAB 105 provides guidance
about the measurement of loan commitments recognized at fair value under FASB
Statement No. 133, Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities.
SAB 105 also requires companies to disclose their accounting policy for those
loan commitments including methods and assumptlons used to estimate fair value
and associated hedging strategies. SAB 105 is effective for all loan commitments
accounted for as derivatives that are entered into after March 31, 2004. The
adoption of SAB 105 did not have a material effect on our consolidated financial
statements.

The Company adopted SFAS No. 149 ("SFAS No. 149"), Amendment of SFAS No.
133 on Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities, on July 1, 2003. SFAS No.
149 clarifies and amends SFAS No. 133 for implementation issues raised by
constituents or includes the conclusions reached by the FASB on certain FASB
Staff Implementation Issues. Statement No. 149 also amends SFAS No. 133 to
require a lender to account for loan commitments related to mortgage loans that
will be held for sale as derivatives. SFAS No. 149 is effective for contracts
entered into or modified after September 30, 2003. The Company periodically
enters into commitments with its customers, which it intends to sell in the
future. The adoption of SFAS No. 149 did not have a material impact on the
Company’s financial position or regults of operations.

The Bank has entered into interest rate cap agreements in order to hedge
its exposure to interest rate fluctuations. The Company adopted the provisions
of SFAS No. 133, "Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities",
as amended, as of January 1, 2001. The statement requires the Company to
recognize all derivative instruments at fair wvalue as either assets or
liabilities. Financial derivatives are reported at fair value in other assets
or other liabilities. For derivatives not designated as hedges, the gain or loss
is recognized in current earnings. Amounts reclassed into earnings, when the
hedged transaction culminates, are included in interest income.

4. Bank Premises and Equipment

Bank premises and equipment, including leasehold improvements, are stated
at cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation expense is computed on the
stralght line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets. Leasehold
improvements are amortized over the shorter of the estimated useful lives of the
improvements or the terms of the related leases.
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BERKSHIRE BANCORP INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements {(continued)

Note B - (continued)
5. Other Real Estate Owned

Other real estate owned, representing property acquired through
foreclosure, is recorded at the lower of cost or estimated fair market value,
less costs of disposal. When property is acquired, the excess, if any, of the
loan balance over fair market value is charged to the allowance for loan losses.
Periodically thereafter, the asset is reviewed for subsequent declines in the
estimated fair market value. Subsequent declines, if any, and holding costs, as
well as gains and losses on subsequent sale, are included in the consolidated
statements of operations.

6. Goodwill

Goodwill resulting from the acquisition of The Berkshire Bank in 1999 and
GSB Financial Corporation in 2001 is accounted for under SFAS No. 142, Goodwill
and Intangible Assets. SFAS No. 142 includes requirements to test goodwill and
indefinite lived intangible assets for impairment rather than amortize them. The
Company performs such tests annually and did not identify any impairment on its
outstanding goodwill and its identifiable intangible assets from its most recent
testing, performed at September 30, 2006.

7. Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes under the liability method of
accounting for income taxes. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are determined
based on the difference between the financial statement and tax bases of assets
and liabilities ag measured by the enacted tax rates that will be in effect when
these differences reverse. Deferred tax expense is the result of changes in
deferred tax assets and liabilities. The principal types of differences between
assets and liabilities for financial statement and tax return purposes are
allowance for locan losses, deferred loan fees, deferred compensation and
securities available for sale.

8. Net Income Per Share

The Company follows the provisions of SFAS No. 128, "Earnings Per Share."
Basic earnings per share excludes dilution and is computed by dividing income
available to common shareholders by the weighted-average common shares
outstanding during the period. Diluted earnings per share takes into account the
potential dilution that could occur if securities or other contracts to issue
common stock were exercised and converted into common stock.

9. Stock Based Compensation

At December 31, 2006, the Company has one stock-based employee compensation
plan, which is more fully described in Note K. The Company accounts for that
plan in accordance with SFAS Statement No. 123(R), "Share Based Payment."
Previously, the Company accounted for that plan in accordance with Accounting
Principles Board ("APB") Opinion Neo. 25, "Accounting for Stock Issued to
Employees," ("APB No. 25") and related interpretations.
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Under APB No. 25, stock-based employee compensation costs were not
reflected in net income, as all options granted under the plan had an exercise
price equal to the market value of the underlying commeon stock on the date of the
grant. The following table illustrates the effect on net income and earnings per
share if the Company had applied the fair value recognition provisions of SFAS
No. 123(R) to stock-based employee compensation.

For The Years Ended Dacember 31,
2006 2005 2004
{In thousands, except per share amounts)

Net income $ 4,880 $ 5,541 $ 7,502

Less: Stock based compensation
costs determined under fair
value methode for all awards - - - - - -

3 4,880 § 5,541 g 7,502

Basic earnings per share 5 .71 $ .81 $ 1.12
.71 .81 1.12
Diluted earnings per share .70 .80 1.10
.70 .80 1.19

The fair value of each option was estimated on the date of grant using the
Black-Scholes options-pricing model using weighted-average assumptions for
expected volatility, risk-free interest and expected life of the option. The
Company did riot grant stock options in fiscal 2006, 2005 and 2004. There was no
stock based compensation expense in 2006.

In December 2004, the FASB issued Statement No. 123 (revised 2004}, "Share-
Based Payment" ("SFAS 123(R)") which requires the measurement and recognition of
compensation expense for all stock-based compensation payments and supersedes the
Company’s previous accounting under APB 25. SFAS 123(R) is effective for all
annual periods beginning after June 15, 2005 or our fiscal year 2006. In March
2005, the Securities and Exchange Commission (the "SEC") issued Staff Accounting
Bulletin No. 107 {("SAB 107"} relating to the adoption of SFAS 123(R). The Company
adopted SFAS 123(R} in the first quarter of fiscal year 2006. The adoption of
SFAS 123(R) did not have a material impact on our financial position or results
of operations.

io. Cash Equivalents
The Company considers all highly liquid debt investments purchased with an
original maturity of three months or less, and amounts due from brokers to be

cash equivalents.

11. Restrictions on Cash and Due From Banksa

The Bank is required to maintain reserves against customer demand deposits
by keeping cash on hand or balances with the Federal Reserve Bank in a
non-interest bearing account. The amounts of those reserve and cash balances was
approximately $2,617,000 and $2,589,000 at December 31, 2006 and 2005,
respectively.
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Note B - (continued)
12. Comprehensive Income

The Company follows the provisions of SFAS No. 130, "Reporting
Comprehensive Income" which includes net income as well as certain other items,

which results in a change to equity during the period. (In thousands.)}

Year Ended December 31, 2006

Tax
Before tax (expense} Net of tax
amount benefit Amount
Unrealized gaina (losses}
on investment securities:
Unrealized holding gains (losses)
arising during periecd $ 8,673 5{3,511) § 5,162
Less reclassification adjustment for
gains realized in net income 2,336 {934) 1,402
Unrealized gain on investment securities 6,337 (2,577) 3,760
Change in minimum pension liability (117} -- {117)
Other comprehensive income, net § 6,220 ${(2,577) S 3,643

Year Ended December 31, 2005

Tax
Before tax {expense) Net of tax
amount benefit Amount
Unrealized gaine (losses)
on investment securities:
Unrealized holding gains (losses)
arising during period $ (8,834) $ 3,313 $ (5,521)
Less reclassification adjustment for
gains realized in net income 4 (1} 3
Unrealized (loss) on investment securities (8,838) 3,314 (5,524)
Change in minimum pension liability {289) -- {289)
Other comprehensive income (loss}, net § {9,127) $ 3,314 $ (5,813)
Year Ended December 31, 2004
Tax
Before tax {expense) Net of tax
amount benefit Amount
Unrealized gains (losses)
on investment securities:
Unrealized holding gains
arising during peried $ (4,014) $ 1,711 5 (2,303)
Less reclassification adjustment for
gains realized in net income 793 {317) 476
Unrealized {(loss) on investment securities {4,807} 2,028 (2,779}
Change in minimum pension liability {598} -= (598)
Other comprehensive income (loss}, net $ (5,405) $ 2,028 $ (3,377)
13. Reclassifications

Certain amounts in the December 31, 2005 and 2004 financial statements have
been reclassified to conform to the current period’s presentation.
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Note C - INVESTMENT SECURITIES

The following is a summary of held to maturity investment securities:

December 31, 2006

Gross Gross
Amortized unrealized unrealized Fair
Cost gains lossaes value

(In thousands}
Investment securities

U.S. Government Agencies $ 433 $ 4 5 {1) 5 436

December 31, 2005

Gross Gross
Amortized unrealized unrealized Fair
Cost gains losses value

(In thousands)
Investment securities

U.S. Government Agencies $ 562 S 11 5 -- 5 573

The following is a summary of available-for-sale investment securities:

December 31, 20086

Gross Gross
Amortized unrealized unrealized Fair
Cost gainsg losses value

{In thousands)
Investment securities

U.S. Treasury and Notes § 5,002 5 -- $ (12) $ 4,990
U.5. Government Agencies 322,986 -- (5,822} 317,164
Mortgage-backed securities 67,472 52 (1,711} 65,853
Corporate notes 44,366 3134 {662) 44,038
Municipal securities 5,698 1,485 -- 7,187
Marketable equity

securities and other 75,419 216 (62) 75,566
Totals $520,943 $ 2,131 S (8,276) $514,758
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Decembar 31, 2005

Gross Grosgs
Amortized uarealized unrealized Fair
Cost gains losses value

(In thousands)
Investment securities

U.S. Treasury and Notes $ 14,985 $ -- $ (86) $ 14,899
U.S. Government Agencies 448,196 -- (8,551) 439,645
Mortgage-backed securities 81,681 112 (2,107) 79,686
Corporate notes 54,590 352 (2,638) 52,304
Municipal securities 1,972 334 -- 2,306
Marketable equity

gecurities and other 10,351 284 (65} 10,570

Totals $611,775 51,082 £(13,447} $599,410

unrealized losses or may be otherwise impaired, but an other-than-temporary
impairment has not been recognized in the financial statements. The following
table indicates the length of time individual securities have been in a
continuous unrealized loss position at December 31, 2006 (in thousands):

Less than 12 months 12 months or longer Total
Fair Value Unrealized Fair Value Unrealized Falir Value Unrealized

Losses Losses Losses
Desc¢ription of Securities
U.S. Treasury and Notes $ -- ] - $ 4,990 s 12 $ 4,990 $ 12
U.S. Government ARgencies 12,061 9 305,104 5,813 117,165 5,822
Mortgage-backed securities 1,732 52 49,454 1,659 51,186 1,711
Corporate notes -- -- 10,939 662 10,939 662
Municipal securities -= -- -- == -- --
Subtotal, debt securities 13,793 61 370,487 8,146 184,280 8,207
Marketable eqguity -- -- 13 69 13 69
securities and other
Total temporarily $ 13,783 5 61 $370,500 $ 8,215 $384,293 § 8,276

impaired securities

The Company had a total of 86 debt securities with a fair market value of
$384.28 million which were temporarily impaired at December 31, 2006. The total
unrealized loss on these securities was $8.26 million, of which $8.11 million is
attributable to increases in interest rates which have decreased the market value
of these securities. The remaining unrealized loss of $153,000 is on 2 corporate
notes which are currently reorganizing in U.S. bankruptcy court. We have the
ability to hold these securities to maturity, all but 7 of which are US
Government and US Government Agency securities, therefore, the unrealized losses
associated with these securities are not considered to be other than temporary.

The Company also had 2 equity securities with an aggregated fair market
value of $13,000 which were temporarily impaired at December 31, 2006. The total
unrealized loss on these securities was $57,000. Based upon our review of the
available information, such unrealized losses are not considered to be other than

|

|

|

The Company has investments in certain debt and equity securities that have
temporary.
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The amortized cost and fair value of investment securities available for
sale and held to maturity, by contractual maturity, at December 31, 2006 are
shown below. Expected maturities will differ from contractual maturities because
borrowers may have the right to call or prepay obligations with or without call
or prepayment penalties.

December 31, 2006

Available for Bale Held to Maturity
Amortized Fair Amortized Pair
Cost Value Cost Value
{In thousands)
Due in one year or less $ 46,490 $§ 46,359 $ -~ $ --
Due after one through
five years 218,102 214,129 29 29
Due after five through
ten years 92,156 89,554 -- --
Due after ten years 88,776 89,190 404 407
Marketable equity
securities and other 75,419 75,566 -- --
Totals §520!943 $514,798 g 433 $ 436

Gross gains realized on the sales of investment securities for the years
ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 were approximately $2,342,000, $10,000 and
$965,000, respectively. Gross losses were approximately 55,000, $6,000 and
$172,000 for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

As of December 31, 2006 and 2005, securities socld under agreements to
repurchase with a book value of approximately $62.65 million and $73.04 million,
respectively, were outstanding. The book value of the securities pledged for
these repurchase agreements was $71.30 million and $77.15 million, respectively.
As of December 31, 2006 and 2005, the Company did not have any investment
securities of any one issuer where the carrying value exceeded 10% of
shareholders’' equity.
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Note D - LOANS
Major classifications of loans are as follows:

December 31, December 31,
2006 2005

{In thousands)

Commercial and professional loans § 63,331 $§ 33,370
Secured by real estate
1 - 4 family 139,611 139,931
Multi family 4,013 2,874
Non-residential 160,417 132,142
Consumer 4,763 2,018
372,135 310,335
Deferred loan fees (1,212) {(1,105)
Allowance for loan losses (3,771) (3,266)

§367!152 §305!964

Changes in the allowance for loan losses are as follows:

For The Years Ended December 31,

2006 2005 2004
(In thousands)
Balance at beginning $ 3,266 $ 2,927 $ 2,593
of year
Provisign charged to 410 180 180
operations
Loans charged off (42) (26) (24)
Recoveries 137 185 178
Balance at end of year $§ 3,771 $ 3,266 $ 2,927

The Bank had $201,000, $256,000 and $343,000 of non accrual loans as of
December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively, and $0, 574,000 and $50,000 of
loans delinquent more than ninety days and still accruing interest at December
31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. The Bank classified the two non accrual
loans of $201,000 as impaired lcans at December 31, 2006. However, no specific
allocation from the allowance for lcan losses was made because the collateral
underlying each loan was deemed to be sufficient to cover any loss in the event
of a default.

In accordance with banking regqulations, the Bank, from time to time, enters
into lending transactions in the ordinary course of business with directors,
executive officers, principal stockholders and affiliates of such persons on the
same terms as those prevailing for comparable transactions with other borrowers.
At December 31, 2006, loans to these related parties amounted to $11.2 million,
were current as to principal and interest payments, and do not involve more than
normal risk of collectibility. An analysis of activity in loans to related
parties for the year ended December 31, 2006, resulted in new loans of 350 and
repayments of approximately 51.1 million.
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Note E - PREMISES AND EQUIPMENT

Major classifications of premises and equipment are summarized as follows:

Estimated December 31, December 31,
useful lives 2006 2005
{In thousands)

Land Indefinite $ 3,572 $ 3,817
Buildings 39 years 5,190 4,059
Furniture and equipment 3 to 10 years 3,052 2,890
Leasehold improvements 2 to 10 years 1,653 1,239

13,467 12,005
Accumulated depreciation (4,129) {3,403}
and amortization
Total § 9!338 § 8,602

Depreciation and amortization expense was approximately $727,000, $650,000
and $590, 000 for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

Note F - DEPOSITS

The aggregate amount of jumbo certificates of deposits greater than
$100, 000 were approximately $203.59 million and $203.72 million as of December
31, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

The scheduled maturities of all certificates of deposit are as follows:

December 31, 2006
{In thousands)

2007 $ 418,413
2008 5,284
2009 13
2010 2

$ 423,712

Note G - BORROWINGS

Short-Term Borrowings. Securities sold under agreements to repurchase
generally mature within 30 days from the date of the transactions. Short-term
borrowings consist of various borrowings which generally have maturities of less
than one year. The details of these categories are presented below:

Year Ended December 31,
2006 2005 2004
{(Dellars in Thousands)

Securities sold under repurchase
agreements and federal funds purchased

Balance at year-end $ 62,652 $ 73,044 $127,747
Average during the year $ 56,236 $108,785 $129,794
Maximum month-end balance $ 79,154 $145,489 5148,753
Weighted average rate during the year 3.75% 3.47% 1.87%
Rate at December 31 4.54% 3.59% 2.27%
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Long-Term Borrowings At December 31, 2006, advances from the Federal Home
Loan Bank ("FHLB") totaling $52.74 wmillion will mature within one to five years
and are reported as long-term borrowings. The advances are collateralized by
FHLB stock and certain first mortgage loang. The advances had a weighted average

rate of 4.38%. Unused lines of credit at the FHLB were $185.8 million at
December 31, 2006.

Outstanding long-term borrowings mature as follows (in thousands):

Year Amount
2007 s 9,302
2008 17,812
2009 11,624
2010 14,000

Total § 52,738

Note H - EARNINGS PER SHARE

The Company’s calculation of earnings per share in accordance with SFAS No.
128 is as follows:

Year Ended December 31, 2006
(In thousands, except per share data)

Income Shares Per share
{numerator) (denominator) amount
Bagic earnings per share
Net income available to
common stockholders $ 4,880 6,891 $ .71

Effect of dilutive securities
Options - - a5 (.01)
Diluted earnings per share

Net income available to
common stockholders plus

assumed conversions 4,880 6,976 .70
__._,_%-—_

Year Ended December 31, 2005
(In thousands, except per share data)

Income Shares Per share
{numerator) {denominator) amount
Basic earnings per share
Net income available to
common stockholders $ 5,541 6,805 $ .B1

Effect of dilutive securities
Options -- 134 (.01}
Diluted earnings per share

Net income available to
common stockholders plus

agsumed conversions § 5,541 6,939 g .80
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Year Ended December 31, 2004
(In thousands, except per share data)

Income Shares Per share
{numerator) (denominator) amount

Basic earnings per share
Net income available to

common stockholders $ 7,502 6,672 $ 1.12
Effect of dilutive securities
Options -- 176 (.02}
Diluted earnings per share
Net income available to

common stockholders plus

assumed conversions § 7,502 6,848 $ 1.10

Note I - INCOME TAXES
The compenents of income tax expense are as follows:

Years Ended December 31,

2006 2005 2004
Current $ 4,282,000 $ 4,985,000 $ 6,515,000
Deferred Taxes {(Benefit) (426,000) 18,000 (381,000}

g 3,856,000 $ 5,003,000 § 6,134,000

A reconciliation of the provision for income taxes for the years ended
December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 and the amount computed by applying the
statutory Federal income tax rate to income from continuing operations follows:

Yeara Ended December 31,

2006 2005 2004

Effective Tax Reconciliation
Tax at statutory rate $ 2,611,000 $ 3,585,000 % 4,636,000
State and City, net of federal

income tax benefit 1,100,000 1,344,000 1,423,000
Tax exempt income -- -- --
Other 145,000 74,000 75,000
Actual provision for

income taxes ) $ 3,856,000 $ 5,003,000 % 6,134,000
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The tax effect of the principal temporary differences at December 31, 2006
and 2005 are as follows:

December 31,

2006 2005
Net deferred tax assets
Loan loss provision $1,721,000 $1,504,000
Depreciation 123,000 39,000
Other 301,000 124,000
Unrealized loss on
investment securities 2,979,000 4,841,000
Net deferred tax asset
included in other assets $5,124,000 $6,508,000

Note J - STOCK PLANS

In March 1999, the stockholders of the Company approved the 1999 Stock
Incentive Plan (the "1999 Stock Incentive Plan"). The 1999 Stock Incentive Plan
permits the granting of awards in the form of nongqualified stock options,
incentive stock options, restricted stock, deferred stock, and other stock-based
incentives. Up to 600,000 shares of common stock of the Company may be issued
pursuant to the 1999 Stock Incentive Plan. Officers, directors and other key
employees of the Company or any subsidiary are eligible to receive awards under
the 1999 Stock Incentive Plan. Options outstanding under the 1999 Stock Incentive
Plan were 185,878 and 223,203 as of December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively. The
Company did not grant options in 2006, 2005 and 2004.

A summary of activity with respect to the Stock Option Plan follows:

December 31,

2006 2005 2004
Weighted Weighted Weighted
Average Average Average
Exercise Exerciae Exercisge
Shares Price Shares Price Shares Price
Outstanding at
beginning of year 223,203 $ 9.70 365,084 $10.65 508,419 $10.12
Granted -- $ -- -- s - -- ] --
Cancelled -- $ -- (3,000} $12.67 (1,500) $10.00
Exercised { 37,325} § 9.34 (138,881) $12.20 {141,835} $ 8.95
Outstanding at
end of year 185,878  § 9.76 223,203 $9.70 365,084 $10.65
Exercisable at .
end of year 1855878 $§ 9.76 223!203 $ 9.70 365!084 $10.65
Weighted average
fair value of
options granted
during the year $ -- $ - $ --
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The following table summarizes information about options outstanding and
exercisable at December 31, 2006:

Options Outstanding and Exercisable

Number Weighted

outstanding average Weighted

at remaining average

Range of December 31, contractual exercise
exercise prices 2006 life (years) price
$5.98 - 8.78 29,378 1.45 5 8.49
10.00 - 10.00 156,500 D.69 10.00

185,878

Note K - EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS
1. Retirement Income Plan

The Company’s Retirement Income Plan (the "Plan") covers substantially all
full-time employees. Benefits are based upon a combination of employee
compensation and years of service. The Company pays the entire cost of the Plan
and funds such costs as they accrue. The Company’s funding policy is to make
annual contributions within minimum and maximum levels required by applicable
regulations. The Company’s customary contributions are designed to fund normal
cost on a current basis and to fund over 30 years the estimated prior service
cost of benefit improvements (15 years of annual gains and losses) . The projected
unit cost method was used to determine the annual cost.

The following table summarizes the major categories of Plan assets as of
the dates indicated:

December 31,
2006 2005
Fair Value % of Total Fair Value % of Total
{In thousands, except percentages

Mutual Funds

International Equity Fund $ 198 9.54% $ 128 7.45%
Large Cap Equity Growth Fund 504 24.28 396 23.04
International Investment
Grade Bond Fund 637 30.68 507 29.49
Small Cap Equity Growth Fund g9 4.77 114 6.63
Large Cap Equity Value Fund 487 23.46 197 23.09
Corporate Common Stocks(1) 151 7.27 165 9.60
Cash and cash equivalents -- -- 12 0.70
Total Plan Assets § 2!076 100.00% g 1!719 100.00%
{1} Includes 4,500 shares of the Company’s Common Stock with a market value of $73,350

and $75,465 at December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively.
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The assets of the Plan are primarily invested in well diversified common
stock and fixed income funds designed to minimize risk while maximizing expected
portfolio returns. To achieve the long term rate of return, Plan assets are
invested in a mixture of instruments, including but not limited to, corporate
common stock, investment grade bond funds, small and large cap equity funds and
international equity funds. The allocation of assets is determined by the
Investment Manager, and typically include 50% to 70% equities, with the remainder
invested in fixed income and a minimal amount of c¢ash. Presently, this
divergified portfolio is expected to return approximately 8.50% in the long run.

The expected rate of return on Plan assets was determined based upon a
review of historical returns, both for our Plan and for medium to large-sized
defined benefit pension funds with similar asset allocations. This review
generated separate expected future long-term returns for each asset class listed
in the above table. These expected future returns were then blended based upon
our Plan’'s target asset allocation.

Assumptions

Weighted-average assumptions used to determine benefit obligations were as
follows at the dates indicated:

December 31,

2006 200S
Discount rate 5.75% 5.50%
Rate of compensation increase 5.00% 5.00%

Weighted-average assumptions used to determine net periodic benefit cost
for the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005 were as follows:

December 31,

2006 2005
Discount rate 5.50% 5.75%
Rate of compensation increase 5.00% 5.00%
Expected return on plan assets 8.50% B.50%
Measurement date 1/1/2006 1/1/2005
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The following table sets forth the Plan’s benefit obligations, fair value
of the Plan assets and the funded status of the Plan in accordance with FAS 158
for the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005:

Decamber 31,
2006 2005

Change in benefit obligation

Benefit obligation at beginning of year § 2,735,177 $ 2,316,075

Service cost 353,071 304,144
Interest cost 145,594 134,275
Actuarial (gain) loss (3,660) 158,125
Benefits paid {130,339} {(177,442)
Benefits obligation at end of year $ 3,103,843 $ 2,735,177
Change in plan assets

Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year $ 1,719,290 $§ 1,804,866
Actual return on plan assets 154,347 (20,484)
Employer contributicn 332,700 112,350
Benefits paid (130,339) (177,442)

Fair value of plan assets at end of year § 2,075,598 $ 1,719,290

Amounts recognized in the statement of financial
position consist of:

Noncurrent assets 5 -- N/A

Current liabilities .- N/A

Noncurrent liabilities (1,027,845) N/A

Prepaid benefit cost N/A --

Accrued benefit cost N/A (1,015,887}
Intangible asset N/A 120,874

Accumulated other comprehensive charge N/A 887,262
Net amount recognized at  year end $1,027,845 $ {7,775}
Amounts recognized in accumulated other

comprehensive income consist of:

Net loss ' $ 820,100 $ 887,262

Transition obligation -- N/A

Prior service cost 102,504 N/A
Accumulated other comprehensive charge 5 922,604 $ B87,262

Additional year-end information for pension plans

with accumulated benefit cbligations in excess of

plan assets

Projected benefit obligation $3,103,843 $2,375,177
Accumulated benefit obligation 3,103,843 2,735,177

Fair value of plan assets 2,075,998 1,719,290
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A summary of the components of net periodic benefit cost and other amounts
recognized in other comprehensive income in accordance with FAS 158 for the
years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 is as follows:

December 31,

2006 2005 2004

Service cost $ 353,071 $ 304,144 $ 243,916
Interest cost 149,594 134,275 121,005
Expected return on assets (151,131) (150,819) (150,145}
Amortization

Net transition {(asset) obligation -- -- --
Prior service cost 18,370 18,370 18,370
{(Gain) loss 60,286 40,091 19,058
Net periodic pension cost $§ 430,190 $ 346,061 § 252,204

The following table sets forth other changes in plan assets and benefit
obligations recognized in other comprehensive income in accordance with FAS 158
at December 31, 2006 and 2005:

December 31,

2006 2005

Net loss (gain) g N/A 5 N/A
Prior service cost N/A N/A
Increase (decrease) in minimum liability included

in other comprehensive income prior to FAS 158

application (67,162) (289,337}
Initial OCI charge upon FAS 158 application 102,504 N/A
Amortization of prior service cost N/A N/A
Amortization of transition obligation N/A N/A
Total receognized in other comprehensive income 35,342 289,337
Total recognized in net periodic benefit cost and

other comprehensive income 465,532 635,398

The estimated net loss {gain), prior service cost and net transition obligation that will
be amortized from the accumulated other comprehensive income into net periodic benefit
cost over the next fiscal year are $45,148, 518,370 and $0, respectively.

Egtimated Future Benefit Payments

We estimate future benefit payments to be as follows:

Benefit
Yearg Payments
2007 $ 181,075
2008 158, 350
2009 233,217
2010 158,267
2011 145,376
Years 2012-2016 1,359,610
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Company Contributions

The Company contributed $332,700 to its Retirement Plan in the fiscal year
ended December 31, 2006. During the fiscal year ending December 31, 2007, the
Company expects to contribute approximately $255,000 to its Retirement Plan.

2. Former Goshen Bank Pension Plan

The Bank, as successor to Goshen Bank, had a non-contributory defined
benefit pension plan covering substantially all of its employees. In the fourth
gquarter of 2000, the Goshen Bank froze its defined benefit pension plan and
provided that there would be no further accruals under the plan. On October 24,
2002, the Board of Directors of the Bank approved the termination of this plan.
In 2003, we paid out approximately $600,000 toc complete the termination of this
plan and purchase annuity contracts. Upon the notice of termination, all
participant benefits vest 100%.

3. Postretirement Welfare Plan

The Bank, as successor to Goshen Bank provides certain health care and life
insurance benefits for retired employees and their spouses. The postretirement
health care and life insurance benefits plan was terminated for persons retiring
after December 31, 1998. Eligible employees retired on or before that date will
have benefits paid through the plan under the agreed upon terms existing at the
employee’s retirement date.

December 31,
2006 2005
(In thousands)

Change in benefit cbligation
Benefit obligation at beginning of year 3 735 $ 719

Service cost

Interest cost 42 43
Actual (gain} loss {27) 22
Benefits paid {(52) {49}
Benefits obligation at end of year 698 735

Change in plan assets

Fair value of plan assets

at beginning of year - --
Actual return on plan assets -- --
Employer contribution 49 49
Benefits paid {49) {49}
Fair value of plan assets

at end of year -- --
Funded status (698) (735)
Unrecognized net actuarial loss N/A 47
Accrued benefit cost (included in

other liabilities) 3 698 5 688




BERKSHIRE BANCORP INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
" Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Note K - (continued)

Net benefit cost included the following components:

Year Ended December 31,

2006 2005
(In thousands)
Service cost $ -- $ --
Interest cost on projected
benefit obligation 42 43
Actual return on plan assets -- --
Net periocdic benefit cost $ 42 $ 43

The assumed discount rate used in determining the actuarial present value
of the projected benefit obligation was 6.125% and 5.875% in 2006 and 2005,
regpectively.

4. 401(k) Plans

The Bank has a 401(k) plan in which employees can contribute up to 15% of
their salary. The Bank also matches 50% of the employee contribution up to a
maximum of 3% of the employee’s salary. The matching expense was $124,000,
$107,000 and $89,000 for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004,
reaspectively.

5. Deferred Compensation Arrangements

GSB Financial and Goshen Bank established deferred compensation
arrangements for certain directors and executives. These deferred compensation
arrangements were terminated as a result of the acquisition. At December 31,
2006 and 2005, the balance accumulated under these arrangements was approximately
$245,000 and $241,000, respectively, and will be paid out when the individual (i)
ceases to be a director and/or executive of the Company; (ii) attains the age of
75; or (iii) specifies a particular date.

In July 2006, the Bank established the Deferred Compensation Plan of The
Berkshire Bank (the "Plan") to provide for a systematic method by which key
employees of the Bank may defer payment of all or part of the compensation that
may be earned by them. The Plan is intended to be a nonqualified and unfunded
plan maintained primarily for the purpose of providing deferred compensation for
a select group of management or highly compensated employees pursuant to Sections
201(2), 301(a)(3) and 401{a) (1) of the Employee Retirement Income Security Act
of 1974, as amended. At December 31, 2006, the balance accumulated under the
Plan was approximately $30,000.
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Note L. - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
1. Leases and Other Commitments

The Company leases certain of its operating facilities under non-cancelable
operating leases expiring in 2008 through 2015. The leases require payment by

the Company of the real estate taxes and insurance on the leased properties.
Approximate future minimum annual rental payments are as follows:

Year Ending {In thousands)
December 31,
2007 $867,000
2008 653,000
2009 581,000
2010 581,000
2011 395,000
Thereafter 603,000
$3,680,000

Rental expense was approximately $1,286,000, $1,208,000 and $964,000 for
the fiscal years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. Included
in rental expense was approximately $328,000, $359,000 and $298,000 for the
fiscal years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively, which was paid
to a company affiliated with a director of the Company.

Note M - FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL, INSTRUMENTS

SFAS No. 107 requires disclosure of the estimated fair value of an entity’'s
assets and liabilities considered to be financial instruments. For the Company,
as for most financial institutions, the majority of its assets and liabilities
are considered financial instruments as defined in SFAS No. 107. However, many
such instruments lack an available trading market, as characterized by a willing
buyer and seller engaging in an exchange transaction. Also, it is the Company’s
general practice and intent to hold its financial instruments to maturity and not
to engage in trading or sales activities, except for certain loans. Therefore,
the Company had to use significant estimations and present value calculations to
prepare this disclosure.

Changes in the assumptions or methodologies used to estimate fair values
may materially affect the estimated amounts. Also, management is concerned that
there may not be reasonable comparability between institutions due to the wide
range of permitted assumptions and methodclogies in the absence of active
markets. This lack of uniformity gives rise to a high degree of subjectivity in
estimating financial instrument fair values.

Estimated fair values have been determined by the Company using the best
available data and an estimation methodology suitable for each category of
financial instruments. The estimation methodologies used, the estimated fair
values, and recorded bock balances at December 31, 2006 and 2005 are outlined
below.

For cash and cash equivalents, the recorded book values of $24.31 million
and $27.88 million at December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively, approximate fair
values. The estimated fair values of investment securities are based on quoted
market prices, if available. Estimated fair values are based on quoted market
prices of comparable instruments if quoted market prices are not available.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements {continued)

Note M - (continued)

December 31,
2006 2008
Carrying Estimated Carrying Estimated
amount fair value amount fair value
{In thousands)
Investment securities $516,231 $515,234 $599,972 $599,983
Loans, net of unearned income 370,823 375,052 309,230 313,065
Time Deposits 423,712 423,181 402,585 400,407
Repurchase Agreements 62,652 62,606 73,044 72,505
Long-term Debt 75,419 75,569 105,882 105,753

The net loan portfolio at December 31, 2006 and 2005 has been valued using
a present value discounted cash flow where market prices were not available. The
discount rate used in these calculaticons is the estimated current market rate
adjusted for credit risk. The carrying value of accrued interest approximates
fair value.

The estimated fair values of demand deposits (i.e. interest (checking) and
non-interest bearing demand accounts, savings and certain types of money market
accounts} are, by definition, equal to the amount payable on demand at the
reporting date (i.e. their carrying amounts). The carrying amount of accrued
interest payable approximates its fair value.

The fair value of commitments to extend credit is estimated based upon the
amount of unamortized deferred loan commitment fees. The fair value of letters
of credit is based upon the amount of unearned fees plus the estimated cost to
terminate letters of credit. Fair values of unrecognized financial instruments,
including commitments to extend credit, and the fair value of letters of credit
are considered immaterial.

The fair value of interest rate caps are based upon the estimated amount
the Company would receive or pay to terminate the contracts or agreements, taking
into account current interest rates and, when appropriate, the current
creditworthiness of the counterparties. The aggregate fair wvalue for the
interest rate caps were approximately $20,000 at December 31, 2006 and 2005.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Note N - FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS WITH OFF-BALANCE-SHEET RISK AND CONCENTRATIONS
OF CREDIT RISK

The Bank is party to financial instruments with off-balance-sheet risk in
the normal course of business to meet the financing needs of their customers.
These financial instruments include commitments to extend credit and standby
letters of credit. Such financial instruments are recorded in the financial
statements when they become payable. Those instruments involve, to varying
degrees, elements of credit and interest rate risk in excess of the amount
recognized in the consolidated balance sheets. The contract or notional amounts
of those instruments reflect the extent of involvement the Banks have in
particular classes of financial instruments.

The Bank’s exposure to credit loss in the event of non-performance by the
other party to the financial instrument for commitments to extend credit and
standby letters of credit is represented by the contractual or notional amount
of those instruments. The Bank uses the same credit policies in making
commitments and conditional obligations as they do for on-balance-sheet
instruments.

Unless noted otherwise, the Bank does not require collateral or other
security to support financial instruments with credit risk. The approximate
contract amounts are as follows:

December 31,

2006 2005
{In thousands)}

Unused lines of credit $ 38,288 $ 16,808

Commitments to extend credit -- 2,531
Standby letters of credit and financial

guarantees written 3,423 i,155

$ 41,711 $ 20,494

Interest rate caps-notiocnal amount $ 20,000 $§ 20,000

Commitments to extend credit are agreements to lend to a customer as long
as there is no wviolation of any conditien established in the contract.
LCommitments generally have fixed expiration dates or other termination clauses
and may require payment of a fee. Since many of the commitments are expected to
expire without being drawn upon, the total commitment amounts do not necessarily
represent future cash requirements. The Bank evaluates each customer's
creditworthiness on a case-by-case basis. The amount of collateral obtained, if
deemed necessary by the Bank upon extensicn of credit, is based on management’s
credit evaluation.

Standby letters of credit are conditional commitments issued by the Bank
to guarantee the performance of a customer to a third party. Those guarantees
are primarily issued to support public and private borrowing arrangements,
including commercial paper, bond financing and similar transactions. The credit
risk involved in issuing letters of credit is essentially the same as that
involved in extending lcan facilities to customers. The Bank holds residential
or commercial real estate, accounts receivable, inventory and equipment as
collateral supporting those commitments for which collateral is deemed necessary.
The extent of collateral held for those commitments at December 31, 2006 varies
up to 100%.
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Note N - (continued)

The Company defines the initial fair wvalue of these letters of credit as
the fee received from the customer. The maximum potential undiscounted amount of
future payments of these letters of credit as of December 31, 2006 are $3,423,000
and they expire through 2007. Amounts due under these letters of credit would
be reduced by any proceeds the Company would be able tc cbtain in liquidating the
collateral for the loans, which varies depending on the customer.

The Bank grants loans primarily to customers in New York and its
immediately adjacent suburban communities. Although the Bank has a diversified
loan portfolio, a large portion of their loans are secured by commercial or
residential real property. The Bank does not generally engage in non-recourse
lending and typically will require the principals of any commercial borrower to
obligate themselves personally on the loan. Although the Bank has diversified
loan portfolics, a substantial portion of their debtors’ ability to honor their
contracts is dependent upon the economic sector. Commercial and standby letters
of credit were granted primarily to commercial borrowers.

The Bank has entered intoc interest rate cap agreements in order to hedge
its exposure to interest rate fluctuations. The Company adopted the provisions
of SFAS No. 133, "Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities",
as amended, as of January 1, 2001. The statement requires the Company to
recognize all derivative instruments at fair wvalue as either assets or
liabilities. Financial derivatives are reported at fair value in other assets
or other liabilities. For derivatives not designated as hedges, the gain or loss
is recognized in current earnings. Amounts reclassed into earnings, when the
hedged transaction culminates, are included in interest income.

Note O - REGULATORY MATTERS

The Bank is subject to various regulatory capital requirements administered
by the federal banking agencies. Failure to meet minimum capital regquirements
can initiate certain mandatory - and possible additicnal discretionary - actions
by regulators that, if undertaken, could have a direct material effect on the
Bank’s consclidated financial statements. Under capital adequacy guidelines and
the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action, the Company must meet
specific capital guidelines that involve quantitative measures of the Bank's
assets, liabilities and certain off-balance-sheet items as calculated under
regulatory accounting practices. The Bank’s capital amounts and classification
are also subject to qualitative judgments by the regulators about components,
risk weightings and other factors.

Quantitative measures established by regulations to ensure capital adequacy
require the Bank to maintain minimum amounts and ratios {set forth in the table
below) of total and Tier 1 capital (as defined in the regulations) to
risk-weighted assets, and of Tier 1 capital to average assets. Management
believes that, as of December 31, 2006, the Bank meets all capital adequacy
requirements to which it is subject.

As of December 31, 2006, the Bank met all regulatory requirements for
classification as well capitalized under the regulatory framework for prompt
corrective action. To be categorized as well capitalized, the Bank must maintain
minimum total risk-based, Tier 1 risk-based and Tier 1 leverage ratios as set
forth in the following table. There are no conditions or events since that date
that management believes have changed the institution’s category.
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Note O - (continued)
The following table sets forth the actual and required regulatory capital

amounts and ratios of, the Company and the Bank as of December 31, 2006 and 2005
(dollars in thousands):

To be well
capitalized under
For capital prompt corrective
Actual adequacy purposeas action provisions
Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio
December 31, 2006
Total Capital {to Risk-Weighted Assets}
Company 128,452 23.9% 43,031 >8.0% --  N/A
Bank 99,170 19.3% 41,120 >8.0% 51,400 >10.0%
Tier I Capital (to Risk-Weighted Assets)
Company 124,681 23.2% 21,516 >4.0% -- N/A
Bank 95,400 18.6% 20,560 >4.0% 30, 84¢ »6.0%
Tier I Capital {(to Average Assets)
Company 124,681 13.4% 37,322 >4.0% --  N/A
Bank 95,400 10.9% 35,022  >4.0% 43,778 >5.0%
To be well
capitalized under
For capital prompt corrective
Actual adequac urpones action provisicns
Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio
December 31, 2005
Total Capital (to Risk-Weighted Assets)
Conpany 124,523 28.6% 34,820 35.0% -- N/A
Bank 85,183 23.0% 33,116 >8.0% 34,416 >10.0%
Tier I Capital {to Risk-Weighted Assets)
Company 121,257 27.9% 17,410 =4.0¥% ~- N/A
Bank 91,927 22.2% 16,558 >4.0% 20,649 »6.0%
Tier I Capital (to Average Assets)
Company 121,257 12.2% 39,651  >1.0% -~  N/A

‘Bank 91,927 10.1% 36,4395 >4.0% 46,550 >5.0%
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Note P - CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION - PARENT COMPANY ONLY

The condensed financial information for Berkshire Bancorp Inc. (parent
company only) is as follows:

CONDENSED BALANCE SHEETS
(In Thousands)

December 31,

2006 2005

ASSETS
Cash 5 11,515 $ 11,196
Equity investment in subsidiaries 113,972 109,026
Investment in securities available for sale 15,874 11,760
Accrued interest receivable 189 481
Other assets 1,023 1,547
Total assets $ 142,573 $ 134,010
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Subordinated debt $ 22,681 $ 22,681
Total liabilities 26,796 25,300
Stockholders’ equity
Common stock 770 770
Additional paid-in capital 90,659 90,594
Retained earnings 37,285 33,504
Accumulated other comprehensive

loss, net (4,772) (8,415)
Common stock in treasury, at cost (8,165) {7,743}
Total stockholders’' equity 115,777 108,710

$ 142,573 $ 134,010

|
|
|
|
|
|
Other liabilities 4,115 2,619
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Note P - (continued)

CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
({In Thousands)

For The Years Ended December 31,

2006 2005 2004

INCOME

Interest income from the Bank s 65 5 53 § 71
Interest income 1,115% 1,622 1,090
Ggin on sales of o 1,600 10 734
investment securities
Other income (loss) 235 217 96
Total income 3,015 1,902 1,991
EXPENSES
Salaries and employee benefits 697 605 489
Interest expense 1,780 1,268 463
Other expenses 602 580 1,058
Total expenses 3,079 2,453 2,010
Income (loss) before income taxes

and equity in undistributed net

income of the Bank (64} (551} {19)
Equity in undistributed

net income of the Bank 5,203 6,229 7,668
Income before taxes 5,139 5,678 7,649
Provision for income taxes 259 137 147
Net income $§ 4,880 $ 5,541 § 7,502
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Note P - {continued)

CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(In Thousands)

Operating activities:
Net income

Adjustments to reconcile net
income to net cash provided by
(used in) operating activities:

Gain on sales of investment securities

Equity in undistributed net income of the Bank
Dividends received from the Bank

Increase in other liabilities

Decrease (increase) in other assets

Net cash provided by operating activities

Investing activities:
Investment securities available for sale
Purchases
Sales
Net decrease in loans
Contribution to the Bank

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activitiesg

Financing activities:
Proceeds from exercise of common stock options
Acquisition of treasury stock
Cash paid for fractional shares
Issuance of subordinated debentures
Dividends paid
Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash egquivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
Cash and cash eguivalents at end of year

Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information:

Cash used to pay interest
Cash used to pay income taxes

g8

For The Years Ended December 31,

2006 2005 2004
$ 4,880 $ 5,541 $ 7,502
(1,600) {(10) (734)
(5,203) (6,229) (7,668)
1,730 1,291 500
23 1,025 798
816 (154) 69
646 1,464 467
(3,725) {4,548) {9,150}
4,854 140 3,874
-- 6,059 185
-- (7,217} (14,791}
1,129 {(5,566) {15,882}
433 1,686 1,271
{790} -- (69}
-- -- (463)
-- 7,217 14,791
(1,099) (1,020) {735}
(1,456) 7,883 14,7895
319 3,781 (4,620)
11,196 7,415 12,035
$ 11,515 $ 11,196 $ 7,415
$ 1,694 § 1,132 $ 273
$ 473 $ 362 $ 419
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Note Q - QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA (UNAUDITED)

The following represents summarized quarterly financial data of the Company

which,
of normal recurring adjustments,
Company's results of operations.

in the opinion of management,

{In thousands,

reflects all adjustments,
necessary for a fair presentation of the
except per share data).

Three Months Ended

consisting only

March 31 June 30 September 30 December 31
2006

Interest income $ 11,835 $ 11,816 $ 12,141 $ 12,429
Interest expense (6,607) {6,945) (7,509) (8,125)
Net interest income 5,228 4,871 4,632 4,304
Provision for loan losses (45) {45) (45) {275)
Gains on sales of securities 741 2 -- 1,593
Non-interest income 312 304 359 3g2
Non-interest expenses (3,413) (3,378) (3.400) (3,391)
Income before taxes 2,823 1,754 1,546 2,613
Provision for taxes {(1,327) (834) (689) (1,0086)
Net income $ 1,496 § 520 5 857 $ 1,607
Per share data

Net income per common share

Basic o] .22 5 13 s .12 $ .24

Diluted S 21 8 .13 5 .12 $ .24

Three Months Ended
March 31 June 30 September 30 December 31
2005

Interest income $ 10,967 $ 11,378 $ 11,250 $ 11,461
Interest expense (4,814} {(5,585) {5,879) (6,121)
Net interest income 6,153 5,793 5,371 5,340
Provision for loan losses (45} (45) (45) (45)
Gains (losses) on sales of securities 6 3 -- (5)
Non-interest income 263 282 300 357
Non-interest expenses {3,193} {3,378) {3,221} (3,347)
Income before taxes 3,184 2,655 2,405 2,300
Provision for taxes {1,486) {1,304} {1,108) {1,105)
Net income § 1,698 $ 1,351 g_ 1,257 $§ 1,195
Per share data

Net income per common share

Basic s .25 S .20 s .19 $ .17

Diluted $ .25 S .20 S .19 $ .16
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ITEM 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting
and Financial Disclosure.

Not Applicable.

ITEM 9A. Controls and Procedures

Evaluation of the Company’s Disclosure Controls and Internal Control. As of the
end of the pericd covered by this Annual Report on Form 10-K, the Company
evaluated the effectiveness of the design and operation of its "disclosure
controls and procedures" as defined in Rule 13a-15(e) of the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934 ("Disclosure Controls"). This evaluation ("Controls Evaluation") was
done under the supervision and with the participation of the Company'’'s
management, including the Chief Executive Officer ("CEQ") who is alsc the Chief
Financial Officer {("CFO").

Limitations on the Effectiveneas of Controls. The Company's management,
including the CEQ/CFQ, does not expect that its Disclosure Controls and/or its
"internal control over financial reporting" as defined in Rule 13a-15(f) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 ("Internal Control") will prevent all error and
all fraud. A control system, no matter how well conceived and operated, can
provide only reascnable, not absclute, assurance that the objectives of the
control system are met. Further, the design of a control system must reflect the
fact that there are resource constraints, and the benefits of controls must be
considered relative to their costs. Because of the inherent limitations in all
control systems, no evaluation of controls can provide absclute assurance that
all control issues and instances of fraud, if any, within the Company have been
detected. These inherent limitations include the realities that judgments in
decision-making can be faulty, and that breakdowns can occur because of simple
error or mistake. Additionally, controls can be circumvented by the individual
acts of some persons, by collusion of two or more people, or by management
override of the control. The design of any system of controls also is based in
part upon certain assumptions about the likelihocd of future events, and there
can be no assurance that any design will succeed in achieving its stated goals
under all potential future conditions; over time, control may become inadequate
because of changegs in conditions, or the degree of compliance with the policies
or procedures may deteriorate. Because of the inherent 1limitations in a
cost-effective control system, misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and
not be detected.

€onclusions. Based upon the Controls Evaluation, the CEOQO/CFO has concluded that
the Disclosure Controls are effective in reaching a reasonable level of assurance
that information required to be disclosed by the Company is recoxrded, processed,
summarized and reported within the time period specified in the Securities and
Exchange Commission’s rules and forms and that any material information relating
to the Company is accumulated and communicated with management, including its
principal executive/financial officer to allow timely decisions regarding
required disclosure. In accordance with SEC requirements, the CEO/CFO notes that
during the fiscal quarter ended December 31, 2006, no changes in Internal Control
have occurred that have materially affected or are reasonably likely to
materially affect Internal Contrel.

ITEM 9B. Other Information

On March 28, 2007, the Board of Directors of the Company, upon the
recommendation of the independent directors of the Company, approved bonuses for
fiscal year 2006 to Messrs. Steven Rosenberg, Moses Krausz and David Lukens of
$25,000, $250,000 and 525,000, respectively, and fixed salaries for Messrs.
Steven Rosenberg and David Lukens for fiscal year 2007 at $220,000 and $183, 000,
respectively, effective January 1, 2007.
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PART III
ITEM 190. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance

The following are the current directora and executive officers of the Company:

Name Age Position{(s)
Steven Rosenberg 58 President, Chief Executive Officer,
Chief Financial Officer and Director
William L. Cohen 65 Director
Martin A. Fischer 69 Director
Moses Marx 71 Director
Randolph B. Stockwell 60 Director
Moses Krausz 66 President of The Berkshire Bank
David Lukens 57 Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer

of The Berkshire Bank

Mr. Rosenberg has served as President and Chief Executive Officer of the
Company since March 1999 and as Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of the
Company from April 1990 to March 1999. He continues to serve as Chief Financial
Officer. Mr. Rosenberg was elected a director in May 1995. From September 1987
through April 1990, he served as President and Director of Scomel Industries, Inc.,
a company engaged in international marketing and consulting. Mr. Rosenberg is a
director of The Cooper Companies, Inc. (a developer and manufacturer of healthcare
products) .

Mr. Cohen was elected a director in July 1993. He has served as the Chief
Executive Officer of Andover Properties, LLC, a real estate development company
specializing in self storage facilities since November 2003, and has been a private
investor for over six years. Mr. Cohen served as President, Chief Executive Officer
and Chairman of the Board of The Andover Apparel Group, Inc., an apparel
manufacturing company, from 1980 to 2000.

Mr. Fischer was elected a director on December &, 2006. He has been the
President and Chief Executive of Mount Carmel Cemetery Association, a New York State
not-for-profit corporation since April 2001. Mr. Fischer was counsel to Warshaw,
Burstein, Cohen, Schlesinger and Kuh, a New York City law firm, from 1987 until 2001
and served as President, Chief Operating Officer and a director of Kinney System,
Inc. and The Katz Parking System, Inc. from 1981 to 1986. Mr. Fischer was appointed
Commissioner of the New York State Insurance Fund in 1977 and served as its Chairman
until January 1995.

Mr. Marx was elected a director in May 1935. Mr. Marx has been the General
Partner in United Equities Company since 1954 and General Partner in United Equities
Commodities Company since 1972. He is also President of Momar Corp. All of these are
investment companies. Mr. Marx is a director of The Cooper Companies, Inc.

Mr. Stockwell was elected a director in July 1988. He has been a private
investor for over ten years. Since April 199%%, Mr. Stockwell has served as President
of Yachting Systems of America, LLC, a small start-up company. In addition, he
served in variocus capacities with the Community Bank, a commercial bank, from
September 1572 to January 1987.

Mr. Krausz has held the position of President of the Bank since March 1992 and
Chief Executive Officer since November 19%93. Prior to joining the Bank, Mr. Krausz
was Managing Director of SFS Management Co., L.P., a mortgage banker, from 1987 to
1992 and was President of UMB Bank and Trust Company, a New York State chartered
bank, from 1978 to 1987.

Mr. Lukens has held the position of Senior Vice President and Chief Financial
Officer of the Bank since December 1939 and Executive Vice President since December
2003. Prior to joining the Bank, Mr. Lukens was Senior Vice President and Chief
Financial officer of First Washington State Bank, a New Jersey commercial bank, from
1994 to 1999 and was Vice President and Contreller at the Philadelphia, PA branch of
Bank bLeumi Le-Israel B.M., an international commercial bank, from 1978 to 1334.

There are no family relationships (whether by blood, marriage or adoption)
among any of the Company’s current directors or executive cfficers.




ITEM 10. {(continued)

At each annual meeting of stockholders, the successors to the directors then
serving are elected to serve from the time of their election and qualification until
the next annual meeting following their election or until their successors have been
duly elected and qualified, or until their earlier death, resignation or removal.
All of our current directors have been elected to serve until the annual meeting of
stockholders to be held in 2007. The Company’s officers, except for Messrs. Krausz
and Lukens who have employment agreements, serve at the discretion of the Board of
Pirectors.

Audit Committee Members, Financial Expert and Independence

Our Board of Directors has established an Audit Committee comprised of
three independent directors, Messrs. William L. Cohen, Martin A. Fischer and
Randolph B. Stockwell. All of the members of the Audit Committee meet the
independence requirements under current NASDAQ corporate governance standards for
companies whose securities are listed on NASDAQ. Based upon their education and
relevant experience, our Beoard has determined that Messrs. Cohen and Stockwell
each qualify as financial experts as defined by the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
and the rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission.

Corporate Code of Ethics

We have adopted a Corporate Code of Ethics that applies to the directors,
officers and employees, including the senior management: the chief executive
officer, chief financial officer, controller and persons performing similar
functions, of Berkshire Bancorp Inc. and its subsidiaries. Copies of our
Corporate Code of Ethics are available without charge upon written request to the
Company, Attention President, at its principal executive office.

ITEM 11. Compensation Discussion and Analysis

Cur Board of Directors has delegated primary authority for executive
compensation teo the three independent members of the Board, or Independent
Directors, who, though not a formal compensation committee of the Board, act in
such capacity.

Philosophy on Executive Compensation

It is our philosophy to cowmpensate executive officers in a manner that
promotes the recruitment, motivation and retention of exceptional employees who
will help us achieve our strategic business objectives and increase stockholder
value. Our executive compensation philosophy is implemented through compensation
programs based upon the following principles:

* Targeted total compensation (salary, bonus, and long-term incentives)
and benefits package for executives should be set near the median levels
of compensation for corporate executives delivered by certain peer
companies, taking into account the relative responsibilities of the
executive officers involved. Actual total compensation in any given year
may be above or below the target level based on individual and corporate
performance.

* Qur total compensation package should provide an appropriate mix of
fixed and variable compensation to support a meaningful
pay-for-performance relationship for our executive officers.

* Performance-based compensation should be tied to performance measures
believed to enhance future stockholder value.

* Our long-term incentive program should be designed to encourage
executive retention and link executive compensation directly to long-term
stockholder interests.

* Compensation plans should be easy to understand and administer.
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Overview of Company Policy on Executive Compensation

Our executive compensation policy and practice is established by the
Independent Directors. Specific policies and practices relating to each element
of named executive officers’ compensation are described below. The objective of
our compensation policy is to provide an overall compensation opportunity that
is competitive with that offered for similar positions by similar organizations
in our industry. Executive compensation may be above or below this general level
at times for a variety of reasons, including performance, recruiting or retention
requirements and market conditions.

Actual compensation against this generally median target is designed to be
commensurate with our corporate performance and the individual performance of our
executives. We generally structure our benefits based on a review of the typical
practices within our industry and our business strategy.

Our approach to the total pay package for our executive officers is to view
the various elements of the package as a portfolio of rewards, designed to
achieve different specific purposes but to balance each other in motivating
appropriate behavior, rewarding different aspects of performance or meeting
corporate objectives for attracting and retaining the talent needed to
successfully lead our company and increase stockholder value.

The Role of the Independent Directors and Management in Determining Executive
Compensation

For compensation purposes, our executive officers consist of the three
executive officers named in the Summary Compensation Table. The Independent
Directors approve all key elements of our executive compensation and benefit
programs for the named executive officers. In addition, they assess our financial
performance and capital position compared to our plan in determining future
awards under the plans. Finally, the Independent Directors approve all salary
increases, cash bonus amounts, equity grants, employment, severance, or change
of control agreements and all benefit programs as they apply to the named
executive officers.

Compensation Policy Regarding Named Exeacutive Officers

Each element of compensation is described below. Generally, the mix of pay
elements, including salary and annual cash bonus, long-term incentive and equity
opportunity, benefits and perquisites, are designed to address the needs of our
company and reflect the competitive marketplace. We review the mix and
allocation to individuals regularly, but maintain a flexible policy to deliver
compensation that motivates, retains and rewards our executives. In executing
this policy, the Independent Directors consider a variety of factors, applying
its collective judgment where appropriate, against a frame of reference that the
total pay opportunity should be generally competitive.

Base Salaries

In general, we target base salaries at competitive levels relative to
executive officers in comparable positions in our industry, taking into account
the comparable responsibilities of the executive officers involved. Where the
responsibilities of executive positions are different from those typically found
among other bank holding companies or banks, or where executives are new to their
responsibilities or play a particularly critical role, base salaries may be
targeted above or below median competitive levels. In determining salaries, the
Independent Directors also take into account individual leadership, integrity and
vision, experience and performance relative to other executive officers in
comparable positions. We believe the named executive officers’ salaries reported
in the Summary Compensation Table are in keeping with this philosophy.

Annual Non-Equity Incentive Awards

For 2006, the Independent Directors determined the cash awards for the
named executive officers which represent, in their view, a generally competitive
level of bonus for corporate and individual performance. This amount is set for
each individual and position so that, along with base salary, the executive's
total cash pay would be comparable to the cash compensation of executives of
similarly sized companies in ocur industry.
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Annual Incentive Performance Goals and Measures

At the beginning of each year, the Independent Directors review our
business plan and budgets for the coming year. Historically and in 2006, the
targets for performance are measured by the {i) management of our loan portfelio,
loan preoducts and underwriting standards, ({(ii) management of our investment
activities and portfolio of investment securities, {iii) integration of new bank
branches, (iv) integration of new technologies and information systems, (v)
safety and soundness of the bank, (vi) financial performance to budget, and {vii}
growth in stockholders’ ecuity. The annual incentive portion of total
compensation is designed to reward executives for meeting these objectives which
we believe are the important drivers for the long-term success of our company.

At year end, the Independent Directors review performance against these
objectives and apply more judgmental factors, which reflect actual achievements
in such areas as the quality of earnings, risk positioning and strategic
positioning of our portfolic of loans and investment securities. The effect of
market and industry conditions, interest rates and the economy in general on
performance is also considered. Total payouts may be adjusted up or down based
on this assessment.

Based on their assessment of each executive officer’s performance for the
year relative to our plan, their judgment on the appropriate effect of any of the
factors discussed above and any individual performance adjustments, the
Independent Directors make a decision on the actual bonus to be paid to such
executive officer for the year. The decision is based in part upon
recommendations made by the Chief Executive Officer and the named executive
officer’'s immediate superior, if not the Chief Executive Cfficer.

Further detail on individual annual bonus payments made to the named
executive officers 1is provided in the Summary Compensation Table and its
accompanying narrative.

Long-Term and Incentive Awards

We provide periodic, but not annual, long-term equity incentives through
our 1999 Stock Incentive Plan which was approved by our stockholders. Equity
incentives in past years provided for long-term compensation opportunities for
the named executive officers in the form of a fair market wvalue stock option
grant.

Stock Options

We intend that the value of any future stock options we grant be measured
by the fair value of the option at grant date under FAS 123 (R). We believe that
periodic, not annual, stock option grants best link executive compensation to the
interests of our stockholders. The value realizable from this type of award is
solely dependent on the increase in our stock price over the term of the coptions,
after which the options expire. Our practice in regard to stock options and
other equity grants is that such grants are typically made to existing executives
on a periodic basis, with possible exceptions for new hires, promotions or
special retention awards. The Independent Directors review management
recommendations as to stock option grants to employees below the named executive
officer level.

Typically, stock option awards are approved in advance and they are
effective on a future pre-selected date. We do not select stock option grant
dates for executives in coordination with the release of material, non-public
information, or time the release of such information because of option grant
dates. Historically, we have awarded non-qualified stock options which vest in
full one year from the date of the award and expire five years thereafter.

Restricted Stock

We have not used restricted stock grants in the past, though we may do so
in the future. Restricted stock, unlike a stock option, is an outright grant of
common stock in which ownership vests over a period of time. If restricted stock
is granted, then, throughout the vesting period holders of restricted stock would
have the right to vote their restricted shares and to receive dividends.
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Policy on Post-Termination Benefits

Our policy on executive post-termination benefits is to review each
gituation as it arises. We seek to provide fair and appropriate treatment to all
of our employees depending upon the termination situation.

Change of Control Termination Policies
We have no change of control agreements with any of our employees.
Retirement Plan

Substantially all full-time employees are eligible to participate in the
Berkshire Bancorp Inc. Retirement Income Plan after one year of employment. We
believe that retirement plan benefits are an integral part of compensation of our
executive officers and other employees. We provide these benefits in order to
make an income stream available to the recipients that will assist in meeting
their post-retirement needs. Benefits are determined by compensation and years
of service. Further detail regarding the retirement plan is provided in the
Pension Benefits Table and accompanying discussion.

Deferred Compensation

Certain named executives are eligible to participate in the Deferred
Compensation Plan of The Berkshire Bank. This plan, adopted in July 2006, is
designed to allow executives to defer base salary and annual incentives until a
future date. The interest rates at which these deferrals accrue are not
guaranteed and we believe are in line with competitive practice in our industry.
Further detail on the interest rates we pay is provided in the Nonqualified
Deferred Compensation Table and accompanying discussion.

Perquisites and Other Benefits

We do not provide perquisites of any kind to our named executive officers.
However, our executives are eligible to participate in the benefit plans
available to all of ocur employees.

Non-Employee Director Compensation

In 2006, the Independent Directors reviewed the components of its
non-employee director compensation program and recommended to the Board that it
remain unchanged. A further review will be undertaken in 2007 to assure that
director pay remains appropriate. Details regarding director compensation is
provided in the Director Compensation Table and accompanying discussion.

Tax Considerations

Section 162{m) of the Internal Revenue Code disallows a tax deduction for
compensation in excess of 31 million paid to ocur Chief Executive Officer or any
of our other named executive officers whose total compensation is required to be
reported. However, performance-based compensation that satisfies the requirements
of Section 162 (m) is deductible. We intend to establish and administer executive
officer compensation programs that are deductible. However, we may award
compensation from time to time that is not fully tax deductible if we determine
that such awards are consistent with our philosophy and in the best interests of
our stockholders.

Section 409%A of the Internal Revenue Code provides that amounts deferred
under nonqualified deferred compensation plans are included in an employee’s
income when they vest unless sgpecified requirements are met. If these
requirements are not met, employees are also subject to an additional income tax
and interest penalties. Our noncualified deferred compensation plans are intended
to meet, and will be amended to meet, these requirements. As a result, our
employees will be taxed when the deferred compensation is actually paid to them
and we will be entitled to a tax deduction at that time.

Section 280G of the Internal Revenue Code disallows a company’s tax

deduction for what are defined as "excess parachute payments," and Section 499%
imposes a 20% excise tax on any person who receives excess parachute payments.
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None of our named executive officers are entitled to such payments upon
termination of their employment, including termination following a change of
control of our company. We do not have change of control agreements with any of
our named executive officers.

Our stock awards generally accelerate in the event of a change of control
and gqualifying termination of employment. This acceleration could contribute to
potential excess parachute payments.

Accounting Considerations

Stock options, restricted stock, and performance shares are accounted for
based on their grant date fair value, as determined under FAS 123R. We consider
the accounting expense as well as the cash expense of all programs as part of our
design and review criteria.

Executive Compensation & Benafits Report

The independent dependent directors have reviewed and discussed the
Compensation Discussion and Analysis set forth in this Form 10-K with our
management ; and

Based on such review and discussiong the Independent Directors recommended
to our Board of Directors that the Compensation Discussion and Analysis be
included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

William L. Cohen

Martin A. Fischer
Randolph B. Stockwell
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Executive Compensation

The following table shows the compensation paid in or with respect to the
last fiscal year to the individual who served as our Chief Executive Officer and
Chief Financial Officer for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2006, and to each
of the other executive officers of the Bank whose total compensation was more
than $100,000 during the fiscal year ended December 31, 2006 (our "named
executive officers").

Summary Compensation Table

Change in
Pension Value
and
Nonqualified
Deferrad
Compensation All Other

Name and Principal Salary Bonus Barninga Compensation Total

Position Year ] 8 & $

Steven Rosenberg 2006 200,000 25,000 232,267 -- 457,

President, Chief Executive
officer and Chief Financial
Cfficer

Moses Krausz 2006 422,130 250,000 -- 11,424 68B3,

President and Chief
Executive Officer of The
Berkshire Bank

David Lukens 2006 174,000 25,000 11,956 7,658 218,

Executive Vice President
and Chief Financial Officer
of The Berkshire Bank

Narrative Summary Compensation Table

Mr. Rosenberg does not have an employment agreement with us. The amounts
reported for Change in Pension Value and Nonqualified Deferred Compensation
Earnings includes only the change in the value of his benefit payable under our
Retirement Income Plan. Mr. Rosenberg does not participate in the Bank's 401 (k)
Plan or its Deferred Compensation Plan.

Mr. Krausz has an employment agreement with us. The agreement expires on April
20, 2008 unless automatically renewed for up to three additional years as
provided for in the agreement. The agreement provides for the payment to Mr.
Krausz of a specified base salary with fixed annual increases, the payment of a
discretionary bonus and participation in our employee benefit plans. There are
no change in control provisions in Mr. Krausz's employment agreement. Mr. Krausz
is a participant in the Bank’s 401(k) Plan and its Defexrred Compensation Plan.
The amounts reported in All Qther Compensation consists of contributions we made
to Mr. Krausz'’'s 401 (k) account of $6,600; income associated with life insurance
coverage and aggregate earnings on the Deferred Compensation Plan.

Mr. Lukens has an employment agreement with us. The agreement will expire on
June 30, 2008 unless automatically renewed for up to three additional years as
provided for in the agreement. The agreement provides for the payment to Mr.
Lukens of a base salary and annual bonus, and participation in our employee
benefit plans. There are no change in control provisions Mr. Lukens’ employment
agreement. The amounts reported for Change in Pension Value and Nongqualified
Deferred Compensation Earnings includes only the change in the value of Mr.
Luken’s benefit payable under our Retirement Income Plan. Mr. Lukens is a
participant in the Bank’s 401 (k) Plan and its Deferred Compensation Plan. The
amounts reported in All Other Compensation consists of contributions we made to
Mr. Lukens’ 401(k) account of §5,970, income associated with life insurance
coverage and aggregate earnings on the Deferred Compensation Plan.

$
267

554

654
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1999 Stock Incentive Plan

Our 1999 Stock Incentive Plan permits the granting of awards in the form
of nonqualified stock options, incentive stock opticns, restricted stock,
deferred stock, and other stock-based incentives. Up to 600,000 shares of our
common stock may be issued pursuant to the 1999 Stock Incentive Plan {subject to
appropriate adjustment in the event of changes in our corporate structure).
Officers, directors and other key employees of us or any of our subsidiaries are
eligible to receive awards under the 1999 Stock Incentive Plan. The option
exercise price of all options which are granted under the 1999 Stock Incentive
Plan must be at least equal to 100% of the fair market value of a share of common
stock of the Company on the date of grant. At December 31, 2006, options to
acquire 557,757 shares of our common stock have been granted under this plan,
185, 878 options are cutstanding and exercisable, and 42,243 options are available
for future grants.

Post-Employment Compensation

Pension Benefits

Number cof Present Value Payments
Years Credited of Accumulated During Last
Service Benefit Flscal Year
Name Plan Name (#) {$) (%)
Steven Rosenberg Retirement Income Plan 15.7 1,063,312 --
David Lukens Retirement Income Plan 6.0 57,953 --

Retirement Income Plan. Our Retirement Income Plan is a noncontributory defined
benefit plan covering substantially all of our full-time, non-union United States
employees. Under the Retirement Income Plan, our benefits were based upon a
combination of employee compensation and years of service. We paid the entire
cost of the plan for our employees and funded such costs as they accrued. Our
funding policy was to make annual contributions within minimum and maximum levels
required by applicable regulations. Our customary contributions were designed
to fund normal cost on a current basis and fund over 30 years the estimated prior
service cost of benefit improvements (15 years of annual gains and losses). The
projected unit cost method was used to determine the annual cost. Plan assets
consist principally of equity and fixed income mutual funds.

Benefit accruals were frozen as of September 15, 1988, resulting in a plan
curtailment. BAs a result of such curtailment, we did not accrue benefits for
future services; however, we did continue to contribute as necessary for any
unfunded liabilities. In 2000, we reinstated the Retirement Income Plan to cover
substantially all of our full-time, non-union United States employees.

Except for Mr. Rosenberg whose benefit is subject to the laws governing the
Retirement Income Plan, a participant in the Retirement Income Plan accumulates
a balance in his or her retirement account by receiving: (i) an annual retirement
credit of 5% of gross wages paid during the year, but not in excess of the
applicable annual maximum compensation permitted to be taken into account under
Internal Revenue Service guidelines for each year of service; and (ii) an annual
interest credit based upon the 30-year U. $S. Treasury securities rate. We pay
the entire cost of the Retirement Income Plan for our employees and fund such
costs as they accrue.

Our plan provides for a normal retirement age of 65. However, the estimated
annual unreduced benefits payable under the Retirement Income Plan upon earlier
retirement at age 62 for Messrs. Rosenberg and Lukens are approximately $160,000
and 516,000, respectively. In accordance with the laws currently governing the
Retirement Income Plan, the estimated annual benefit payable to Mr. Rosenberg is
not expected to increase. Mr. Krausz is not a participant in the Retirement
Income Plan. {See Note K of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for more
information concerning the Retirement Income Plan).
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Compensation of Directors

Director Compensation for the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2006.

Change in
Pension Value
and
Nongualified
Fees Earned Non-Equity Deferred
or Paid in Stock Option Incentive Plan Compensation All Other
Cash Awards  Awards Compensation Barnings Compensation Total
Name $ $ $ $ $ § $
William L. Cohen 32,500 -- -- -- -- -- 32,500
Moses Marx 26,500 -- -- -- -- -- 26,500
Martin A. Fischer (a) 3,083 -- -- -- -- -- 3,083
Thomas V. Guarino (b} 28,416 -- -- .- -- -- 28,416
Randolph B. Stockwell 30,500 -- -- -- -- -- 30,500

Each director who is not also an employee receives a stipend of $25,000 per
annum and $1,500 for each day during which he participates in a meeting of the
Board or a Committee of the Board. Each of these directcrs alsc receives a fee
of $1,000 for telephonic meetings of the Board or a Board Committee. In
addition, see "1999 Stock Incentive Plan" above.

(a) Mr. Fischer was elected to the Board on December 7, 2006.
{b) Mr. Guarino resigned from the Board effective August 31, 2006.
{c) Messrs. Cohen, Marx and Stockwell each own stock options for 3,000 shares

of the Company’s common stock.
{d) Mr. Fischer owns stock options for 1,500 shares of our common stock.

ITEM 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and
Related Stockholder Matters.

The following table sets forth certain information as of March 23, 2007
with respect to the beneficial ownership of our Common Stock by (i} each person
who is known by us to own beneficially more than 5% of our Common Stock, (ii)
each of our directors and persons named in the Summary Compensation Table, and
{iii) all executive officers and directors as a group.

Amount and Nature

Name and Address of of Beneficial Percent
Title of Class Beneficial Owner Ownership of Class
Common Stock Wwilliam L. Cochen 7,500 (1) *

160 Broadway
New York, NY 10038

Common Stock Martin A. Fischer 9,800 (2) *
160 Broadway
New York, NY 10038

Common Stock Moses Krausz 148,691 (3) 2.1%
4 East 39th Street
New York, NY 10016

Common Stock David Lukens 15,600 (4} *
4 East 39th Street
New York, NY 10016

Common Stock Moses Marx 3,538,864 (5) 51.3%
160 Broadway
New York, NY 10038

Common Stock Steven Rosenberg 62,580 (6} *
160 Broadway
New York, NY 10038

Common Stock Randelph B. Stockwell 24,000 (7) *
160 Broadway
New York, NY 10038

Common Stock All executive officers and
directors as a group (7 persons} 3,807,035 (8) 54.3%

* Legs than 1%
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ITEM 12. (continued)

(1) Includes 3,000 shares issuable upon the exercise of options which
have been granted to Mr. Cohen under our 1999 Stock Incentive Plan.

(2) Includes 1,500 shares issuable upon the exercise of options which
have been granted to Mr. Fischer under our 1999 Stock Incentive
Plan.

(3) Includes 60,000 shares issuable upon the exercise of options which

have been granted to Mr. Krausz under our 1999 Stock Incentive Plan
and 2,100 shares owned by Mr. Krausz’s spouse.

(4) Includes 15,000 shares issuable upon the exercise of options which
have been granted to Mr. Lukens under cur 1999 Stock Incentive Plan.
(5) Includes 3,000 shares issuable upon the exercise of options which

have been granted to Mr. Marx under our 159% Stock Incentive Plan,
285,000 shares owned by Momar Corporation and 386,163 shares owned
by Terumah Foundation. Does not include 37,302.32 shares
representing 23.0% of the shares owned by Eva and Esther, L.P., of
which Mr. Marx has a 23.0% limited partnership interest. Mr. Marx's
daughters and their husbands are the general partners of Eva and
Esther, L.P.

(6) Includes 30,000 shares issuable upon the exercise of opticns which
have been granted to Mr. Rosenberg under our 1999 Stock Incentive
Plan.

(7) Includes 3,000 shares issuable upon the exercise of options which
have been granted to Mr. Stockwell under our 1999 Stock Incentive
Plan.

(8) Includes 115,500 shares of common stock which are issuable upon the

exercise of outstanding options.

Equity Compensation Plans

The following table details information regarding our existing equity
compensation plans as of December 31, 2006.

(c)
Number of securities

(a) (b) remaining available for
Number of securities to Weighted-average future issuance under
be issued upon exercise exercise price of equity compensation plans
of outstanding options, outstanding options, (excluding securities
Plan Category warrants and rights warrants and rights reflected in column (a)
Equity compensation 185,878 $ 9.76 42,243
plans approved by
security holders
Equity compensation -- -- --
plans not approved by
security holders
Total 185,878 $ 9.76 42,243
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ITEM 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions
and Director Independence.

In January 2000, the Bank entered into a lease agreement with Bowling Green
Associates, LP, the principal owner of which is Mr. Marx, for commercial space
to open a bank branch. We obtained an appraisal of the market rental value of
the space from an independent appraisal firm and management believes that the
terms of the lease, including the annual rent paid, $328,000 and $359,000 in
fiscal 2006 and 2005, is comparable to the terms and annual rent that would be
paid to non-affiliated parties in a similar commercial transaction for similar
commercial space.

See Item 1. Business - Transactions With Related Parties and Item 2.
Properties for additional information.

Policy Regarding Approval of Transactions Batween Berkshire and Related Parties

It is the policy of the Board of Directors of the Company that the Company,
acting by its independent directors, shall on an ongoing basis conduct an
appropriate review of all related party transactions required to be disclosed
pursuant to SEC Regqulation S-K Item 404 for potential conflict of interest
situations and that all such related party transactions must be approved by the
Company's Audit Committee.

Independence of Directors

Qur board has determined that Messrs. William L. Cohen, Martin A. Fischer
and Randolph B. Stockwell are independent under the independence standards of the
NASDAQ Stock Market LLC.
ITEM 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services

The Company’s principal accountant is Grant Thornton LLP ({"Grant

Thornton") . The total fees paid to Grant Thornton for the last two fiscal years
are as follows:

Fiscal Year Ended Fiscal Year Ended
December 31, 2006 December 31, 2005

Audit Fees $281,540 $168,581

Audit Related Faes: Professional services -- 26,959
rendered for employee benefit plan audits,

accounting asseistance in connection with

acquisitions and consultations related to

financial accounting and reporting standards

Tax Fees: Tax consulting, preparation of 68,200 57,160
returns

All other Fees: Professional services -- --
rendered for corporate support

The Audit Committee has established its pre-approval policies and
procedures, pursuant to which the Audit Committee approved the foregoing audit
and permissible non-audit services provided by Grant Thornton LLP in 2006 and
2005. Consistent with the Audit Committee’s responsibility for engaging our
independent auditors, all audit and permitted non-audit services require
pre-approval by the Audit Committee. The full Audit Committee approves proposed
services and fee estimates for these services. The Audit Committee chairperson
has been designated by the Audit Committee to approve any services arising during
the year that were not pre-approved by the Audit Committee and services that were
pre-approved. Service approved by the Audit Committee chairperson are
communicated to the full Audit Committee at its next regular quarterly meeting
and the Audit Committee reviews services and fees for the fiscal year at each
such meeting. Pursuant to these procedures, the Audit Committee approved the
foregoing audit and permissible non-audit services provided by Grant Thornton
LLP.
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PART IV
ITEM 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules.
(a} Documents filed as part of this Report:
{1) Financial Statements
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2006 and 2005

Consolidated Statements of Income for the Years Ended December 31, 2006,
2005 and 2004

Consclidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity for the Years Ended
December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004

Consclidated Statements of Cash Flows for the Years Ended December 31,
2006, 2005 and 2004

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Schedule
Number Description
None

All schedules for which provision is made in the applicable accounting
regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission are not required under the
related instructions or are not applicable and, therefore, have been omitted.

(3) Exhibits

Bxhibit
Number Desgcription

2.1 Agreement and Plan of Recorganization, dated as of August 16, 2000, by and
between Berkshire Banceorp Inc., Greater American Finance Group, Inc., The
Berkshire Bank, GSB Financial Corporation and Goshen Savings Bank
(incorporated by reference to the Companies Registration Statement on Form
5-4 dated October 13, 2000.

3.1 Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of the Company
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the Company’s Current Report
on Form 8-K dated March 30, 1999, and the Company’'s Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q for the Quarterly Periocd Ended June 30, 2004).

3.2 Amended and Restated By-laws of the Company (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 3.2 to the Company'’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated March 30,
1999} .

10.1 1999 Stock Incentive Plan of the Company (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.8 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated March 30,
1999) .+

10.2 Employment Agreement, dated May 1, 1959, between The Berkshire Bank and
Moses Krausz (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Company’s
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2000) .+

10.3 Employment Agreement, dated January 1, 2001, between The Berkshire Bank
and David Lukens (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the
Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the Fiscal Year Ended December
31, 2000) .+

10.4 Lease Agreement, dated October 26, 1999, between Braun Management, Inc. as
agent for Bowling Green Associates, L.P., and The Berkshire Bank
{incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to the Company’'s Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the Quarterly Period Ended March 31, 2001).

10.5 Amendment No. 2 to Employment Agreement, dated August 1, 2001, by and
between The Berkshire Bank and Moses Krausz (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.8 to the Company’'s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
Quarterly Period Ended June 30, 2002) .+
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10.

10.

10.

21.
23.
31.

32.

Amendment No. 2 to Employment Agreement, dated January 1, 2001, by and
between The Berkshire Bank and David Lukens (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
Quarterly Period Ended June 30, 2006).+

Deferred Compensation Plan of The Berkshire Bank, dated June 27, 2005,
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the Quarterly Period Ended June 30, 2006) .+
Amendment No. 1 to Deferred Compensation of The Berkshire Bank, dated
August 17, 2006 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the
Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the Quarterly Period Ended
September 30, 2006) .+

Subsidiaries of the Company.

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Certification of Principal Executive and Financial Officer pursuant to
Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

Certification of Principal Executive and Financial Officer pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

+ Denotes a management compensation plan or arrangement.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on
its behalf by the undersigmed, thereunto duly authorized.

BERKSHIRE BANCORP INC.

By: /8/ Steven Rosenberg
Steven Rosenberg
President, (Chief Executive Officer)

Date: March 29, 2007

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this
report has heen signed below by the following perscons on behalf of the registrant
and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signature Title Date

President, (Chief
Executive Qfficer,
Principal Financial
Officer and Principal
Accounting Officer);
/a8/ Steven Rosenberqg Director March 2%, 2007
Steven Rosenberg

/8/ William L. Cohen Director March 29, 2007
William L. Cohen

/8/ Martin A. Figcher Director March 29, 2007
Martin A. Pilacher

/8/ Moses Marx Director March 29, 2007
Moses Marx

/8/ Randolph B. Stockwell Director March 29, 2007
Randolph B. Stockwell
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BERKSHIRE BANCORP INC.

THE PEOPLE AT THE BERKSHIRE BANK THAT PUT YOUR INTEREST FIRST

Moses Marx Chairman of the Board of Directors

Moses Krausz President and Chief Executive Officer

David W. Lukens, Jr. Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
Stanley Wong Senior Vice President and Chief Risk Officer
Rolland B. Peacock, III Senior Vice President

Syed Ali

Patrick B. Dennehy
Avram J. Gutmann
Peter H. Kim

Dan Kimchi

Ira Mermelstein
Allison Powell
Jonathan S. Redner
Thomas W. Wren
Moshe Zucker
Susan Amatucci
Esther Azizov

Paul S. Buenafe
William Corbett
Fred Darretta
Jeanette Kahan
Michael Langer
Gerald T. Loughren
Nelli Melamed
Frank Pugliese
Allison Reardon
Rosita Sanchez
Marguerite Savino
Thomas Silecch
Chani Sperlin-Simchon
Claire Simonetti
Elizabeth Vivier
Miriam Walfish
Alan J. Rubinstein

Vice President

Vice President

Vice President

Vice President

Vice President

Vice President

Vice President

Vice President

Vice President

Vice President
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Assistant Vice President
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Assistant Vice President
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Assistant Vice President
Assistant Vice President
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Assistant Vice President
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Assistant Vice President
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Counsel
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